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Dear Sirs, 

SCH GROUP BERHAD ("SCH" OR "COMPANY") 
ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 

1. INTRODUCTION 

This report has been prepared by UHY, Malaysia, an international accounting firm of chartered 
accountants registered in Malaysia and an approved company auditor, for inclusion in the 
Prospectus of SCH in connection with the listing of and quotation for the enlarged issued and 
paid-up share capital of SCH on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ("Bursa 
Securities") ("Listing"). Details of the listing scheme are disclosed in Section 2 of this report. 

2. DETAILS OF THE ACQUISITIONS AND LISTING SCHEME 

2.1 Acquisitions 

In preparation for the listing of the Company on the ACE Market of 8ursa Securities, SCH have 
undertaken the Acquisitions. Under the Acquisitions, the Company had entered into four (4) sale 
and purchase agreements to acquire the entire equity interest in SCH Corporation, Italiaworld, 
SCHWM and SCHME. 

2.1.1 Acquisition of SCH Corporation 

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 January 2013 entered into between SCH 
and the vendors of SCH Corporation, being Lau Mong Ling, Wong Sin Chin and Yeen Yoon Hin, 
SCH acquired SCH Corporation's entire issued and paid-up share capital of RM7,880,002 
comprising 7,880,002 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each for a total purchase consideration of 
RM23,556,900, which was wholly satisfied by the issuance of 235,569,000 new Shares at an 
issue price of RMO.lO per Share on 11 November 2013. Immediately thereafter, SCH Corporation 
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCH. 
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2. DETAILS OF THE ACQUISITIONS AND LISTING SCHEME (CONT'D) 

2.1 Acquisition (Cont'd) 

2.1.1 Acquisition of SCH Corporation (Cont'd) 

The purchase consideration of SCH Corporation of RM23,556,900 was arrived at a willing-buyer 
willing-seller basis, after taking into consideration the audited consolidated net assets ("NA") 
position of SCH Corporation as at 31 August 2012 of RM23,556,869. 

2.1.2 Acquisition of Italiaworld 

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 January 2013 entered into between SCH 
and the vendors of Italiaworld, being Lau Mong Ling, Wong Sin Chin and Yeen Yoon Hin, SCH 
acquired Italiaworld's entire issued and paid-up share capital of SGD100,000 comprising 100,000 
ordinary shares for a total purchase consideration of RM895,600, which was wholly satisfied by 
the issuance of 8,956,000 new Shares at an issue price of RMO.10 per Share on 11 November 
2013. Immediately thereafter, Italiaworld become a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCH. 

The purchase consideration of Italiaworld of RM895,600 was arrived at a willing-buyer willing­
seller basis, after taking into consideration the audited NA position of Italiaworld as at 31 August 
2012 of SGD359,528 (equivalent to RM895,512). 

2.1.3 Acquisition of SCWM 

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 January 2013 entered into between SCH 
and the vendors of SCHWM, being Lau Mong Ling, Wong Sin Chin, Yeen Yoon Hin, Au Yong Sau 
Kuen and Wong Sang @ Wong Hock Lim, SCH acquired SCHWM's entire issued and paid-up 
share capital of RM500,000 comprising 500,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each for a total 
purchase consideration of RM2,070,200, which was wholly satisfied by the issuance of 
20,702,000 new Shares at an issue price of RMO.10 per Share on 11 November 2013. 
Immediately thereafter, SCHWM became a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCH. 

The purchase consideration of SCHWM of RM2,070,200 was arrived at a willing-buyer willing­
seller basis, after taking into consideration the audited NA position of SCHWM as at 31 August 
2012 of RM2,070,194. 
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2. DETAILS OF THE ACQUISITIONS AND LISTING SCHEME (CONT'D) 

2.1 Acquisition (Cont'd) 

2.1.4 Acquisition of SCHME 

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 January 2013 entered into between SCH 
and the vendors of SCHME, being Lau Mong Ling, Wong Sin Chin, Yeen Yoon Hin and Lim Lee 
Pooi, SCH acquired SCHME's entire issued and paid-up share capital of RM400,OOO comprising 
400,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each for a purchase consideration of RM5,631,500, which 
was wholly satisfied by the issuance of 56,315,000 new Shares at an issue price of RMO.lO per 
Share on 11 November 2013. Immediately thereafter, SCHME became a wholly-owned subsidiary 
ofSCH. 

The purchase consideration of SCHME of RMS,631,SOO was arrived at a willing-buyer willing­
seller basis, after taking into consideration the audited NA position of SCHME as at 31 August 
2012 of RMS,631,4S8. 

The new Shares issued pursuant to the Acquisitions shall rank pari passu in all respects with the 
existing issued Shares including the voting rights and will be entitled to all rights and dividends 
and other distributions, the entitlement date of which are subsequent thereof. 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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2. DETAILS OF THE ACQUISITIONS AND LISTING SCHEME (CONT'D) 

2.2 Listing Scheme 

In conjunction with, and as an integral part of the listing of and quotation for the entire issued 
and paid-up share capital of the Company on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities, the details of 
the Listing Scheme are as follows:-

(a) Public Issue 

Pursuant to the Public Issue, the Company shall issue 90,692,000 new Shares ("Issue 
Share") at an issue price of RMO.23 per Share ("IPO Price'') to be allocated in the 
following manner:-

(i) 13,000,000 Issue Shares will be made available for application by the Malaysian 
Public, to be allocated via ballot; 

(iI) 13,000,000 Issue Shares made available to the eligible Directors, employees and 
business associates/persons who have contributed to the success of the Group; 

(iii) 19,662,000 new shares by way of private placement to selected investors; and 

(iv) 45,030,000 new shares by way of private placement to identified Bumiputera 
investors approved by the Ministry of International Trade and Industry 

The Issue Shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing issued Shares 
including the voting rights and will be entitled to all rights and dividends and other 
distributions, the entitlement date of which are subsequent thereof. 

Upon completion of the Public Issue, the issued and paid-up share capital will increase 
from RM32,154,202 comprising 321,542,020 Shares to RM41,223,402 comprising 
412,234,020 Shares. 

(b) Offer for Sale 

Concurrent with the Listing, the Company will undertake an offer for sale of 32,980,000 
Shares ("Offer Shares'') at the IPO Price. The Offerors are offering for sale 32,980,000 
Offer Shares, representing approximately 8.0% of the enlarged issued and paid-up share 
capital to selected investors. The Offer Shares are payable in full on application upon 
such terms and conditions as set out in this Prospectus. 

(c) Listing 

Upon completion of the IPO, the Company's entire enlarged issued and paid-up share 
capital of RM41,223,402 comprising 412,234,020 Shares shall be listed on the ACE 
Market of Bursa Securities. 

(Collectively known as the "Listing Scheme') 
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3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3.1 Background 

SCH was incorporated on 22 December 2011 as an investment holding with a paid-up share 
capital of RM2.00. On 31 January 2012, SCH had undertaken a share split whereby 2 ordinary 
shares of RMl.OO each were sub-divided into 20 ordinary shares of RMO.l0 each. 

The background of its subsidiaries is as follows:-

Company 

Direct holding: 

Date of 
Incorporation 

SCH Corporation Sdn 13/01/1993 
Bhd ("SCH 
Corporation") 

SCH Wire-Mesh 05/03/1999 
Manufacturin9 Sdn 
Bhd ("SCHWM") 

SCH Machinery & 17/08/2006 
Equipment Sdn Bhd 
("SCHME") 

Italiaworld pte Ltd 
("ltaliaworld") 

Indirect holding: 

Subsidiaries of SCH 
Corporation 

Sin Chee Heng Sdn 
Bhd ("SCHSB") 

29/04/2000 

09/09/1983 

Authorised 
Share 

Capital 
(RM) 

25,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

Issued and 
Paid-up 
Share 

Capital 
(RM) 

7,880,002 

500,000 

400,000 

239,370 239,370 
(SGD100,000) (SGDlOO,OOO) 

10,000,000 6,000,000 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

257 

Equity 
Interest 

Ofo 
Principal Activities 

100 Investment holding 
company 

100 Manufacturing and 
distribution of quarry 
9rill 

100 Supplyin9 and distributin9 
of quarry machinery, 
quarry equipment and 
reconditioned quarry 
machinery as well as 
spare parts for quarry 
machinery, quarry 
equipment and 
reconditioned quarry 
machinery to the quarry 
industry 

100 Supplyin9 and distributin9 
of all kinds of quarry 
industrial products to 
the quarry industry in 
the South East Asia 
re9ion mainly Singapore 
and Indonesia 

100 Supplyin9 and distributin9 
of all kinds of quarry 
industrial products and 
quarry machinery in the 
central re9ion of 
peninsular Malaysia 
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3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION (CONT'D) 

3.1 Background (Conrd) 

Issued and 
Authorised Paid-up 

Date of Share Share Equity 
Company Incorporation Capital Capital Interest Principal Activities 

(RM) (RM) % 

Indirect holding: 
Subsidiaries of SCH 

Corporation 

Sin Chee Heng 27/07/1983 500,000 500,000 100 Distributing of all kinds of 
(Butterworth) quarry industrial 
Sdn Bhd \,SCH products to the quarry 
(Butterworth),,) industry in the northern 

region of peninsular 
Malaysia 

Sin Chee Heng 22/11/1993 500,000 100,000 100 Distributing of all kinds of 
(Kuantan) Sdn quarry industrial 
Bhd \,SCH products to the quarry 
(Kuantan)") industry in the eastern 

region of peninsular 
Malaysia 

Sin Chee Heng 18/11/1992 500,000 300,000 100 Distributing of all kinds of 
(Johere) Sdn Bhd quarry industrial 
\,SCH (Johore)") products to the quarry 

industry in the southern 
region of peninsular 
Malaysia 

Subsidiaries of 
SCHSB 

Sin Chee Heng 15/11/1991 500,000 300,005 100 Distributing of all kinds of 
(Sabah) Sdn Bhd quarry industrial 
\,SCH (Sabah)") products to the quarry 

industry in the north 
east of east Malaysia 

Sin Chee Heng 12/05/1997 500,000 300,000 100 Distributing of all kinds of 
(Sarawak) Sdn quarry industrial products 
Bhd \,SCH to the quarry industry in 
(Sarawak)") the north west of east 

Malaysia 
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4. GROUP STRUCTURE 

The corporate structure of SCH Group upon listing is as follows:-

SCH 

ECH 
Corporation 

SCHME ilt3!i3"t.VDfld 
I 

SCH 
lB-utten.·..-orth:1 

SCH5B 

! 
r:J:i~ I 

I 

... ~I :::CH !.JchGfe:, 

i 
1~::,:1 ! SCH lKusntsn) 

Notes:­

* 
A 

• 
Collectively known as the "SCH Corporation Group" 
Collectively known as the "SCH Group" or "the Group" 
The substantial shareholders of SCH (Johore) is SCH Corporation and SCHSB, holding 150,000 
shares or 50% equity interest each in SCH (Johore). 
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5. RELEVANT FINANCIAL PERIODS AND AUDITORS 

The relevant financial periods of the audited financial statements presented for the purpose of 
this report ("Relevant Financial Periods") and the auditors of SCH Group for the Relevant 
Financial Periods are set out below:-

Companies/Relevant Financial 
Periods 

SCH Group Berhad 
FYE 31 August 2013 ("FYE 2013") 
FPE 31 August 2012 ("FPE 2012',) 

SCH Corporation Group 
FYE 2013 
FYE 31 August 2012 ("FYE 2012',) 
FYE 31 August 2011 ("FYE 2011',) 
FYE 31 August 2010 ("FYE 2010',) 

Italiaworld 
FYE 2013 
FYE 2012 
FYE 2011 
FYE 2010 

SCHWM 
FYE 2013 
FYE 2012 
FYE 2011 
FYE 2010 

SCHME 
FYE 2013 
FYE 2012 
FYE 2011 
FYE 2010 

Auditor 

UHY 
UHY 

UHY 
UHY 
UHY 

RWWiliiam 

UHY Diong, Singapore 
UHY Diong, Singapore 
UHY Diong, Singapore 

Patrick Kan & Co 

UHY 
UHY 
UHY 

RWWilliam 

UHY 
UHY 
UHY 

RWWiliiam 
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Auditor's Report 

Appendix I 
Appendix II 

Appendix III 
Appendix IV 
Appendix V 
Appendix VI 

A ppendix VII 
Appendix VIII 
Appendix IX 
Appendix X 

Appendix XI 
Appendix XII 
Appendix XIII 
Appendix XIV 

Appendix XV 
A ppendix XVI 
Appendix XVII 
Appendix XVIII 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

This report is prepared on a basis consistent with the acoounting policies adopted by SCH Group 
as disclosed in Section 6.1 of this report. 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

The report of the Group has been prepared on the historical cost oonvention except as 
disclosed in the notes to this report and in acoordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards ("MFRSs"), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

In the previous years, the report of the Group was prepared in acoordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards ("FRSs"). This is the Group's first report prepared in accordance 
with MFRSs and MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards 
has been applied. 

The transition to MFRSs does not have financial impact to the financial statements of the 
Group. 

The Group has not applied the following MFRSs that have been issued by the Malaysian 
Acoounting Standards Board ("MASB") but are not yet effective for the Group: 

MFRS 10 
MFRS 11 
MFRS 12 
MFRS 13 
MFRS 119 (2011) 
MFRS 127 (2011) 
MFRS 128 (2011) 

MFRS 3 

MFRS 127 

Amend ments to 
MFRS 1 

Amend ments to 
MFRS 7 

Amend ments to 
MFRSs 10, 11 and 
12 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
Joint Arrangements 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
Fair Value Measurement 
Employee Benefits 
Separate Financial Statements 
Investments in Associates and Joint 

Ventures 
Business Combinations (IFRS 3 issued 

by IASB in March 2004) 
Consolidated and Separate Financial 

Statements (lAS 27 revised by IASB in 
December 2003) 

Government Loans 

Disclosure - Offsetting Financial Assets 
and Financial Liabilities 

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint 
Arrangements and Disclosure of 
Interests in Other Entities: Transition 
Guidance 
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Effective dates for 
financial periods 
beginning on or 

after 

1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 Ja nuary 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(a) Statement of Compliance (Cont'd) 

IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production of A 
Surface Mine 

Amendments to MFRSs contained in the document entitled 
"Annual Improvements 2009 - 2011 Cycle" 
Amendment to Investment Entities 

MFRSs 10, 12 and 
127 

Amendments to 
MFRS 132 

MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 
(2009» 

MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 
(2010» 

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities 

Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by 
IASB in November 2009) 

Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by 
IASB in October 2010) 

Effective dates for 
financial 
periods 

beginning 
on or after 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 

1 January 2015 

1 January 2015 

The initial application of the standards which will be applied prospectively or which 
requires extended disclosures, is not expected to have any financial impacts to the 
current and prior period's report upon the first adoption. 

The possible financial impacts of initial application of MFRSs, which will be applied 
retrospectively is as follows: 

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 (2009» replaces the guidance in MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement on classification and measurement of financial asset. 
MFRS 9 requires financial asset to be measured at fair value or amortised cost. The 
classification depends on the entity's business model for managing its financial 
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. 

MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 (2010» includes the requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition. Measurement for financial 
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss, requires the amount of change 
in the fair value of the financial liability, that is attributable to the change of credit risk of 
that liability to be presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of 
the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would 
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Amounts presented in other 
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, 
the cumulative gain or loss may be transferred within equity. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(a) Statement of Compliance (Cont'd) 

MFRS 9 Financial InstrumentsCCont'dl 

Under MFRS 139, the entire amount of the change in fair value of the financial liability 
designated as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss. 

The adoption of MFRS 9 will result in a change in accounting policy. The Group is 
currently examining the financial impact of adopting MFRS 9. 

MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

MFRS 10 replaces all the guidance on control and consolidation in MFRS 127 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and IC Interpretation 112 Consolidation­
Special Purpose Entities. 

MFRS 10 changes the definition of control. An investor controls an investee when it is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. It establishes 
control as the basis for determining which entities are consolidated in the consolidated 
financial statements and sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation of 
consolidation financial statements. 

The adoption of MFRS 10 may lead to consolidation of entities that were previously not 
included in the Group. The Group is currently examining the financial impact of 
application of MFRS 10. 

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 

MFRS 13 defines fair value and sets out a framework for measuring fair value, and the 
disclosure requirements about fair value. This standard is intended to address the 
inconsistencies in the requirements for measuring fair value across different accounting 
standards. The definition of fair value under this standard emphaSises the prindple that 
fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. 

The adoption of MFRS 13 will result in a change in accounting policy. The Group is 
currently examining the financial impact of adopting MFRS 13. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(a) Statement of Complianoe (Cont'd) 

MFRS 119 Emp[oyee Benefits (2011) 

This revised MFRS 119 will supersede the existing MFRS 119 when effective. This new 
standard makes significant changes to the recognition and measurement of defined 
benefit pension expense and termination benefits, and to the disclosures for all employee 
benefits. Actuaria[ gains and losses will no longer be deferred using the corridor 
approach. Past servioe costs, whether unvested or already vested, are recognised 
immediately in the profit or loss as incurred and the annual defined benefit costs in the 
profit or loss will include net interest expense/income on the defined benefit 
asset/liability. 

The adoption of MFRS 119 (2011) will result in a change in accounting policy. The Group 
is currently examining the financial impact of adopting MFRS 119 (2011). 

The initial applications of other MFRSs are not expected to have any material financial 
impacts on this report of the Group. 

(b) Functiona[ and Presentation Currency 

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("the 
functional currency"). 

This report is presented in Ringgit Ma[aysia (RM), which is the Group's functional 
currency. 

(c) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The summary of accounting policies is essential to understand the Group's results of 
operations, financial position, cash flows and other disclosures. Certain of these 
accounting policies require critical accounting estimates that involve complex and 
subjective judgements and the use of assumptions, some of which may be for matters 
that are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. Directors exercise their 
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. 

Estimates and assumptions conoerning the future and judgements are made in the 
preparation of the report. They affect the application of the Group's accounting policies, 
reported amounts of assets, [iabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They 
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on historical experience and other 
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstanoes. The actual results may differ from the judgements, 
estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal the estimated 
results. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(c) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont'd) 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation or 
unoertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are set out below. 

Useful lives of propertv. plant and equipment 

Management estimates the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be within 
3 to 50 years and reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at end of each reporting 
period. At 31 August 2013 management assesses that the useful lives represent the 
expected utilisation of the assets to the Group. Actual results, however, may vary due to 
change in the business plan and strategies, expected level of usage and technological 
developments, resulting in the adjustment to the Group's assets. A reduction in the 
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase the recorded 
depreciation and decrease the value of property, plant and equipment. 

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries 

The carrying values of investment in subsidiaries and the related goodwill are reviewed 
for impairment. In the determination of the value in use of the investment, the Group is 
required to estimate the expected cash ftows to be generated by the subsidiary 
companies and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present 
value of those cash ftows. 

Impairment of loans and receivables 

The Group assesses at end of each reporting period whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective 
evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency 
or significant financial difficulties of the receivables and default or significant delay in 
payments. 

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash 
ftows are estimated based on historical loss experience of assets with similar credit risk 
characteristics. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

265 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(c) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont'd) 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating 
unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable 
amount, management estimates expected future cash ftows from each cash-generating 
unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of 
those cash ftows. In the process of measuring expected future cash ftows management 
makes assumptions about future operating results. The actual results may vary, and may 
cause significant adjustments to the Group's assets within the next financial year. 

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the 
appropriate adjustment to market risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific 
risk factors. 

Income taxes 

There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination 
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Significant judgement is involved 
especially in determining tax base allowances and deductibility of certain expense in 
determining tax base allowances and deductibility of certain expense in determining the 
Group wide provision of income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax 
issues bases on estimates or whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax 
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, 
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the financial 
year in which such determination is made. 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which all the deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to 
determ ine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the 
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 
strategies. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial 
instruments where active market quotes are not available. Details of the assumptions 
used are given in the notes regarding financial assets and liabilities. In applying the 
valuation techniques management makes maximum use of market inputs, and uses 
estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data 
that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not 
observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market 
participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be 
achieved in an arm's length transaction at the end of the reporting period. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(d) Basic of Consolidation 

(i) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiary companies are those companies in which the Group has long term 
equity interest and has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial 
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally 
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. 

Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less any impairment losses 
in the Company's statement of financial position, unless the investment is held 
for sale or distribution. The cost of investments includes transaction costs. 

Upon the disposal of investment in a subsidiary company, the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is included in profit or loss. 

(ii) Consolidation 

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiary including any goodwill, and non-controlling interests are derecognised 
at their carrying value on the date that control is lost. Any remaining investment 
in the entity is recognised at fair value. The difference between the fair value of 
consideration received and the amounts derecognised and the remaining fair 
value of the investment is recognised as a gain or loss on disposal in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

Non-controlling interest is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or 
indirectly, to the Group. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group 
measures any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at 
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable 
net assets. At the end of reporting period, non-controlling interest consists of 
amount calculated on the date of combination and its share of changes in the 
subsidiary's equity since the date of combination. 

Changes in the Company's owner's ownership in a subsidiary company that do 
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such 
Circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling 
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interest in the 
subsidiary company. Any difference between the amount by which the non­
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or 
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parents. 

All earnings and losses of the subsidiary company are attributed to the parent 
and the non-controlling interest, even if the attribution of losses to the non­
controlling interest results in a debit balance in the shareholder'S equity. Profit or 
loss attribution to non-controlling interests for prior years is not restated. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(d) Basic of Consolidation (Cont'd) 

(ii) Consolidation (Cont'd) 

Subsidiary companies are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the 
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until 
the date that such control ceases. 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. The policy of recognition and measurement of 
impairment losses is in accordance with Note 6.1(J). 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
assets and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working 
condition for its intended use, cost of replacing component parts of the assets, 
and the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the assets 
after their use. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of 
materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised 
in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and eqUipment have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property, plant and equipment. 

Property, plant and eqUipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising 
on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the 
difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets 
and are recognised in profit or loss. 

(ii) Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within the part will ftow to the Group and its cost 
can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and eqUipment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as 
incurred. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognised in the profit or loss on straight line basis to write off 
the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life. Leased 
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. 
Freehold land is not depredated. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the estimated useful 
lives of the assets as follows: 

Leasehold land 
Buildings 
Furniture and fittings 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
Plant and machinery 
Renovation 
Mould and blocks 
Signboard 
Tools and equipment 

remaining lease period 
50 years 

8 - 13 years 
5 years 

8 - 10 years 
3 - 9 years 

10 years 
5 years 

10 years 
8-9 years 

The residual values, useful lives and depredation method are reviewed at each 
reporting period end to ensure that the amount, method and period of 
depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the property, plant and 
equipment. 

(f) Investment in subsidiaries and assodates 

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment, if any. The policy of recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in 
accordance with Note 6.1(J). 

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net proceeds and its carrying 
amount is recognised in the profit or loss. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(g) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value after adequate 
impairment has been made for all deteriorated, damage, obsolete or slow-moving 
inventories. 

The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average method and includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing 
location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and deposit with bank 
that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

(i) Financial assets 

Financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only 
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument. 

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value. 
Transaction costs for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. 

The Group classifies its financial assets depending on the purpose for which it was 
acquired at initial recognition into the following categories: 

Loa nand receiva bles 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are presented as current assets, 
except for those maturing later than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 
which are presented as non-current assets. 

After initial recognition, financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment losses. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(i) Financial assets (Cont'd) 

Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this 
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are presented as non­
current assets unless management intends to dispose of the assets within 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period. 

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any 
gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial asset are recognised in other 
comprehensive income, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and 
losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest 
method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a 
reciassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income 
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on 
an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's 
right to receive payment is established. 

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets 

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in 
the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are 
recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

Derecognition of financial assets 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset, the 
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of consideration received and any 
cumUlative gains or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or 
loss. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

Ul Impairment of Assets 

(i) Non-financia[ assets 

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If 
any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash­
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable 
asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other 
assets and groups. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating units is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less costs to se[1. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. 

Previously recognised impairment losses are assessed at the end of each 
reporting period whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no 
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 
the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognised in the profit or loss. 

(ii) Financia[ Assets 

All financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, 
investment in subsidiary company and investment on associate company, are 
assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the asset. 

Financia[ Assets Carried at Amortised Cost 

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on 
financial assets has been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the 
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the receivable and 
default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of financial assets, 
such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually 
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar 
risk characteristics. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(j) Impairment of Assets (Cant'd) 

(ii) Financial Assets (Cant'd) 

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost (Cant'd) 

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the 
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of 
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable 
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on 
receiva bles. 

If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have 
not yet been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the amount of impairment loss is recognised in the profit 
or loss. 

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the 
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost 
at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 

Available-far-sale financial assets 

Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial 
difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading 
market are considerations to determine whether there is objective evidence that 
investment securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are impaired. 

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the amount of impairment loss 
is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between its cost 
(net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less 
any impairment loss previously. When a decline of fair value of an available-for­
sale financial asset has been recognised in other comprehensive income, the 
cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. 

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost 
are not reversed in profit or loss in the subsequent periods. For available-far-sale 
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed in profit or loss, 
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an 
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(k) Financial liabilities 

Financia[ liabi[ities are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument. 

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost and 
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, other than 
those categorised as fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the carrying value of 
these liabi[ities are recognised in the profit or loss. 

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

The Group and the Company classifies its financial [iabilities at initial recognition, into the 
following category 

Other [iabilities measured at amortised cost 

Other financial [iabilities are non-derivatives financial liabilities. The Group's other 
financial liabilities comprise trade and other payab[es and amounts due to Directors at 
borrowings. Other financial [iabilities are classified as current liabilities; except for 
maturities more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case they 
are classified as non-current [iabilities. 

Other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the liabi[ities are 
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method amortisation process. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a 
financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any 
non-cash assets transferred or [iabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 

Offsetting of Financial Instruments 

A financial asset and financial liabi[ity are offset and the net amount reported in the 
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneous[y. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(I) Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments. 
Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal value of shares issued. Ordinary shares are 
classified as equity. 

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity as appropriation of retained 
earnings and recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved. 

(m) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will ftow to the enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably. 

(i) Good sold and seryices rendered 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, 
net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Revenue from 
sale of goods is recognised when the transfer of significant risk and rewards of 
ownership of the goods to the customer, recovery of the consideration is 
probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated 
reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods. 

(ii) Rental income 

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The 
aggregate costs of incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction 
of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

(iii) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest 
method. 

(iv) Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is 
established. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(n) Emp[oyees benefits 

(i) Short term employee benefits 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an 
expense in the reporting period in which the associated services are rendered by 
employees of the Group. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as 
paid annual [eave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that 
increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non­
accumulating compensated absences such as sick and medical [eave are 
recognised when the absences occur. 

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is measured as 
additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that 
has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. 

(ii) Defined contribution plans 

As required by law, companies in Ma[aysia make contributions to the state pension 
scheme, the Emp[oyees Provident Fund ("EPF"). Such contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. Once the contributions have been 
paid, the Group has no further payment obligations. 

(0) Leases 

(i) Finance Lease 

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance [ease. Upon initial recognition, the 
[eased asset is measured at an amount equal to the [ower of its fair value and 
the present value of the minimum [ease payments. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy 
applicab[e to that asset. 

Minimum [ease payments made under finance [eases are apportioned between 
finance charges and reduction of the [ease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognised as finance costs in the profit or loss. Contingent [ease payments are 
accounted for by revising the minimum [ease payments over the remaining term 
of the [ease when the [ease adjustment is confirmed. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(0) Leases 

(ii) Operating lease 

Leases, where the Group does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are classified as operating leases and, the leased assets are not 
recognised in the statement of financial position of the Group. 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense, over 
the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the 
reporting period in which they are incurred. 

(p) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances 

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the functional currency of the respective 
Group entities using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At 
each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 
at the rates prevailing on that date. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation 
of monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the reporting period. Exchange 
differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are 
included in profit or loss for the reporting period except for the differences arising on the 
translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised 
directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are also 
recognised directly in equity. 

(q) Capital Work-In-Progress 

Capital work-in-progress consists of expenditure incurred on construction of property, 
plant and equipment which takes a substantial period of time to be ready for their 
intended use. 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost during the period of construction. No 
depreciation is provided on capital work-in-progress and upon completion of construction, 
the cost will be transferred to property, plant and equipment. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(r) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the accuisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to 
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those 
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

When the borrowings are made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing 
costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the 
temporary investment of funds drawndown from that borrowing facility. 

When the borrowings are made generally, and used for the purpose of obtaining a 
qualifying asset, the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying 
a capitalisation rate which is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to 
the borrowings that are outstanding during the financial year. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred. 

(s) Income Tax 

Tax expense in profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and 
deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a 
business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method for all temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial 
position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences 
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill or the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they 
reverse, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period. 
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6. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

6.1 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

(s) Income Tax (Cont'd) 

The measurement of deferred tax is based on the expected manner of realisation or 
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, at the end of the reporting 
period. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle 
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be 
realised simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

(t) Related parties 

For the purpose of this report, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the 
Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or 
exercise significant infiuence over the party in making financial and operation decision, or 
vice versa or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common 
control or common significant infiuence. Related parties may be individuals or other 
entities. 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally lett blank.) 
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7. FINANOAL INFORMATION AND LIMITATION 

The SCH Group shall only exist upon the completion of the Listing Scheme as detailed in Section 
2 of this report, and hence, there are no consolidated financial statements prepared for SCH 
Group for the financial years under review. For the purpose of this report, only the audited 
financial statements of SCH Group Berhad, SCH Corporation Group in group level, Italiaworld, 
SCHWM and SCHME at company level were presented and modified appropriately as stated in 
Section 8. 

The scope of work conducted in the preparation of this report does not itself, constitute an audit 
in accordance with the approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Except where otherwise 
explicitly stated, information contained in this report has not been independently verified by us. 
In preparing this report, we have relied upon information and representations given to us by 
Directors, officers, and employees of SCH Group and sought explanations for apparent 
discrepancies, if any. 

UHY has not audited all the financial statements contained in this report. The information 
contained in this report has been compiled from the financial statements of SCH Group Berhad, 
SCH Corporation Group, Italiaworld, SCHWM and SCHME which were reported on by their 
respective auditors without any qualification. 

Other than for inclusion in the prospectus, our report should not be used for any other purpose 
including issuance to any third parties or included in any document to be circulated to third 
parties without our prior written approval. 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8.1 Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad 

SCH was only incorporated on 22 December 2011. We set out below the finandal statement of 
SCH which include statement of comprehensive income, statement of finandal position, 
statement for changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the nine (9) months 
Finandal Period Ended ("FPE") 2012 and Finandal Year Ended C'FYE") 2013. 

8.1.1 Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Revenue 
Cost of sales 
Gross profit C'GP'~ 
Other income 
Administration expenses 

Note 

Loss before taxation ("LBT'~ 8.2.1 

FPE 2012 
RM 

6 
(10,143) 
(10,137) 

FYE 2013 
RM 

8 
(4,524) 
(4,516) 

Income tax expense 8.2.2 ____________ _ 
Net loss for the financial period/year, representing total 

comprehensive income for the financial periodjyear 

Key financial ratio: 
Losses before interest and taxation 
Losses before interest, taxation and depreciation 
GP margin (%) 
LBT margin (%) 
Loss after taxation C'LAT'~ margin (%) 
Effective tax rate (%) 
Gross losses per share (RM) (aJ 
Net losses per share (RM) (b J 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

Notes: 

(10,137) (4,516) 

(10,137) (4,516) 
(10,137) (4,516) 

N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 

(507) (226) 
(507) (226) 

20 20 

(aJ The gross EPS is computed by dividing the PBT against the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares. 

(bJ The net EPS is computed by dividing the PAT against the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

281 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.1 Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.1.2 Statements of Financial Position 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Other receivables 
Cash and bank balances 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Share capital 
Accumulated loss 
Total Equity 

Note 

8.2.3 

8.2.4 

As at 31 
AU9ust 2012 

RM 

17,000 
2,985 

19,9BS 

2 
(10,137) 
(10,135) 

As at 31 
AU9ust2013 

RM 

320,876 
1,039 

321,915 

2 
(14,653) 
(14,651) 

Current Liability 
Other payables 
Total Liabilities 

30,120 336,566 
30,120 336,566 

8.2.5 ___ -="'='''-__ ---'''~~ 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

8.1.3 statements of Changes in Equity 

At date of incorporation 

Net loss for the financial period, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial period 

At 31 August 2012 

At 1 September 2012 

Net loss for the financial year, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial year 

At 31 August 2013 
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Share 
Capital 

RM 

2 

2 

2 

2 

19,9BS 

Accumulated 
Loss 

RM 

(10,137) 

(10,137) 

(10,137) 

(4,516) 

(14,653) 

32],915 

Total 
RM 

2 

(10,137) 

(10,135) 

(10,135) 

(4,516) 

(14,651) 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.1 Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.1.4 Statements of Cash Flows 

FPE FYE 
2012 2013 

RM RM 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Loss before taxation (10,137) (4,516) 

Adjustment lor: 

Interest income (6) (8) 

Operating loss before working capital changes (10,143) (4,524) 

Changes in working capital: 

Other receivable (17,000) (303,876) 

Other payables 30120 306446 

13,120 2,570 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 2,977 (1,954) 

Interest received 6 8 

Net cash lrom/(used in) operating activities 2,983 (1,946) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,983 (1,946) 
Cash and cash equivalents at date of 

incorporation/beginning of the year 2 2,985 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial 

period/year 2,985 1,039 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial period/year 
comprise: 

cash and bank balances 2,985 1,039 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.2 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad 

8.2.1 Loss Before Taxation 

Loss before taxation is derived after charging/(crediting): 

Auditors' remuneration 

Incorporation fee 

Interest income 

8.2.2 Income Tax Expense 

FPE 2012 FYE 2013 
RM RM 

2,000 2,000 

1,500 

(6) (8) 

No provision for taxation for the financial period was made as SCH was in a tax loss position. 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to loss before taxation at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of SCH is as follows: 

Loss before taxation 

Taxation at statutory tax rate of 25% (2012:25%) 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 

Income tax expense for the financial period/year 

8.2.3 Other Receivables 

Deferred expenditure 

Prepayments 

FPE 2012 
RM 

(10,137) 

(2,534) 

2,534 

As at31 
August 2012 

RM 

17,000 

17,000 

FYE 2013 
RM 

(4,516) 

(1,100) 

1,100 

As at 31 
August 2013 

RM 

17,000 
303,876 

320,876 

Included in prepayments are prepaid listing expenses paid on behalf by a related party. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.2 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.2.4 Share Capital 

As at 31 August 2012 As at 31 August 2013 
Number of Number of 

shares RM shares RM 
Authorised: 

At date of incorporation/At beginning of 
the year 100,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000 

Share split 900,000 
Ordinary shares of RMO.lO each at end 

of the financial period/year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000 

Issued and fully paid: 

At date of incorporation/At beginning of 
the year 2 2 20 2 

Share split 18 
Ordinary shares of RMO.l0 each at end 

of the financial periodfyear 20 2 20 2 

The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by SCH. All 
ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to 
SCH's residual asset. 

At the date of incorporation, SCH issued 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each as subscribers' shares. 

On 31 January 2012 SCH undertook a share split involving the subdivision of every one (1) 
existing ordinary share of RM1.00 each in SCH into ten (10) shares of RMO.1O each. 

The new ordinary shares issued during the financial period ranked pari passu in all respects with 
the existing ordinary shares of the SCH. 

8.2.5 Other Payables 

Other payable 

Accruals 

As at 31 
August 2012 

RM 

25,600 

4,520 

30,120 

As at31 
August 2013 

RM 

334,354 

2,212 

336,566 

Included in the other payable is an amount of RM334,354 (2012: RM25(600) owing to SCH in 
which certain Directors of the SCH have Significant financial interest. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.2 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.2.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Classification of financial instruments 

(b) 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair 
value or at amortised cost. The principal accounting policies in Note 6 describe how the 
classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expense, including 
fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the financial 
assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position by the class of financial 
instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the measurement basis: 

Financial 
liabilities at 

Loan and amortised 
receivables cost Total 

RM RM RM 

2012 
Financial assets 
Other receivable 17,000 17,000 
Cash and bank balances 2,985 2,985 
Total financial assets 19,985 19,985 

Financial liability 
Other payables 30,120 30,120 
Total financial liability 30,120 30,120 

2013 
Financial assets 
Other receivable 320,876 320,876 
cash and bank balances 1,039 1,039 
Total financial assets 321,915 321,915 

Financial liability 
Other payables 336,566 336,566 
Total financial liability 336,566 336,566 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

SCH's financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial resources are 
available for the development of SCH's operations whilst managing its financial risks, 
including credit risk and liquidity risk. SCH operates within clearly defined guidelines that 
are approved by the Board and SCH's policy is not to engage in speculative transactions. 

The following sections provide details regarding SCH's exposure to the abovementioned 
financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these 
risks. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.2 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.2.6 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) 

(i) Credit risk 

Financial assets that are primarily exposed to credit risks are receivables and cash 
and bank balances. 

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to SCH if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. SCH's exposure to 
credit risk arises principally from the inability of its customers to make payments 
when due. 

SCH has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and 
deposit with banks and financial institutions with good credit rating. The exposure 
to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis via SCH's management reporting 
procedures and action will be taken for long outstanding debts. 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statement of 
financial position at the end of the reporting period represents SCH's maximum 
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No financial assets carry a 
significant exposure to credit risk. 

(i1) Liguiditv risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that SCH will encounter difficulty in meeting its 
financial obligations as they fall due. SCH's exposure to liquidity risk arises 
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. 

SCH's funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the objective of 
meeting business obligations on a timely basis. SCH is dependent on its 
shareholders for appropriate financial support to enable it to meet its obligations 
as and when they fall due. 

All of SCH's liabilities at the reporting date mature within a year or repayable on 
demand. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.2 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.2.6 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(c) Market risks 

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk 

SCH's expose to foreign currency exchange risk is minimal. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

SCH's exposure to interest rate risk is minimal. 

(d) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial instruments at fair value 

As the financial assets and liabilities of SCH are not carried at fair value by any valuation 
method, the fair value hierarchy analysis is not presented. 

Financial instrument other than those carried at fair value 

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value 

The carrying amounts of receivables and payables, cash and cash equivalents 
approximate their fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these financial 
instruments and insignificant impact of discounting. 

8.2.7 Capital Management 

SCH has yet to commence its business operations and relies solely on financial support from its 
shareholders to meet its financial obligations. 

There were no changes in SCH's approach to capital management during the financial year. 

SCH is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.2 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Group Berhad (Cont'd) 

8.2.8 Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Identity of related parties 

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to 
SCH if SCH has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant 
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or 
where SCH and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. 
Related parties may be individuals or other entities. 

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of SCH 
either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all the Directors of 
SCH and certain members of senior management of SCH. 

SCH has related party relationship with a Directors' related party. 

(b) Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related parties transactions is 
disclosed in Notes 8.2.3 and 8.2.5. 

(c) SCH does not have any key management personnel compensation during the financial 
year. 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally lett blank.) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group 

8.3.1 

We set out below the consolidated financial statements of SCH Corporation Group which includes 
its consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position, 
consolidated statement for changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash ftows for the 
four (4) FYE 2010 to FYE 2013. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

<------------------ FYE 31 August --------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

Note RM RM RM RM 

Revenue 8.4.1 32,742,555 45,051,385 55,016,490 60,370,256 
Cost of sales (24,890,070) (33,864,138) (41,313,022) (45,287,395) 
GP 7,852,485 11,187,247 13,703,468 15,082,861 
Other income 935,062 865,224 604,134 542,893 
Administration expenses (5,844,852) (6,117,582) (6,919,762) (7,472,158) 
Finance costs 8.4.2 (468,938) (737,043) (793,054) (719,292) 
Profit before taxation C'P8Tj 8.4.3 2,473,757 5,197,846 6,594,786 7,434,304 
Taxation 8.4.4 (917,712) (1,376,273) (1,887,270) (2,169,318) 
Net profit for the financial year, 

representing total 
comprehensive income for the 
financial year 1,556,045 3,821,573 4,707,516 5,264,986 

Net profit for the 
financial year attributable to: 
Equity holders of the parent 1,551,565 3,821,573 4,707,516 5,264,986 
Non-controlling interest 4,480 

1,556,045 3,821,573 4,707,516 5,264,986 
Key financial ratio: 
Earnings before interest and 

taxation 2,942,695 5,934,889 7,387,840 8,153,596 
Earnings before interest, taxation 

and depreciation 3,721,524 6,778,847 8,154,802 8,963,680 
GP mar9in (%) (a) 23.98 24.83 24.91 24.98 
P8T mar9in (%) 7.56 11.54 11.99 12.31 
Profit after taxation (,'PATj 

mar9in (%) 4.75 8.48 8.56 8.72 
Effective tax rate (%) 37.10 26.48 28.62 29.18 
Gross earnings per share 

C'EPS'j (RM) (b) 0.31 0.66 0.84 0.94 
Net EPS (RM) (c) 0.20 0.48 0.60 0.67 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares 7,880,002 7,880,002 7,880,002 7,880,002 

Notes: 
(a) The GP margin is computed by dividing the GP against the revenue eamed in the respective 

financial years. 
(b) The gross EPS is computed by dividing the PST against the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares. 
(c) The net EPS is computed by dividing the PAT against the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.3.2 Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

<---------------- As at 31 August -----------------> 
Note 2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and 

equipment 8.4.5 12,325,809 12,057,920 11,753,448 12,070,652 
Capital work-in-progress 8.4.6 94,485 
Other investments 8.4.7 1,772,000 1,172,000 112,000 
Deferred tax assets 8.4.17 98,291 

14,097,809 13,229,920 11,963,739 12,165,137 

Current Assets 

Inventories 8.4.8 10,415,181 12,032,571 15,392,473 19,472,882 
Trade receivables 8.4.9 13,150,885 13,938,024 19,316,472 17,709,882 

Other receivables 8.4.10 1,202,880 1,038,861 1,965,709 3,633,273 
Amount owing by Directors 8.4.11 279,394 279,394 

Tax recoverable 43,969 62,587 62,339 116,795 
Fixed deposit with a 

licensed bank 8.4.12 200,800 200,800 200,800 
Cash and bank balances 548,442 2,437,629 1,587,721 1,881,060 

25,640,751 29,989,866 38,525,514 43,014,692 

TOTAL ASSETS 39,738,560 43,219,786 50,489,253 55,179,829 

EQUITY AND LIABILITY 
Equity 
Share capital 8.4.13 7,880,002 7,880,002 7,880,002 7,880,002 
Merger deficit 8.4.14 (1,380,000) (1,380,000) (1,380,000) (1,380,000) 

Retained profits 12,337,778 12,349,351 17,056,867 22,321,853 

Total Equity 18,837,780 18,849,353 23,556,869 28,821,855 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Hire purchase pay abies 8.4.15 758,742 937,516 1,066,570 1,497,109 

Bank borrowings 8.4.16 3,596,289 4,329,006 3,203,958 2,744,636 

Deferred tax liabilities 8.4.17 206,875 17,767 65,600 

4,561,906 5,284,289 4,270,528 4,307,345 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.3.2 Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Cont'd) 

<----------------As at 31 August --------------~ 
Note 2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
Current Liabilities 
Trade payables 8.4.18 9,714,637 11,581,090 11,594,227 12,028,900 
Other payables 8.4.19 836,631 801,383 710,272 1,470,697 

Amount owing to Directors 8.4.11 66,000 139,917 76,524 
Hire purchase payables 8.4.15 530,627 360,393 385,261 557,811 

Lease payables 8.4.20 35,123 

8ank borrowin9s 8.4.16 5,061,613 5,627,296 9,534,549 7,868,642 

Tax payable 94,243 576,065 361,023 124,579 

16,338,874 19,086,144 22,661,856 22,050,629 

Total Liabilities 20,900,780 24,370,433 26,932,384 26,357,974 
TOTAL EQUITY 

AND LIABILITY 39,738,560 43,219,786 50,489,253 55,179,829 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.3.3 Statements of Changes in Equity 

At 1 September 2009 

Net profit for the financial year, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial year 

Acquisition of interest from non-controlling interest 

At 31 AU9ust 2010 

At 1 September 2010 

Net profit for the financial year, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial year 

Dividend paid 

At 31 August 2011 

At 1 September 2011 

Net profit for the financial year, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial year 

At 31 August 2012 

At 1 September 2012 

Net profit for the financial year, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial year 

At 31 AU9ust 2013 

Note 

8.4.21 

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 
Non-Distributable Distributable 

Share Retained 
Capital Merger Deficit Profits Total Equity 

RM RM RM RM 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 10,786,213 17,286,215 

1,551,565 1,551,565 

Non~ 

Controlling 
Interests 

RM 

242,043 

4,480 

(246,523) 

Total Equity 
RM 

17,528,258 

1,556,045 

(246,523) 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 12,337,778 18,837,780 18,837,780 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 12,337,778 

3,821,573 

(3,810,000) 

18,837,780 

3,821,573 

(3,810,000) 

18,837,780 

3,821,573 

(3,810,000) 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 12,349,351 18,849,353 18,849,353 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 12,349,351 18,849,353 18,849,353 

4,707,516 4,707,516 4,707,516 

7,880,002 (J,380,000) 17,056,867 23,556,869 23,~56,869 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 17,056,867 23,556,869 23,556,869 

5,264,986 5,264,986 5,264,986 

7,880,002 (1,380,000) 22,321,853 28,821,855 28,821,855 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.3.4 Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash Flows from Operating 
Activities 

Profit before taxation 

Adjustments for: 

Inventories written off 
8ad debts written off 

Deposit written off 
Other investment written off 
Depreciation of property, 

plant and eqUipment 
Gain on disposal of other 

investments 
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of 

property, plant and 
eqUipment 

Impairment on trade 
receivables 

Interest expenses 
Interest income 

Negative 900dwill expensed 
Property, plant and equipment 

written off 
Reversal of impairment on 

trade receiva bles 
Waiver of debts by director 

Operatin9 profit before workin9 
capital changes 

{lncrease)/Decrease in working 
capital 

Inventories 

Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Trade payables 
Other payables 

Amount owin9 (to )/by directors 

Cash generated from/(used in) 
operations 

<---------------FYE 31 August ----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

2,473,757 5,197,846 6,594,786 7,434,304 

5,087 12,225 
35,531 392,776 70,149 

8,368 
112,000 

778,829 843,958 766,962 810,084 

(5,003) (58,210) (208,047) 

285,934 (4,635) (108,570) (255,986) 

192,228 55,587 46,224 

468,938 737,043 793,054 719,292 
(3,188) (4,288) (775) 

*(50,523) 

2,277 1,816 6,908 2,940 

(632,387) (359,787) (148,980) (45,588) 
(15,000) 

3,549,581 6,746,074 7,747,412 8,904,869 

(3,721,229) (1,622,477) (3,359,902) (3,237,768) 

1,855,483 (820,128) (5,285,055) 1,535,805 
(148,132) 155,651 (926,848) (1,667,564) 

2,568,861 1,866,453 13,137 434,673 
(178,103) (47,484) (91,111) 760,425 

(72 000) 88917 216001 (76524\ 

(99,748) (379,068) (9,433,778) (2,250,953) 

3,854,461 6,367,006 (1,686,366) 6,653,916 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

294 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.3.4 Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

Interest received 
Interest paid 

Tax refund 

Tax paid 

Net cash from/ (used in) 
operating activities 

Cash Flows From Investing 
Activities 
Purchase of property, plant 

and equipment 
Capital work - in- pr09ress 
incurred 

Purchase of other investments 
Proceeds from disposal of 

property, plant and 
equipment 

Proceeds from disposal of 
other investments 

Additional investment in 
subsidiary companies 

Net cash (used in)/from investin9 
activities 

Cash Flows From Financing 
Activities 
Dividend paid 
Drawdown of term loans 
Repayment of term loans 
Repayment of hire purchase 

and lease payables 
(Decrease)/ increase in 

bankers' acceptance and 
trust receipt 

Increase in fixed deposit 
pledged 

Net cash (used in)/from financin9 
activities 

<---------------FYE 31 August ----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

- 3,188 4,288 775 
(468,938) (737,043) (793,054) (719,292) 

3,672 475 7,186 61,022 
(1 033,586) (1,090,416) (2,225,308 (2,357,349) 

(1,498,852) (1,823,796) (3,006,888) (3,014,844) 

2,355,609 4,543,210 (4,693,254) 3,639,072 

(968,017) (93,450) (204,364) (439,381) 

(94,485) 
(1,900,000) 

316,000 91,000 463,236 433,249 

1,605,003 658,210 1,268,047 

(196,000) 

(1,143,014) 655,760 1,526,919 (100,617) 

(3,810,000) 
1,294,000 

(182,694) (1,059,235) (755,548) (554,008) 

(615,474) (597,383) (465,778) (1,119,887) 

(1,932,770) 2,321,468 2,804,532 (838,000) 

(200,800) 

(2,730,938) (2,051,950) 1,583,206 (2,511,895) 

A member of UHY Internationi\l, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

295 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.3 Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.3.4 Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

Net (decrease)/increase in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at beginning of the financial 
year 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at end of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at end of the financial year 
comprises: 

Cash and bank balances 
Fixed deposits with licensed 

banks 
Sank overdrafts 

Less: Fixed deposits pledged to 
licensed banks 

Note:-

<---------------FYE 31 August ----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

(1,518,343) 3,147,020 (1,583,129) 1,026,560 

808,952 (709,391) 2,437,629 854,500 

(709,391) 2,437,629 854,500 1,881,060 

548,442 2,437,629 1,587,721 1,881,060 

200,800 200,800 200,800 
(1,257,833) (733,221) 

(709,391) 2,638,429 1,055,300 2,081,860 

(200,800) (200,800) (200,800) 
(709,391) 2,437,629 854,500 1,881,060 

* The negative goodwH' arose from the acquisition of the minority interest of 6. 67% and 10. (JON from 
SCH Sabah and SCH Sarawak respectively on 6 May 2010. The negative goodwill is illustrate as 
below:-

SCHSabah SCHSarawak Total 
RM RM RM 

Cost of Investment 160,000 36,000 196,000 
Less 
Share Capital 20,001 30,000 50,001 
Retained Earning 165,775 30,747 196,522 
Negative Goodwill (2s..776l (24,747l (50,523l 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group 

8.4.1 Revenue 

<------------------FYE 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Sales of goods and services 32,742,555 45,051,385 55,016,490 60,370,256 
32,742,555 45,051,385 55,016,490 60,370,256 

8.4.2 Finance Costs 

<------------------FYE 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Interest expenses on: 
Bank overdrafts 63,672 66,186 72,931 38,022 
Bankers' acceptances 192,100 236,039 373,684 317,805 
Commitment fee 987 993 1,201 7,677 
Finance lease 5,580 1,861 
Hire purchases 72,331 65,533 73,774 129,180 
Term loans 134,268 366,431 271,464 229,608 

468,938 737,043 793,054 719,292 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.3 Profit before Tax 

Profit before taxation is derived after charging/(crediting): 

<----------------FYE 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Auditors' remuneration 
-Current year 35,300 38,500 38,500 64,000 

-Under provision in prior year 32,100 
Bad debts recovered (107,311) 
Bad debts written off 35,531 392,776 70,149 
Bank interest income (3,188) (4,288) (775) 
Deposit written off 8,368 
Depreciation of property, plant and 

eqUipment 778,829 843,958 766,962 810,084 
Directors' remuneration 

- Fees 36,000 36,000 
- Salary & other emoluments 684,588 583,800 864,000 864,100 
- EPF 75,744 67,872 164,160 164,160 

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment 285,934 (4,635) (108,570) (255,986) 

Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange 
- realised 3,105 123 (2,771) (399,943) 

Gain on disposal of other investment (5,003) (58,210) (208,047) 
Inventories written off 5,087 12,225 
Invesbnent written off 112,000 
Impairment on trade receivables 192,228 55,587 46,224 
Negative goodwill expensed (50,523) 
Property, plant and equipment written off 2,277 1,816 6,908 2,940 
Rental income 
- related parties (72,000) (72,000) (72,000) (72,000) 
- third parties (272,044) (117,776) (8,550) (5,600) 

Rental for staff accommodation 9,108 
Rental of motor vehicles 6,465 25,860 
Rental of premises 39,000 39,600 199,425 189,850 
Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (632,387) (359,787) (148,980) (45,588) 
Waiver of debts by Directors (15,000) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.4 Taxation 

<----------------FYE 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
Current income tax: 

Current year provision 844,133 1,548,059 1,994,294 2,091,800 
(Over)/under provision in prior years (1,598) 17,322 9,034 (86,373) 

842,535 1,565,381 2,003,328 2,005,427 
Deferred tax: 

Relating to origination and reversal of 
temporary differences 75,177 (23,064) (116,058) 43,500 

(Over)/Under provision in prior years (166,044) 120,391 
75,177 (189,108) (116,058) 163,891 

Tax expense for the financial year 917,712 1,376,273 1,887,270 2,169,318 

Income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% of the estimated assessable profit for 
the financial years under review. The effective tax rate of 37.1%, 26.48%, 28.62% and 29.18% 
for FYE 2010, FYE 2011, FYE 2012 and FYE 2013 respectively is higher than the statutory tax 
rate due to certain expenses not deductable for tax purposes. 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of SCH Corporation Group is as 
follows: 

<----------------FYE 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Profit before taxation 2,473,757 5,197,846 6,594,786 7,434,304 

Taxation at statutory tax rate of 25% 618,439 1,299,462 1,648,697 1,858,576 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 314,361 1,164,496 255,745 234,524 
Income not subject to tax (33,802) (990,644) (13,350) 
Deferred tax assets not recognised 63,373 55,172 42,200 
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 

losses and capital allowances (43,061) (3,491) (12,856) 
(Over)/Under provision of income tax in prior 

year (1,598) 17,322 9,034 (86,373) 
(Over)/Under provision for prior year 

deferred taxation (166,044) 120,391 
Tax expense for the financial year 917,712 1,376,273 1,887,270 2,169,318 

SCH Corporation Group has elected to single tier company income tax system on 5 August 2011. 

SHC Corporation Group has unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances amounting to 
approximately RM351,000 (2012:RM252,400;2011:RM381,200,201O:RM236,837) and RM278,300 
(2012:RM208,100;2011:RM164,200,2010:RM136,065) available for carry forward to set off 
against future taxable profits. The said amounts are subject to approval by the tax authorities. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment 

2013 
Cost 
At 1 5eptember 

2012 
Additions 
Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 AU9uSt 
2013 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

At 1 September 
2012 

Charge for the 
financial year 

Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 AU9uSt 

2013 

Carrying 
Amount 
At 31 AU9ust 

2013 

Freehold 
land and 
building 

RM 

446,200 

446,200 

68,724 

3,124 

71,848 

374,352 

At cost 
Freehold Leasehold Furniture 
land and land and and Motor Office Plant and Tools and 
building building fittings vehicles equipment machinery Renovation equipment Total 

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM 

4,844,291 5,952,923 184,547 3,940,922 343,958 225,424 322,495 7,826 16,268,586 
219 1,239,825 61,372 3,675 2,400 1,307,491 

(130,000) (460,422) (55,000) (645,422) 
(250) (42,774) (27,481) 70,505 

4,844,291 5,822,923 184,516 4,677,551 377,849 174,099 322,495 10,226 16,860,150 

717,056 

72,645 

430,055 

65,317 
(7,222) 

136,434 2,424,562 217,372 213,375 301,187 6,373 4,515,138 

7,143 619,621 32,244 5,417 4,234 339 810,084 
(405,938) (54,999) (468,159) 

(249) (42,773) (24,543) (67,565) 

789,701 488,150 143,328 2,595,472 225,073 163,793 305,421 6,712 4,789,498 

4,054,590 5,334,773 41,188 2,082,079 152,776 10,306 17p74 3,514 12,070,652 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment 

2012 
Cost 
At 1 September 

2011 
Additions 
Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 August 
2012 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

At 1 September 
2011 

Charge for the 
financial year 

Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 August 

2012 

Carrying 
Amount 
At 31 August 

2012 

Freehold 
land and 
building 

RM 

446,200 

446,200 

65,600 

3,124 

68,724 

377,476 

Freehold Leasehold 
land and land and 
building building 

RM RM 

4,844,291 5,952,923 

Furniture 
and Motor 

fittings vehicles 
RM RM 

At cost 

Office Plant and 
equipment machinery 

RM RM 

Tools and 
Renovatior equipment 

RM RM 
Total 

RM 

183,417 4,069,247 327,905 861,733 322,495 7,826 17,016,037 
2,970 761,330 57,564 2,200 824,064 

(889,655) (880) (569,077) (1,459,612) 
(1,840) (40,631) (69,432) (111,903) 

4,844,291 5,952,923 184,547 3,940,922 343,958 225,424 322,495 7,826 16,268,586 

644,411 364,080 130,601 2,607,338 224,027 619,110 296,955 5,995 4,958,117 

72,645 65,975 7,513 579,845 28,109 5,141 4,232 378 766,962 
(762,621) (879) (341,446) (1,104,946) 

(1,680) (33,885) (69,430) (104,995) 

717,056 430,055 136,434 2,424,562 217,372 213,375 301,187 6;373 4,515,138 

4,127,235 5,522,868 48)13 1,516,360 126,586 12,049 21,308 1,453 11.753,448 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2011 
Cost 
At 1 September 

2010 
Additions 
Disposals 
Written off 
Reclassification 
At 31 August 
2011 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

At 1 September 
2010 

Charge for the 
financial year 

Disposals 
Written off 
Reclassification 
At 31 August 

2011 

Carrying 
Amount 
At 31 August 

2011 

Freehold 
land and 
building 

RM 

446,200 

446,200 

62,476 

3,124 

65,600 

380,600 

Freehold Leasehold 
land and land and 
building building 

RM RM 

4,863,291 6,023,923 

(90,000) 

Furniture 
and 

fittings 
RM 

188,785 
1,035 
(500) 

Motor 
vehicles 

RM 

3,491,816 
652,033 
(74,602) 

At cost 

Office Plant and 
equipment machinery 

RM 

334,613 
11,182 

RM 

927,968 

(20,868) (66,065) 

Tools and 
Renovation equipment 

RM RM 

319,042 8,184 

Total 
RM 

16,603,822 
664,250 

(165,102) 
(86,933) 

(19,000) 19,000 (5,903) __ 2,978 (170) 3,453 ___~ 

4,844,291 5,952,923 183,417 4,069,247 327,905 861,733 322,495 7,826 17,016,037 

531,132 344,112 121,230 2,097,460 212,680 612,175 290,713 6,035 4,278,013 

72,645 65,984 8,099 586,876 27,423 73,167 6,245 395 843,958 
(3,636) (500) (74,601) (78,737) 

(19,053) (66,064) (85,117) 
40,634 (42,380) 1,772 (2,397) 2,977 (1681 (3) (435) 

644,411 364,080 130,601 2,607,338 224,027 619,110 296,955 5,995 4,958,117 

4,199,880 5,588,843 52,816 1,461,909 103,878 242,623 25,540 1,831 12,057,920 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2010 
Cost 
At 1 September 

2009 
Additions 
Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 AU9ust 

2010 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

At 1 September 
2009 

Charge for the 
financial year 

Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 AU9ust 

2010 

Carrying 
amount 
At 31 AU9ust 

2010 

Freehold 
land and 
building 

RM 

446,200 

446,200 

59,352 

3,124 

62,476 

383,724 

Freehold 
land and 
building 

RM 

5,037,291 

(174,000) 

4,863,291 

493,287 

72,645 
(34,800) 

Leasehold 
land and 
building 

RM 

1,900,890 
4,392,192 
(269,159) 

At cost 

Furniture Motor Office Plant and Tools and 
and fittings vehicles equipment machinery Renovation equipment Total 

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM 

185,609 2,822,815 324,954 1,545,818 300,072 7,534 12,571,183 
3,176 704,841 22,488 5,700 18,970 650 5,148,017 

(35,840) (621,550) (1,100,549) 
(12,829) (2,000) (14,829) 

6,023,923 188,785 3,491,816_ 334,613 927,968 319,042 __ 1l,184 16,603,822 

295,406 

66,202 
(17,496) 

112,142 1,616,040 

9,088 517,259 
(35,839) 

196,431 947,587 284,467 5,639 4,010,351 

28,061 75,808 6,246 396 778,829 
(410,480) (498,615) 

(11,812) (740) (12,552) 

531,132 344,112 121,230 2,097,460 212,680 612,175 290,713 6,035 4,278,013 

4,332,159 5,679,811 67,555 1,394,356 121,933 315,793 28,329 2,149 12,325,809 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

(a) The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase and 
lease arrangements are as follows: -

Motor vehicles 
Plant and machinery 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

1,282,432 
295,920 

1,578,352 

1,398,921 

1,398,921 

1,411,237 1,416,651 

1,411,237 1.416,651 

(b) The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment acquired under term loan is as 
follows: -

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Leasehold land and building 4,349,628 4,305,263 4,260,897 4,216,532 
4,349,628 4,305,263 4,260,897 4,216,532 

(c) The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the SCH Corporation Group 
pledged to licensed banks as securities for credit facilities granted to the subsidiary 
companies as disclosed in Note 8.4.16 of this report are as follows: -

Freehold land and building 
Leasehold land and building 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM 

4,341,649 
5,350,687 
9,692,336 

RM 

4,272,800 
5,290,256 
9,563,056 

RM 

3,826,475 
5,229,834 
9,056,309 

RM 

3,760,751 
5,169,414 
8,930,165 

(d) The aggregate additional cost for the property, plant and equipment of the SCH 
Corporation Group under hire purchase, term loan and cash payments are as follows: -

Aggregate costs 
Less: Hire purchase financing 
Less: Term loan financing 
Cash payments 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM 

5,148,017 
(610,000) 

(3,570,000) 
968,017 

RM 

664,250 
(570,800) 

93,450 

RM 

824,064 
(619,700) 

204,364 

RM 

1,307,491 
(868,110) 

439,381 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

(e) The freehold land and building of SCH Corporation Group with carrying amount of RM 
374,352 (2012: RM377,476 ;2011: RM380,600; 2010: RM383,724) was revalued by the 
Directors based on open market value carried out by an independent firm of professional 
valuers on 10 September 1996. 

Freehold land and building of SCH Corporation Group have not been revalued since they 
were first revolved in 1996. The Directors have not adopted a policy of regular 
revaluations of such assets and no later valuation has been recorded. As permitted under 
the transitional provisions of IAS16 (Revised). Property, plant and equipment, there 
assets continue to be stated at the 1996 valuation less accumulated depreciation. 

(f) The remaining period of the leasehold land and buildings ranged from 62 to 910 years 
(2012: 63 to 911 years ;2011: 64 to 912 years; 2010: 65 to 913 years). 

8.4.6 Capital Work-In-Progress 

<---------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

At 1 September 
Additions 
At 31 August 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

94,485 
94,485 

This is in relation to expenses incurred for the construction of a factory building located at Lot 35, 
Jalan 0 1/1, Taman Cheras Jaya, 43200 Cheras, Selangor 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.7 

8.4.8 

Other Investments 

<--------------------As at 31 August--------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
In Malaysia 
At cost 
Club membership 

At 1 Septemberj31 August 112,000 112,000 112,000 112,000 
Written off (112,000) 

112,000 112,000 112,000 
Unit trusts 

At 1 September 1,360,000 1,660,000 1,060,000 
Additions 1,900,000 
Disposals (1,600,000) (600,000) (1,060,000) 
At 31 August 1,660,000 1,060,000 

1,772,000 1,172,000 112,000 
At market value 
Unit trusts 

At 31 August 1,749,627 1,239,689 

Inventories 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

At cost: 
Finished goods 10,415,181 12,032,571 15,392,473 19,472,882 

As at 31 August 2013, SCH Corporation Group had inventories written off amounted RM12,225 
(2012:Nil, 2011:5,087 201O:Nil) 

The cost of inventories of SCH Corporation Group recognised as an expense during the year was 
as follows:-

<-----------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Costs of Inventories 23,373,747 32,538,406 39,732,583 43,206,622 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.9 Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables 
- Related parties 
- Third parties 

Less: Accumulated impairment 

Trade receivable turnover (days)* 
Third parties 

Note: 

<-----------------As at 31 August--------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

5,230,847 4,902,718 3,723,400 1,398,447 
8,549,658 9,305,139 15,769,512 16,488,511 

13,780,505 14,207,857 19,492,912 17,886,958 
(629,620) (269,833) (176,440) (177,076) 

13,150,885 13,938,024 19,316,472 17,709,882 

122 89 102 112 

* Trade receivables turnover day is computed by dividing average trade receivables (third parties) over 
sales to third parties x 365 days 

Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair value 
on initial recognition. 

SCH Corporation Group's normal trade credit terms range from 150 days and 180 days for FYE 
2010 to FYE 2013. Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 

Trade receivable turnover days for SCH Corporation Group reduced from 122 days in FYE 2010 to 
89 days in FYE 2011 was mainly attributable to the increase in sales from the quarry machinery 
and quarry eqUipment and reconditioned quarry machinery where most of their customers utilised 
banking facilities to purchase. 

Trade receivable turnover days for SCH Corporation Group increased from 89 days in FYE 2011 to 
102 days in FYE 2012 was mainly due to higher billing issued toward the financial year end which 
also included two (2) units of brand new quarry machinery sold in July 2012 amounted to 
approximately RM 1. 73 million. 

Trade receivable turnover days for SCH Corporation Group increased from 102 days in FYE 2012 
to 112 days in FYE 2013 was mainly due to the sales of two (2) units of quarry machinery in FYE 
2012 amounted to RM2.15 million to customer at a specific credit terms of two (2) to three (3) 
years. As at the 31 August 2013, approximately RM1.09 million of these specific trade receivables 
have been collected which represents 51 % of the total sales of two (2) units of quarry machinery. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.9 Trade Receivables (Cont'd) 

Movements in impairment during the financial year are as follows: -

At be9innin9 of the year 
Charge for the year 
Reversal of impairment losses 
At end of the year 

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
1,069,779 629,620 269,833 176,440 

192,228 55,587 46,224 
(632,387) (359,787) (148,980) (45,588) 
629,620 269,833 176,440 177,076 

Analysis of the trade receivables ageing are as follows: 

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Neither past due nor impaired 12,013,886 12,849,571 17,744,874 15,406,586 
Past due less than 30 days not impaired 150,907 145,993 358,193 293,526 
Past due for more than 31 to 60 days 

not impaired 226,398 158,122 138,136 224,086 
Past due for more than 60 days not 

impaired 759,694 784,338 1,075,269 1,785,684 
13,150,885 13,938,024 19,316,472 17,709,882 

Impaired 629,620 269,833 176,440 177,076 
13,780,505 14,207,857 19,492,912 17,886,958 

As at 31 August 2013, trade receivables of RM17,709,882 (2012:RM19,316,472 
2011:RM13,938,024, 201O:RM13,150,885) were past due but no impaired. Theses relate to a 
number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. 

The trade receivables of SCH Corporation Group that are individually assessed to be impaired 
amounting to RMl77,076 (2012:RM176,440, 2011:RM269,833, 2010: RM629,620) respectively, 
related to customers that are in financial difficulties, have defaulted on payment and or have 
disputed on the billings. These balances are expected to be recovered through the debts 
recovery process. 

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good 
payment records with SCH Corporation Group. None of SCH Corporation Group's trade 
receivables that neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial year 
under review. 

SCH Corporation Group has not made impairment on some of its past due receivables as the 
amount was mainly due from related parties within SCH Corporation Group and the Directors are 
of the view that the receivables are recoverable. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.10 Other Receivables 

<-------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

Other receiva bles 
- Related parties 
- Third parties 

Deposits 
Prepayments 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

332,799 726,230 1.199,670 1,937,402 
679,324 49,008 74,130 932,021 

1,012,123 775,238 1,273,800 2,868,423 
111,166 254,004 141,038 127,038 
79,591 9,619 550,871 637,812 

1,202,880 1,038,861 1,965,709 3,633,273 

SCH Corporation Group has not recognised any impairment loss on receivables that are past due 
at the end of financial year, as there has not been significant change in credit quality and these 
amounts are still considered recoverable. 

Other receivables are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair value 
on initial recognition. 

Other receivables from related parties consisted of expenses paid on behalf of SCHWM, SCHME 
and Italiaworld. 

DepOSits mainly consisted of the deposits paid to acquire a vacant land amounting to RM4.39 
million located at Lot No. 35 (PT No. 23677), Jalan 1/1, Kawasan Perusahaan Cheras Jaya, 
Balakong ("Land''). The acquisition of the Land was completed in April 2010. 

Prepayment in FYE 2013 mainly consisted of the listing expense incurred in the year in relation to 
the Group's listing exercise. 

8.4.11 Amount Owing by! (to) Directors 

These represent unsecured, interest free advances and repayment on demand. Subsequent to 
FYE 2013, there is no amount owing by directors as at Latest Practicable Date ("LPD''). 

8.4.12 Fixed Deposit with a Licensed Bank 

The fixed deposit of SCH Corporation Group has been pledged with a licensed bank as security for 
credit facilities granted to the SCH Corporation Group as disclosed in Note 8.4.16 of this report. 

The interest rate and maturity of the fixed deposit is 3.5% (2012: 3.15%; 2011: 3.15%; 2010: 
Nil) per annum and 365 days (2012: 365 days ;2011: 365 days; 2010: Nil) respectively. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.13 Share Capital 

Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each 
Authorised 

Issued and fully paid 

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 

7,880,002 7,880,002 7,880,002 7,880,002 

The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as and when dedared by SCH 
Corporation Group. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank 
equally with regard to SCH Corporation Group's residual asset. 

8.4.14 Merger Deficit 

The merger deficit arises from the difference between the nominal value of shares issued by SCH 
Corporation Group and the nominal value of shares of subsidiary companies acquired under the 
pooling of interests method of accounting. 

8.4.1S Hire Purchase Payables 

(a) Minimum hire purchase 

(b) 

payments 
Within one year 
Between one and five years 
After five years 

Less: Future finance charges 
Present value of hire purchase 

liabilities 

Present value of hire 
purchase liabilities 

Within one year 
Between one and five years 
After five years 

Analyse as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Repayable after twelve months 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

586,174 418,417 455,770 674,695 
781,836 1,017,450 1,145,151 1,614,102 
48,308 

1,416,318 1,435,867 1,600,921 2,288,797 
(126,949) (137,958) (149,090) (233,877) 

1,289.369 1,297,909 1,451,831 2,054,920 

530,627 360,393 385,261 557,811 
711,076 937,516 1,066,570 1,497,109 
47,666 

1,289,369 1,297,909 1,451,831 2,054,920 

530,627 360,393 385,261 557,811 
758,742 937,516 1,066,570 1,497,109 

1,289,369 1,297,909 1,451,831 2,054,920 

The hire purchase liabilities interest is charged at rates ranging from 2.10% to 4.16% (2012: 
2.40% to 3.90%; 2011: 2.33% to 3.90%; 2010: 4.40% to 7.80%) per annum. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.16 Bank Borrowings 

<-------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
Secured 
Bankers' acceptances 
Bank overdrafts 
Term loans 
Trust receipts 

Analyse as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Secured 

Bankers' acceptances 
Bank overdrafts 
Term loans 
Trust receipts 

Repayable after twelve months 
Secured 
Term Loans 

3,085,000 
1,257,833 
4,315,069 

8,657,902 

3,085,000 
1,257,833 

718,780 

5,061,613 

3,596,289 
8,657,902 

5,010,000 8,211,000 
733,221 

4,549,834 3,794,286 
396,468 

9,956,302 12,738,507 

5,010,000 8,211,000 
733,221 

220,828 590,328 
396,468 

5,627,296 9,534,549 

4,329,006 3,203,958 
9,956,302 12,738,507 

The above credit facilities obtained from licensed banks are secured as follows: -

SCHSB 

UOB Bank Berhad (Term Loan) 

7,373,000 

3,240,278 

10,613,278 

7,373,000 

495,642 

7,868,642 

2,744,636 
10,613,278 

(a) First and second charges over land located at Lot No. 35, (PT 23677), Jalan 1/1, Kawasan 
Perusahaan Cheras Jaya, Balakong. 

CIMB Bank Berhad (Multi-Option Line) 

(a) General facility agreement for RM1 million; 

(b) Fourth charge on PTD 44741, Mukim of Pulai, District of Johor Bahru; 

(c) Upfront fixed deposits of RM200,OOO; 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.16 Bank Borrowings (Cont'd) 

SCHSB (Cont'd) 

CIMB Bank Berhad (Multi-Option Line) 

(d) Joint and several guarantee for RMl million by Mr. Lau Mong Ling, Mr. Wong Sin Chin 
and Mr. Yeen Yoon Hin; and 

(e) Secured against existing fixed deposits. 

Public Bank Berhad (Term Loan, Trade Lines) 

(a) First party charge over 1 1/2 storey semi detached factory known as No.3, Jalan Teras 
3, Taman Industri Selesa Jaya, 43300 Seri Kembangan, Balakong, Selangor; 

(b) First party charge over vacant land known as No.5, Jalan Teras 3, Taman Industri Selesa 
Jaya, 43300 Sen Kembangan, Balakong, Selangor; 

(c) First party charge over vacant land known as No.7, Jalan Teras 3, Taman Industri Selesa 
Jaya, 43300 Seri Kembangan, Balakong, Selangor; 

(d) Jointly and severally guaranteed by Mr. Lau Mong Ling, Mr. Wong Sin Chin and Mr. Yeen 
Yoon Hin; and 

(e) Corporate guarantee by SCH Corporation. 

SCH (Kuantan) 

Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad (Term Loan) 

(a) Joint and several guarantee for RM44S,000 by Mr. Lau Mong Ling, Mr. Wong Sin Chin 
and Mr. Yeen Yoon Hin; 

(b) Corporate guarantee for RM44S,000 by SCH Corporation; and 

(c) Guarantee cover by Credit Guarantee Corporation (M) Berhad is RM311,500. 

Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad (Term Loan) 

(a) Joint & several guarantee for RM349,OOO by Mr. Lau Mong Ling and Mr. Wong Sin Chin; 

(b) Corporate guarantee by SCH Corporation for RM349,000; and 

Guarantee cover by Credit Guarantee Corporation (M) Berhad for RM244,300. 
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S.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

S.4.16 Sank Sorrowings (Cont'd) 

Maturity of bank borrowings is as follows: -

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Within one year 5,061,613 5,627,296 9,534,549 7,868,642 
Between one and two years 101,769 245,799 482,829 427,691 
Between two and three years 110,539 271,729 425,154 253,866 
8etween three and four years 120,079 274,805 235,412 240,818 
Between four and five years 130,457 141,461 241,155 253,871 
After five years 3,133,445 3,395,212 1,819,408 1,568,390 

8,657,902 9,956,302 12,738,507 10,613,278 

Range of interest rates per annum during the financial year are as follows: -

Bankers' acceptances 
Trust receipts 
Bank overdrafts 
Term loans 

S.4.17 Deferred Taxation 

At beginning of the year 
Recognised in statement of 

comprehensive income (Note 8.4.4) 
At end of the year 

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

% % % % 

3.70 - 5.05 3.60 - 4.69 3.60 - 4.69 3.62-4.42 
7.35- 7.60 

6.35 6.65 6.65 6.65 
8.30 4.60 - 8.60 4.60 - 8.60 4.60-8.60 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

131,698 206,875 17,767 (98,291) 

75,177 (189,108) (116,058) 163,891 
206,875 17,767 (98,291) 65,600 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.17 Deferred Taxation (Cont'd) 

The components and movements of deferred tax liability/ (assets) of SCH Corporation Group are 
as follows:-

Accelerate 
d capital 

allowances Total 
RM RM 

At 1 September 2009 131,698 131,698 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 75,177 75,177 
At 31 AU9ust 2010 206,875 206,875 

At 1 September 2010 206,875 206,875 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income (189,108) (189,108) 
At 31 AU9ust 2011 17,767 17,767 

At 1 September 2011 17,767 17,767 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income (116,058) (116,058) 
At 31 AU9ust 2012 (98,291) (98,291) 

At 1 September 2012 (98,291) (98,291) 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 163,891 163,891 
At 31 AU9ust 2013 65,600 65,600 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following temporary differences: 

Decelerated/(Accelerated) capital 
allowances 

Unused tax losses 
Unutilised capital allowances 

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

30,617 
236,837 
136,065 
403,519 

381,323 
164,246 
545,569 

252,400 
208,100 
460,500 

351,000 
278,300 
629,300 

The unused tax losses and un utilised capital allowance are available indefinitely for offset against 
future taxable profits of SCH Corporation Group in which those items arose. 
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.18 Trade Payables 

Trade payables 
- Related parties 
- Third parties 

Trade payables turnover (days)* 
- Third parties 

Note: 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

4,351,165 
5,363,472 
9,714,637 

116 

5,211,971 
6,369,119 

11,581,090 

91 

6,367,092 
5,227,135 

11,594,227 

80 

4,283,558 
7,745,342 

12,028,900 

77 

* Trade payab/es turnover day is computed by dividing average trade pay abies (third parties) over 
purchases {rom third parties x 365 days. 

SCH Corporation Group's turnover days for third parties are below SCH Corporation Group's 
normal trade credit terms granted ranging from 150 days and 180 days for FYE 2010 to FYE 
2013. Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 

The trade payable turnover days for SCH Corporation Group reduced from 116 days in FYE 2010 
to 77 days in FYE 2013 was mainly due to SCH Corporation Group utilised trade facilities from 
banks to purchase quarry machinery & quarry equipment. 

8.4.19 Other Payables 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

Other payables 
Accruals 
Deposits 
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310,477 
349,554 
176,600 
836,631 

142,463 
361,895 
297,025 
801,383 

491,095 
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710,272 
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.20 Lease Payables 

(aJ Minimum lease payments 
Within one year 
Between one and five years 

Less: Future finance charges 
Present value of lease pay abIes 

(bJ Present value of lease payables 
Within one year 
Between one and five years 

Analyse as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Repayable after twelve months 

<-----------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

36,984 

36,984 
(1,861) 
35,123 

35,123 

35,123 

35,123 

35,123 

SCH Corporation Group's finance lease is fully settled in FYE 2011. The effective interest rate on 
the finance lease of SCH Corporation Group was ranging from 7.0% to 11.2% per annum for FYE 
2010. 

8.4.21 Dividend 

A first interim single tier tax exempt 
dividend of 25.51 sen on 7,880,002 
ordinary shares of RMl.OO each in 
respect of financial year ended 31 
August 2011 

A second interim single tier tax exempt 
dividend of 22.84 sen on 7,880,002 
ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in 
respect of financial year ended 31 
August 2011 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

2,010,000 

1,800,000 
3,810,000 
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.22 Staff Cost 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Staff costs (excludin9 Directors) 1,913,400 2,028,472 2,092,264 2,284,590 

Included in the staff costs of SCH Corporation Group are contributions made to the Employees 
Provident Fund under a defined contribution plan for SCH Corporation Group amounting to RM 
236,204 (2012: RM201,619; 2011: RM213,700; 2010: RM198,312). 

8.4.23 Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Identifying related parties 

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to 
the SCH Corporation Group if the SCH Corporation Group has the ability, directly or 
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant infiuence over the party in making 
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the SCH Corporation Group and 
the party are subject to common control or common significant infiuence. Related parties 
may be individuals or other entities. 

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of SCH 
Corporation Group either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all 
the Directors of SCH Corporation Group. 

SCH Corporation Group has related party relationships with its subsidiary companies, 
Directors' related companies and key management personnel. 

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, SCH 
Corporation Group had the following transactions with related parties during the financial 
year: 

Purchases: -
SCHME* 
SCHWM* 
Speed Volta Belt Sdn Bhd 

<-----------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

4,223,032 
3,001,468 
2,749,849 
9,974,349 

5,300,392 
3,513,404 
1,742,746 

10,556,542 

8,530,316 
4,604,900 

13,135,216 

8,143,356 
4,222,079 

12,365,435 
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.23 Related Party Disclosures (Cont'd) 

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, SCH 
Corporation Group had the following transactions with related parties during the financial 
year (Cont'd): 

<-----------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Alteration charges: -
SCHWM* 180,449 105,164 19,950 45,130 

Sales: -
SCHME* 5,665,052 7,359,215 8,679,087 6,021,090 
SCHWM* 224,131 146,206 763,589 125,563 
Italiaworld* 343,023 736,555 793,789 1,569,612 
Speed Volta 8elt Sdn 8hd 3,598,286 1,428,970 

9,830,492 9,670,946 10,236,465 7,716,265 

Rental received/receivable: -
SCHWM* 93,600 91,800 72,000 72,000 

Note: 
* These companies are the subsidiaries of SCH under the acquisition in the Listing Scheme. 

(c) Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 
FYE 2010, FYE 2011, FYE 2012 and FYE 2013 are disclosed in Notes 8.4.9, 8.4.10, 8.4.11 
8.4.18 and 8.4.19 of this report. 

(d) Information regarding compensation of key management personnel is as follows: 

~-----------Years Ended 31 August ------------> 

Fees 
Salaries and other short term 

employee benefits 
Defined contribution plan 

A member of UHY Internationi\l, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

318 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

36,000 

684,588 
75,744 

796,332 

36,000 

583,800 
67,872 

687,672 

864,000 
164,160 

1,028,160 

864,000 
164,160 

1,028,160 
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.23 Related Party Disclosures (Cont'd) 

(d) Information regarding compensation of key management personnel is as follows (Cont'd): 

Key management personnel include personnel having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including any Director of 
SCH Corporation Group. 

8.4.24 Contingent Liabilities 

Unsecured 
Corporate guarantee for credit facilities 

granted to related parties 
- Limit of guarantee 
- Amount utilised 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments 

<----------------As at 31 August----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

5,000,000 
971,706 

5,000,000 
783,228 

5,800,000 
1,033,522 

4,800,000 
1,239,000 

Certain comparative figures have not been presented for FYE 2010 by virtue of the exemption 
given in paragraph 44AA of FRS 7, which is effective for annual periods beginning on and after 1 
January 2010. 

(a) Classification of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measure on an ongoing basis either at fair value 
or at amortised cost. The principal accounting policies in Note 6.1 describe how the classes 
of the financial instruments are measured and how income and expenses including fair 
values gain or loss are recognised. 

The analysis of the financial assets and financial liabilities in the statements of financial 
position by the class of financial instruments to which they are aSSigned and therefore by 
the measurement basis are as follows: -
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.2S Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(a) Classification of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Financial 
liabilities 

Available- at 
for-sale Loans and amortised 

receivables cost Total 
RM RM RM RM 

2013 
Financial Assets 
Other investments 
Trade receivables 17,709,882 17,709,882 
Other receivables 3,633,273 3,633,273 
Fixed deposit with a 

license bank 200,800 200,800 
Cash and bank balances 1,881,060 1,881,060 
Total financial assets 23,425,015 23,425,015 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 12,028,900 12,028,900 
Other payables 1,470,697 1,470,697 
Hire purchase payables 2,054,920 2,054,920 
Bank borrowings 10,613,278 10,613,278 
Total financial liabilities 26,167,795 26,167,795 

2012 
Financial Assets 
Other investment 112,000 112,000 
Trade receivables 19,316,472 19,316,472 
Other receivables 1,965,709 1,965,709 
Fixed deposit with a 

license bank 200,800 200,800 
cash and bank balances 1,587,721 1,587,721 
Total financial assets 112,000 23,070,702 23,182,702 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 11,594,227 11,594,227 
Other payables 710,272 710,272 
Amount owing to Directors 76,524 76,524 
Hire purchase payabJes 1,451,831 1,451,831 
Bank borrowings 12,738,507 12,738,507 
Total financial liabilities 26,571,361 26,571,361 
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8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(a) Classification of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Financial 
liabilitIes 

at 
Available- Loans and amortised 

for-sale receivables cost Total 
RM RM RM RM 

2011 
Financial Assets 
Other investments 1,172,000 1,172,000 
Trade receivables 13,938,024 13,938,024 
Other receiva bles 1,038,861 1,038,861 
Amount owing by Directors 279,394 279,394 
Fixed deposit with a 

license bank 200,800 200,800 
Cash and bank balances 2,437,629 2,437,629 
Total financial assets 1,172,000 17,894,708 19,066,708 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 11,581,090 11,581,090 
Other payables 801,383 801,383 
Amount owing to Directors 139,917 139,917 
Hire purchase payables 1,297,909 1,297,909 
Bank borrowings 9,956,302 9,956,302 
Total financial liabilities 23,776,601 23,776,601 

2010 
Financial Assets 
Other investments 1,772,000 1,772,000 
Trade receivables 13,150,885 13,150,885 
Other receivables 1,202,880 1,202,880 
Amount owing by Directors 279,394 279,394 
Cash and bank balances 548,442 548,442 
Total financial assets 1,772,000 15,181,601 16,953,601 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 9,729,637 9,729,637 
Other payables 836,631 836,631 
Amount owing to Directors 51,000 51,000 
Hire purchase payables 1,289,369 1,289,369 
Lease payables 35,123 35,123 
Bank borrowings 8,657,902 8,657,902 
Total financial liabilities 20,599,662 20,599,662 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

SCH Corporation Group's financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate 
financial resources are available for the development of SCH Corporation Group"s 
operations whilst managing its financial risks, including foreign currency exchange risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flows risk. SCH Corporation Group' 
operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and SCH 
Corporation Group's policy is not to engage in speculative transactions. 

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure to the 
abovementioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the 
management of these risks. 

(i) Credit risk 

Financial assets that are primarily exposed to credit risks are receivables, 
deposits and cash and bank balances. 

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to SCH Corporation Group if a customer 
or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. 
The Group's exposure to credit risk arises principally from the inability of its 
customers to make payments when due. SCH Corporation Group's exposure to 
credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiary companies 
and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiary 
companies. 

SCH Corporation Group has adopted a poliCY of only dealing with creditworthy 
counterparties and deposit with banks and financial institutions with good credit 
rating. The exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis via SCH 
Corporation Group's management reporting procedures and action will be taken 
for long outstanding debts. 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statement of 
financial position at the end of the reporting period represents SCH Corporation 
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No 
financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk. 

(ii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that SCH Corporation Group will encounter 
difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. SCH Corporation 
Group's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the 
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 

SCH Corporation Group s funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the objective of meeting business obligations on a 
timely basis. SCH Corporation Group monitors its cash flows and ensures that sufficient funding is in place to meet the obligations as 
and when they fall due 

2013 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Hire purchases payables 
Sank borrowings 
Total financialljabiljties 

2012 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Within 1 
year or on 

demand 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years 
RM RM RM RM RM 

Total 
After 5 contractual 

years cashflows 
RM RM 

Total 
carrying 
amount 

RM 

12,028,900 12,028,900 12,028,900 
1,470,697 1,470,697 1,470,697 

609,766 580,473 566,200 267,979 79,903 2,104,321 2,054,920 
8,033,785 562,522 561,295 350,846 344,172 1,798,600 11,651,220 10,613,278 

22,143,148 1,142,995 1,127,495 618,825 424,075 1.798,600 27,255,138 26,167,795 

11,594,227 
710,272 

11,594,227 
710,272 

11,594,227 
710,272 

76,524 76,524 76,524 
455,770 417,811 389,972 276,423 60,945 1,600,921 1,451,831 

9,730,663 646,069 561,295 350,846 344,172 2,138,054 13,771,099 12,738,507 
22,567,456 1,063,880 951,267 627,269 405,117 2,138,054 27.753,043 26,571,361 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 

2011 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Sank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

2010 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Finance lease payable 
Sank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Within 1 
year or on 

demand 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years 
RM RM RM RM RM 

11,581,090 
801,383 

Total 
After 5 contractual 

years cashflows 
RM RM 

11,581,090 
801,383 

Total 
carrying 
amount 

RM 

11,581,090 
801,383 

139,917 139,917 139,917 
418,417 337,283 294,039 249,824 135,304 1,435,857 1,297,909 

5,433,580 785,442 545,059 538,775 384,574 2,482,225 11,271,755 9,955,302 
19,374,387 1,123,725 940,108 788,599 520,978 2,482,225 25,230,023 23,775,501 

9,714,537 
835,531 

9,714,537 
835,531 

9,714,537 
835,531 

55,000 55,000 55,000 
585,175 287,728 208,438 155,270 120,399 48,308 1,415,318 1,289,359 
35,984 35,984 35,984 

5,115,851 381,492 381,492 381,492 381,492 5,159,330 11,812,159 8,512,902 
15,357,288 559,220 589,930 545,752 501,891 5,217,538 23,882,729 20,555,523 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(c) Market risks 

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk 

SCH Corporation Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is minimal. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

SCH Corporation Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising primarily from 
financing through interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities. SCH 
Corporation Group's policy is to obtain the financing with the most favourable 
interest rates in the market. 

SCH Corporation Group constantly monitors its interest rate risk by reviewing its 
debts portfolio to ensure favourable rates are obtained. SCH Corporation Group 
does not utilise interest swap contracts or other derivative instruments for 
trading or speculative purposes. 

SCH Corporation Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from its short and 
long term debts obligations, and its fixed deposits. 

The carrying amounts of SCH Corporation Group's financial instruments that are 
exposed to interest rate risk are as follows: 

Financial asset 
Fixed deposit with a 

licensed bank 

Financial Liability 
Bank borrowings 

<----------------As at 31 August----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

200,800 200,800 200,800 

8,657,902 9,956,302 12,738,507 10,613,278 

SCH Corporation Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from its short and 
long term debts obligations, and its fixed deposits. Fixed deposits interest rate is 
insignificant and any fluctuations in the rate would have no material impact on 
the results of SCH Corporation Group. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(c) Market risk (Cont'd) 

(iii) Interest rate risk sensitivity (Cont'd) 

As at 31 August 2013, an increase in market interest rates by 1% on financial 
asset and financial liability of SCH Corporation Group which have variable interest 
rates at the end of the reporting period would decrease the profit before taxation 
by RM104,125 (2012:RM125,377;2011:RM97,555;201O:RM86,579). This analysis 
assumes that all other variables remain unchanged. 

A decrease in market interest rates by 1% on financial assets and financial 
liabilities of SCH Corporation Group which have variable interest rates at the end 
of the reporting period would have had the equal but opposite effect on the 
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain unchanged. 

(d) Fair values of financial instruments 

Financial instruments at fair value 

As the financial assets and liabilities of SCH Corporation Group are not carried at fair 
value by any valuation method, the fair value hierarchy analysis is not presented. 

Financial instrument other than those carried at fair value 

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value 

The carrying amounts of receivables and payables, cash and cash equivalents and short 
term borrowings approximate their fair value due to the relatively short term nature of 
these financial instruments and insignificant impact of discounting 

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value 

Financial liability 
Hire purchase payables (Non - current) 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
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Carrying Fair 
amount value 

RM RM 

1,497,109 
1,066,570 

937,516 
758,742 

1,357,250 
1,086,216 

965,738 
703,435 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.25 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(d) Fair values of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Financial instrument other than those carried at fair value (Cont'd) 

Bank Borrowings (Non - current) 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 

8.4.26 capital Commitments 

Capital expenditure 
Authorised but not contracted for 

Property, plant and equipment 

8.4.27 capital Management 

Carrying Fair 
amount value 

RM RM 

2,744,636 
3,203,958 
4,329,006 
3,596,289 

2,653,193 
3,036,174 
4,108,558 
3,533,745 

<----------------As at 31 August----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

14,000,000 

The Group's management manages its capital to ensure that the Group is able to continue as a 
going concern and maintains an optimal capital structure, so as to maximise shareholder value. 
The management reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks 
associated with the capital. 

The capital of the Group consists of shareholders' equity, cash and cash equivalents and bank 
borrowings. 

The gearing ratio is as follows:-

Term loans and borrowings 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net debts 
Total equity 
Debt-to-equity ratio (%) 

<----------------As at 31 August----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

9,982,394 11,254,211 14,190,338 12,668,198 
(548,442) (2,437,629) (854,500) (1,881,060) 

9,433,952 8,816,582 13,335,838 10,787,138 
18,837,780 18,849,353 23,556,869 28,821,855 

50% 47% 57% 37% 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.4 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCH Corporation Group (Cont'd) 

8.4.26 Comparative Figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified where necessary to conform with the current 
financial year's presentation as follows: -

As previously 

2010 
Statements of Financial Position 
Current Liabilities 
Amount owing to Directors 
Amount owing to related parties 

Equity 
Reserves 
Merger deficit 
Retained profits 

Statements of Cash Flows 
(Increase}/Decrease in working capital 
Amount owing to Directors 
Amount owing to related parties 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and 

equipment 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Repayment of hire purchase and lease 

payables 
Repayment of hire purchase payables 
Repayment of lease payables 
Decrease in bankers' acceptance and 

trust receipts 
Repayment from other bank 

borrowings 
Proceeds from term loan 
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stated Reclassification 
RM RM 

51,000 
15,000 

10,957,778 

(87,000) 
15,000 

(4,538,017) 

(544,417) 
(71,057) 

(1,932,770) 
3,570,000 

15,000 
(15,000) 

(10,957,778) 
(1,380,000) 
12,337,778 

15,000 
(15,000) 

3,570,000 

(615,474) 
544,417 

71,057 

(1,932,770) 

1,932,770 
(3,570,000) 

As restated 
RM 

66,000 

(1,380.000) 
12,337,778 

(72,000) 

(968,017) 

(615,474) 

(1,932,770) 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.5 Financial Statements of Italiaworld 

The audited financial statements of Italiaworld were presented in Singapore Dollar ("SGD"). For 
the purpose of this report, we have converted the figures stated in SGD to Ringgit Malaysia 
("RM") for information purposes. 

The exchange rates used for the purpose of this report as extracted from Bank Negara Malaysia 
are as follows:-

Average rate Closing rate 
FYE/ As at SGD RM RM 
31 August 2010 1.00 2.3835 2.3179 
31 August 2011 1.00 2.4114 2.4684 
31 August 2012 1.00 2.4490 2.4908 
31 August 2013 1.00 2.4824 2.5806 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

329 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.5 Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

We set out below the financial statements of Italiaworld which includes its statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement for changes in equity and 
statement of cash fiows for the four (4) FYE 2010 to FYE 2013. 

8.5.1 Statements of Comprehensive Income 

< ----------------------------------FYE 31 August -----------------------.-------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

Revenue 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 
Other income 
Administration expenses 

Finance costs 
(Loss)!Profit before 

income tax 
Income tax 
Net (loss)/profit for the 

year 

Key financial ratio: 
Earnings before interest 

and taxation 
Earnings before 

interest, taxation and 
depreciation 

Note 
8.6.1 

8.6.2 
8.6.3 

GP margin (%) (a) 
(LBT)! PBT margin (%) 
(LAD! PAT margin (%) 
Effective tax rate (%) 
Gross (losses)/eamings 

per share (RM) (b) 
Net (Iosses)/eamings 

per share (RM) (c) 
Weighted average 

number of ordinary 
shares 

SGD RM 
923,845 2,201,985 

(781,180) (1,861,943) 

142,665 340,042 
27,005 64,366 

(199,622) (475,799) 

(1,697) (4,045) 

(31,649) (75,436) 
25,390 60,517 

(6,259) (14,919) 

(29,952) (71,391) 

(28,771) (68,576) 
15.44 15.44 
(3.43) (3.43) 
(0.68) (0.68) 
80.22 80.22 

(0.32) (0.75) 

(0.06) (0.15) 

100,000 100,000 

SGD RM SGD RM 
1,241,281 2,993,225 978,255 2,395,746 

(1,019,019) (2,457,262) (798,169) (1,954,716) 

222,262 535,963 180,086 441,030 
92,767 223,698 89,042 218,064 

(197,683) (476,693) (125,115) (306,407) 

(2,957) (7,131) (2,395) (5,865) 

114,389 275,837 141,618 346,822 
700 1,688 (6,994) (17,128) 

115,089 277,525 134,624 329,694 

117,346 282,968 144,013 352,687 

118,552 285,876 145,193 355,577 
17.91 17.91 18.41 18.41 
9.22 9.22 14.48 14.48 
9.27 9.27 13.76 13.76 

(0.61) (0.61) 4.94 4.94 

1.14 2.76 1.42 3.47 

1.15 2.78 1.35 3.30 

100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

Notes: 
(a) The GP margin is computed by dividing the GP against the revenue eamed in the respective financial years. 

SGD 

1,227,403 

(973,737) 

253,666 
5,134 

(205,834) 

(1,476) 

51,490 

51,490 

52,966 

54,595 
20.67 
4.20 
4.20 

0.51 

0.51 

100,000 

(b) 
(c) 

The gross EPS is computed by dividing the (LBT)j PBT against the weighted average number of ordinary shares. 
The net EPS is computed by dividing the (LAT)j PAT against the weighted average number of ordinary shares. 
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RM 
3,046,905 

(2,417,205) 

629,700 
12,745 

(510,962) 

(3,664) 

127,819 

127,819 

131,483 

135,527 
20.67 
4.20 
4.20 

1.28 

1.28 

100,000 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.5 Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.5.2 Statements of Financial Position 

<---------------------------------- As at 31 August ---------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
Note SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM SGD RM 

Non-Current Asset 
Property, plant and 

equipment 8.6.4 4,338 10,053 3,598 8,880 3,695 9,203 12,718 32,820 

Current Assets 

Inventories 8.6.5 67,302 155,999 92,084 227,300 91,296 227,400 179,900 464,250 

Trade receivables 8,6,6 351,284 814,241 289,500 714,602 348,639 868,390 549,569 1,418,218 
Other receivables, 

deposits and 
prepayment 8,6.7 4,594 10,649 10,553 26,049 11,279 28,094 24,158 62,342 

Cash and bank balances 95,122 220,483 87,993 217,202 24,909 62,043 50,921 131,407 
518,302 1,201,372 480,130 1,185,153 476,123 1,185,927 804,548 2,076,217 

Total Assets 522,640 1,211,425 483,728 1,194,033 479,818 1,195,130 817,266 2,109,037 

Equity 
Share capital 8.6.8 100,000 239,370 100,000 239,370 100,000 239,370 100,000 239,370 
Retained profits 9,815 19,770 124,904 297,296 259,528 626,990 311,018 754,809 
Foreign exchange 

reserves (4,602) 18,486 29,151 66,494 
Total Equity 109,815 254,538 224,904 555,152 359,528 895,511 411,018 1,060,673 

Non-Current Liability 

Deferred taxation 700 1,622 

Current Liabilities 
Trade and other 

payables 8.6,9 412,125 955,265 258,824 638,881 113,296 282,198 406,248 1,048,364 
Taxation 6,994 17,421 

412,125 955,265 258,824 638,881 120,290 299,619 406,248 1,048,364 
Total Liabilities 412,825 956,887 258,824 638,881 120,290 299,619 406,248 1,048,364 
Total Equity and 

Liabilities 522,640 1,211,425 483,728 1,194,033 479,818 1,195,130 817,266 2,109,037 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.5 Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.5.3 Statements of Changes in Equity 

At 1 September 2009 

Total comprehensive loss for the year 
ended 31 August 2010 

At 31 August 2010 

At 1 September 2010 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
ended 31 August 2011 

At 31 August 2011 

At 1 September 2011 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
ended 31 August 2012 

At 31 August 2012 

At 1 September 2012 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
ended 31 August 2013 

At 31 August 2013 

Foreign Exchange 
Share Capital Retained Earnings Reserves Total 
SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 

100,000 239,370 16,074 34,689 9,638 116,074 283,697 

(6,259) (14,919) (14,240) (6,259) (29,159) 

100,000 239,370 9,815 19.770 (4,602) 109,815 254,538 

100,000 239,370 9,815 19,770 (4,602) 109,815 254,538 

115,089 277,526 23,088 115,089 300,614 

100,000 239,370 124,904 297,296 18,486 224,904 555,152 

100,000 239,370 124,904 297,295 18,486 224,904 555.152 

134,624 329,694 10,665 134,624 340,359 

100,000 239,370 259,528 626,990 29,151 359,528 895,511 

100,000 239,370 259,528 626,990 29.151 359,528 895,511 

51,490 127,819 37,343 51,490 165.162 

100,000 239,370 311,0!8 754,809 66,494 411,018 1,060,673 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 
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8.5 Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.5.4 Statements of Cash Flows 
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<------------------------------------------FYE 31 August-------------------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 
Cash Flows from Operating 
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Activities 
(Loss)/ profit before income tax (31,649) (75,435) 114,389 275,838 141,618 346,822 51,490 127,819 
Adjustments for:-

Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment 1,181 2,815 1,206 2,908 1,180 2,890 1,629 4,042 

Unrealised gain in foreign exchange (23,384) (56,388) 
Reversal of allowance for impairment (5,000) (12,057) 
Sad debts written-off - trade 1,852 4,414 
Waiver of debts by a Director (21,408) (51,026) 
Operating (Ioss)jprofit before working 

capital changes (50,024) (119,232) 87,211 210,301 142,798 349,712 53,119 131,861 
Working capital changes:-

Decreasej(Increase) in inventories 31,958 76,172 (24,782) (59,759) 788 1,930 (88,604) (219,951 ) 
(Increase)/Decrease in trade 

receivables, other receivables, 
deposits and prepayments (51,429) (122,581) 60,825 146,673 (59,865) (146,609) (213,438) (529,838) 

Increasej(Decrease) in trade and other 
payables 56,863 135,533 (129,917) (313,282) (145,528) (356,398) 292,952 727,225 

Net cash used in operations (12,632) (30,108) (6,663) (16,067) (61,807) (151,365) 44,029 109,297 
Income tax refund 20,357 48,521 
Income tax paid (7,365) (18,283) 
Net cash from/(used in) operating 

activities 7,725 18,413 (6,663) (16,.061) (61,807) (151,36.5J. 36,664 91,014 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.5 Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.5.4 Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

Cash Flow from Investing 
Activities 

Purchase of pmperty, plant and 
equipment 

Repayment of loan by a director 

Net cash generated fromj(used in) 
investing activities 

Cash Flow from Financing 
Activities 

Loan from a director 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of the financial year 

Exchange fluctuation adjustment 
on opening balance 

Cash and cash equivalents at end 
of the financial year 

<------------------------------------------FYE 31 August-------------------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM 

(466) (1,124) (1,277) (3.127) (10,652) (26,443) 

20,332 48,461 

20,332 48,461 (466) (1,124) (1,277) (3.127) (10,652) (26,443) 

21,408 51,026 

49,465 

45,657 

117,900 

111,590 

(7.129) 

95,122 

(17,191) 

220,483 

(63,084) 

87,993 

(154,492) 

217,202 

26,012 

24,909 

64,571 

62,043 

(9,007) 13,910 (667) . ~,793 

95.122 220,483 87,993 217,202 24,909 62,043 50,921J.31,407 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.1 Revenue 

This represents value of sales of electrical appliances and machinery equipment. 

8.6.2 Profit/CLoss) before Taxation 

Profit/Closs) before taxation is derived after charging: -

< ------------------------------------ -----FYE 31 August----- --- ------------ ---------- ------- ------> 

Cost of inventories 
charged to 
expense during the 
year 

Staffc0st5 

Audit fee 

- Current year 
provision 

- Under provision in 
prior year 

Depreciation of 
property, plant and 
equipment 

Bad debts written-off 
- trade 

8.6.3 Taxation 

2010 

SGO 

781,180 

106,988 

3,500 

500 

1,181 

1,852 

RM 

1,861,943 

255,006 

8,342 

1,192 

2,815 

4,414 

2011 

SGO 

1,019,019 

105,135 

3,850 

1,206 

RM 

2,457,262 

253,523 

9,284 

2,908 

2012 2013 

SGO RM SGO RM 

798,169 1,954,716 973,737 2,417,205 

41,065 100,568 62,381 154,855 

6,000 14,694 6,000 14,894 

1,180 2,890 1,629 4,044 

< ----------------------------------------FYE 31 August--------------- -----------------------------> 

Current income tax; 
Current year 

provision 
Over provision in 

prior years 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to 

origination and 
reversal of 
temporary 
djfferences 

Over provision in 
prior year 

2010 

SGO 

(25,190) 

(25,190) 

(200) 

(200) 

(25,390) 

RM 

(60,040) 

(60,040) 

(477) 

(477) 

(60,517) 

2011 

SGO 

(700) 

(700) 

(700) 
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RM 

(1,688) 

(1,688) 

(1,688) 

2012 

SGO 

6,994 

6,994 

6,994 

RM 

17,128 

17,128 

17,128 

2013 

SGO RM 



I Company No,: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.3 Taxation (Cont'd) 

The income tax expense on the profits of ltaliaworld differs from the amount of tax that would 
arise from the Singapore statutory income tax rates as follows:-

< ----------------------------- ---------FYE 31 August----------------------------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 

(Loss)/profit before 
taxation (31,649) (75,436) 114,389 275,837 141,618 346,822 51,490 127,819 

Taxation at statutory 
tax rate of 17% (5,380) (12,823) 19,446 46,892 24,075 58,960 8,753 21,728 

Expenses not deductible 
for tax purposes 1,620 3,861 1,517 3,658 360 882 2,516 6,246 

Singapore statutory 
stepped income 
exemption (11,351) (27,799) (5,148) (12,779) 

Utilisation of capital 
allowances and tax 
losses (1,733) (4,244) (973) (2,415) 

Reversal of deferred tax 
assets not recognised 
in previous year (20,937) (50,487) 

Origination of 
temporary difference 
not recognised 7,998 19,063 (26) (63) 

(Over)/Under provision 
of deferred tax in 
prior years (700) (1,688) 371 921 

Income not subject to 
tax (4,438) (10,578) (850) (2,082) (850) (2,110) 

30% rebate (1,289) (3,200) 
Over provision of income 

tax in prior years (25,190) (60,040) 
Other (3,507) (8,589) (3,380) (8,391) 

(25,390) (60,517) (700) (1,688) 6,994 17,128 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.4 Property, Plant and Equipment 

2013 
Cost 

At 1 September 2012 

Additions 

At 31 AU9ust 2013 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2012 

Charge for the financial year 

At 31 AU9ust 2013 

Carrying amount 
Exchange fluctuation 

differences 

At 31 AU9ust 2013 

<---------------------------------------------------As at 31 August--------------------------------------------------> 

Furniture &. Fittings Electrical Installation Office Equipment Motor vehicle Total 

SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 

11,014 26,919 800 1,854 1,743 4,251 13,557 33,024 

208 516 1,443 3,582 9,000 22,342 10,651 26,440 

11,222 27,435 800 1,854 3,186 7,833 9,000 22,342 24,20§._ 59,464 

8,940 21,753 800 1,865 122 297 9,862 23,915 

1,105 2,743 298 740 225 559 ~&~ 4,042 

10,045 24,496 800 1,865 420 1,037 225 559 11,490 27,957 

98 11 342 862 1,313 

1,177 3,037 2,766. 7,138 8,775 22,645 12,718 32,820 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.4 Property, Plant and Equipment 

2012 

Cost 

At 1 September 2011 

Additions 

At 31 August 2012 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 September 2011 

Charge for the financial year 

At 31 August 2012 

Carrying amount 

Exchange fluctuation differences 

At 31 August 2012 

<---------------------------------------------As at 31 August-------------------------------------------> 

Furniture & Fittings Electrical Installation 

SGD RM SGD RM 

11,014 26,919 800 1,854 

Office Equipment 

SGD RM 

Total 

SGD 

466 1,124 12,280 

1,277 3,127 1,277 

RM 

29,897 

3,127 

11,014 26,919 800 1,854 1,743 4,251 13,557 33,024 

7,838 19,054 800 1,865 44 106 8,682 21,025 

1,102 2,699 78 191 1,180 2,890 

8,940 21,753 800 1,865 122 297 9,862 23,915 

11 83 94 

2,074 5,166 1,621 4,037 3,695 9,203 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.4 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2011 
Cost 

At 1 September 2010 

Additions 

At 31 AU9ust 2011 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 September 2010 

Charge for the financial year 

At 31 AU9ust 2011 

Carrying amount 

Exchange fluctuation differences 

At 31 AU9ust 2011 

< --------------------------------------------As at 31 August------------------------- ----------------- > 

Furniture &. Fittings Electrical Installation 
SGD RM SGD RM 

11,014 26,919 800 1,854 

Office Equipment 
SGD RM 

466 1,124 

Total 
SGD 

11,814 

466 

RM 

28,773 

1,124 

11,014 26,919 800 1,854 466 1,124 12,280 )9J 897 

6,736 

1,102 
16,397 

2,657 

740 

60 

1,720 

145 44 106 

7,476 

1,206 

18,117 

2,908 

7,838 19,054 800 1,865 44 106 8,682 __ ~025 

(26) 11 23 8 

3,176 7,839 422 1,041 3,598 8,880 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.4 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2010 
Cost 

< --------------------------------------------As at 31 Au gust------------------------------------------> 

Furniture &. Fittings Electrical Installation 

SGD RM SGD RM 

Office Equipment 

SGD RM 

Total 

SGD RM 

At 1 September 2009/ 31 AU9ust 2010 11,014 26,919 800 1,854 11,814 28,773 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 September 2009 

Charge for the financial year 

At 31 AU9ust 2010 

Carrying amount 

Exchange fluctuation differences 

At 31 AU9ust 2010 

5,635 13,773 660 1,529 6,295 15,302 

1,101 2,624 80 191 1,181 __ 2,815 

6,736 16,397 740 l,72Q_ ___ ?L476 18,117 

(608) 5 (603) 

4,278 9,914 60 139 4,338 10,053 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.5 Inventories 

< -------------- ----------------As at 31 August-- ------------ -------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM 

At lower of cost and 
net realisable 
value 67,302 155,999 92,084 227,300 91,296 227,400 179,900 464,250 

The cost of inventories of Italiaworld recognised as an expense during the year was as follows:-

< ------ ---------------- ---- ----As at 31 August-------------- -------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM 

Costs of inventories 781,180 1,861,943 1,019,019 2,457,262 798,169 1,954,716 973,737 2,417,205 

8.6.6 Trade Receivables 

< ------------------------------As at 31 Aug ust---------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

Trade receivables 

Less: 
Allowance for 

impairment 
Balance as at 

1 September 
Impairment loss 

reversed 
Written off 

allowance for 
doubtful debts 

Exchange 
fluctuation 
differences 

Balance at 31 
August 

Net 

SGO 

387,893 

36,609 

36,609 

351,284 

RM SGO 

899,097 321,109 

84,856 36,609 

(5,000) 

84,856 31,609 

814,241 289,500 
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RM SGO RM SGO 

792,625 380,248 947,122 549,569 

90,366 31,609 78,732 31,609 

(12,056) 

(31,609) 

(287) 

78,023 31,609 78,732 

714,602 348,639 868,390 549,569 

RM 

1,418,218 

81,570 

(81,570) 

1,418,218 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.6 Trade Receivables (Cont'd) 

The net carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. 

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: -

< ------------ ----------------As at 31 August------------------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 

Neither past due nor 
impaired 326,522 756,845 287,194 708,910 347,516 865,593 83,240 214,809 

Past due less than 30 
days not impaired 29,762 68,985 1,123 2,772 77,816 200,812 

Past due for more than 
31 to 60 days not 
impaired 294,214 759,249 

Past due for more than 
61 to 90 days not 
impaired 80,640 208,100 

Past due for more than 
90 to 120 days not 
impaired 2,306 5,692 

Past due for more than 
120 days not impaired 31,609 73,267 31,609 78,023 31,609 78,732 13,659 35,248 

387,893 899,097 321,109 792,625 380,248 947,122 549,569 1,418,218 

Impaired (36,609) (84,856) (31,609) (78,023) (31,609) (78,732) 

351,284 814,241 289,500 714,602 348,639 868,390 549,569 1,418,218 

Trade receivables 
turnover (days)* 129 94 119 134 

Note: 

* Trade receivables tumover day is computed by dividing average trade receivables (third parties) over sales to third parties x 
365days 

The trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 days on FYE 2013 and 90 to 120 
days terms from FYE 2010 to FYE 2012. Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case 
basis. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.6 Trade Receivables (Cont'd) 

The trade receivables turnover period recorded 129 days which exceeded the normal credit term in FYE 
2010 was mainly due to the high billing issued toward the financial year ended. The turnover days has 
then improved to 94 days in FYE 2011. 

The trade receivable turnover period increased to 119 days in FYE 2012 and further increase to 134 days 
in FYE 2013 was mainly due to the high billing issued toward the financial year ended. 

Italiaworld has not made impairment on some of its past due receivables as they are creditworthy debtors 
with good payment record and the Director are of the view that the receivables are recoverable. 

8.6.7 Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepayment 

<----------------------------As at 31 August---------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 

Deposits 3,758 8,711 2,539 6,267 6,700 16,688 15,750 40,645 
Other- GST 

receivables 8,014 19,782 4,579 11,406 8,037 20,740 
Prepayment 836 1,938 371 957 

4,594 10,649 10,553 26,049 11,279 28,094 24,158 62,342 

The carrying amount of the above other receivable, deposits and prepayment approximate their fair 
values. 

8.6.8 Share Capital 

<-----------------------------------As at 31 August------------------------------------> 

Issued and fully 
paid 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD 

100,000 239,370 100,000 239,370 100,000 239,370 100,000 

RM 

239,370 

The holders of the ordinary share are entitled to dividend as and when declared. All ordinary shareholders 
are entitled to one vote for each share held in the meetings of the members. Each share is entitled to 
equal share on the distribution of residual assets in dissolution. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.9 Trade and Other Payables 

< ---------------------------------As at 31 August---- --------------------------------> 

Trade payables: 

- related parties 

- third parties 

Accrued expenses 

Other payables: 

- related party 

- third parties 

Trade payables 
turnover (days)* 

- Third parties 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGD RM SGD 

337,100 781,364 190,748 

1,236 2,865 

16,809 38,962 11,096 

56,980 132,074 56,980 

412,125 955,265 258,824 

5 0* 

RM SGD 

470,842 101,887 

27,389 11,409 

140,650 

638,881 113,296 

0* 

RM 

253,799 

28,419 

282,198 

SGo 

398,817 

6,183 

10,248 

RM 

1,005,962 

15,956 

26,446 

406,248 1,048,364 

0* 

Note: 

* Trade payables turnover day is computed by dividing average trade payables (third parties) over purchases 
from third parties x 365 days. 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally on 30 to 150 (2010 to 2012: 30 to 150) days' 
terms. 

Substantial portion of Italiaworld's trade and other payables are arising from purchases from related 
parties namely SCH Corporation Group, SCHWM and SCHME. In FYEs 2011 and 2012, there were no third 
parties' payables within the financial years. 

Other payables represent unsecured and non-interest bearing advances received from related party 
namely SCHSB in which certain directors have significant financial interest. The advances are repayable on 
demand. 

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value and are denominated in the 
following currencies:-

< ------ --- ----- --- ---- ---------------As at 31 August-------------- ---- ---------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGO RM SGo RM SGo RM SGO RM 

RM 394,240 913,809 190,748 470,842 101,887 253,799 9,008 23,246 

Singapore Dollar 17,885 41,456 68,076 168,039 11,409 28,419 397,240 1,025,118 

412,125 955,265 258,824 638,881 113,296 282,218 406,248 1,048,364 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of ltaliaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.10 Significant Related Party Transactions 

During the financial year, material transactions with companies in which certain directors have significant 
financial interest are described below:-

< ---------------------------------As at 31 August------------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGo RM SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM 

SCH Corporation Group* 143,916 343,023 305,447 736,555 358,877 793,789 669,903 1,569,612 

SCHWM* 259,741 619,092 356,736 860,233 202,006 446,811 283,651 664,605 

SCHME* 305,886 729,081 380,659 917,921 234,972 519,728 126,739 296,954 

709,543 1,691,196 1,042,842 2,51V09 795,856 1,760,328 1,080,293 2,531,171 

Note: 

* These companies are the subsidiaries of SCH under the lPO. 

The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were transacted in the normal course of 
business and at prices and terms negotiated and agreed between the directors of the transacting 
companies. 

The outstanding balance arising from the above transactions are shown under trade and other payable. 

8.6.11 Operating Lease Commitments 

At the balance sheet date, the future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 
lease contracted at the reporting date in respect of the office rental but not recognised as liabilities are as 
follows:-

< ----- ----------------------------As at 31 August--------- ---------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM SGO 
Lease which expire: 

Within one year 10,032 23,253 836 2,064 16,600 41,347 34,800 
After one year but 

within five years 836 1,938 3,000 7,472 55,100 

10,868 25,191 836 2,064 19,600 48,819 89,900 

Rental expenses of the above operating lease for the year amounted to SGD 24,486 (2012:SGDlO,598, 
2011:SGDlO,032, 2010: SGD10,019). 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.12 Risk Management 

lta[iawor[d in the normal course of business is exposed to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk 
and risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. 

(a) Credit risk 

lta[iawor[d's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that counter parties fail to perform their 
obligations as of 31 August 2010 to 31 August 2013 in relation to each class of recognised financial 
assets, is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet. it is the italiawor[d's 
policy to enter into financial transactions with credit-worthy counterparties and financial institutions. 
ltaliawor[d does not expect to incur material credit losses on its financial assets. 

(b) Foreign currency risk 

Trade payables 

Other payables 

ltaliawor[d has exposure to foreign exchange risk as a result of transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies arising from normal trading activities. ltaliawor[d does not enter into forward contract to 
hedge its exposure in foreign currency risk. 

ltaliawor[d's exposure to foreign currency risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the 
reporting period was: -

< ------------- --------------------As at 31 August------------------------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM SGD RM 

337,260 

56,980 

394,240 

781,735 

132,074 

913,809 

190,748 470,842 

190,748 470,842 

101,887 253,780 9,008 23,246 

101,887 253,780 9,008 23,246 

Any significant fiuctuation in the exchange rates of the abovementioned foreign currencies may 
give rise to significant gain or loss in exchange and impact the results of the operations. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.12 Risk Management (Cont'd) 

(b) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd) 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis: -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of ltaliaworld's profit for the financial year to a 
reasonably possible change in the RM exchange rates against the respective functional currencies of 
Italiaworld, with all other variables held constant. 

<---------------------------------FYE 31 August---------------------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM SGO RM 

Profit for the year 

SGD strengthened against 
RM by 3% (2011: 3% 
2010: 10%) 39,424 93,967 5,722 13,798 3,057 7,372 

SGD weakened against RM 
by 3% (2011: 3%; 2010 : 
10%) (39,424) (93,967) (5,722) (13,798) (3,057) (7,372) 

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the financial year depending on the volume of 
overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of 
Italiaworld's exposures to foreign currency risk. 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.6 Notes to the Financial Statements of Italiaworld (Cont'd) 

8.6.13 Capital Management 

The primary objective of Italiaworld's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. 

Italiaworld manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes economic 
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, ltaliaworld may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, 
policies or processes from the year ended 31 August 2010 to 31 August 2013. 

ltaliaworld monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. 
ltaliaworld includes within net debt, trade and other payables less cash and bank balances. Capital 
includes equity holders. 

< --- --- ---------------------------As at 31 August-------------------------------- ----> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

SGO RM SGO RM SGD RM SGD RM 

Trade and other 
payables 412,125 955,265 258,824 638.881 113,296 282,198 406,248 1,048,364 

Less: Cash and bank 
balances (95,122) (220,483) (87,993) (217,702) (24,909) (62,043) (50,921) (131,407) 

Net debt 317,003 734,782 170,831 421,679 88,387 220,155 355,327 916,957 

Equity attributable to 
the equity holders 109,815 254,538 224,904 555,152 359,528 895,511 411,018 1,060,673 

Capital and net debt 426,818 989,320 395,735 976,831 447,915 1,115,666 766,345 1,977,630 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.7 Financial Statements of SCHWM 

We set out below the financial statements of SCHWM which includes its statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement for changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the four (4) FYE 2010 to FYE 2013. 

8.7.1 Statements of Comprehensive Income 

<--------------- FYE 31 August ----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

Note RM RM RM RM 

Revenue 8.8.1 4,688,757 4,790,698 5,255,155 4,975,088 
Cost of sales (3,840,104) [3,752,266) [3,905,432) [3,997,132) 
Gross profit 848,653 1,038,432 1,349,723 977,956 
Other income 33,271 211,173 123,200 62,329 
Administration expenses (665,809) (806,073) (464,603) (483,224) 
Fina nee costs 8.8.2 [203,670) [228,440) [137,418) [108,818) 
Profit before taxation 8.8.3 12,445 215,092 870,902 448,243 
Taxation 8.8.4 (3,209) [40,258) [171,206) [78,826) 
Net profit for the financial 

year, representing total 
comprehensive income for 
the financial year 9,236 174,834 699,696 369,417 

Key financial ratio: 
Earnings before interest and 

taxation 216,115 443,532 1,008,320 557,061 
Earnings before interest, 

taxation and depreciation 609,642 874,742 1,427,847 1,040,763 
GP margin (%) (a) 18.10 21.68 25.68 19.66 
PBT margin (%) 0.27 4.49 16.57 9.01 
PAT margin (%) 0.20 3.65 13.31 7.43 
Effective tax rate (%) 25.79 18.72 19.66 17.59 
Gross EP5 (RM) (b) 0.02 0.43 1.74 0.90 
Net EP5 (RM) (c) 0.02 0.35 1.40 0.74 
Weighted average number 

of ordinary shares 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

Notes: 
(a) The GP margin is computed by dividing the GP against the revenue earned in the respective 

financial years. 
(b) The gross EPS is computed by dividing the PST against the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares. 
(c) The net EPS is computed by dividing the PAT against the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares. 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHY 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.7 Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.7.2 Statements of Financial Position 

<------------------ As at 31 August -------------------> 
Note 2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and 

equipment 8.8.5 1,455,203 1,164,033 1,095,242 923,159 
Other investments 8.8.6 240,000 

1,695,203 1,164,033 1,095,242 923,159 

Current Assets 

Inventories 8.8.7 185,750 211,896 327,058 340,897 

Trade receivables 8.8.8 2,489,629 2,337,548 2,726,271 2,601,052 

Other receivables 8.8.9 335,036 283,377 280,607 277,440 
Amount owing by Directors 8.8.10 580,070 

Tax recoverable 28,103 24,415 8,300 
Fixed deposits with lioensed 

banks 8.8.11 406,669 194,084 204,891 210,750 

Cash and bank balances 57,981 364,936 68,812 20,737 

4,083,238 3,416,256 3,607,639 3,459,176 

Total Assets 5,778,441 4,580,289 4,702,881 4,382,335 

Equity 
5hare capital 8.8.12 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 
Retained profits 1,645,664 870,498 1,570,194 1,939,611 

Total Equity 2,145,664 1,370,498 2,070,194 2,439,611 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Hire purchase payables 8.8.13 514,922 393,488 282,115 224,346 

Bank borrowings 8.8.14 615,774 419,009 207,808 

Deferred taxation 8.8.15 172,220 119,279 64,219 60,119 

1,302,916 931.776 554,142 284,465 

Current Liabilities 
Trade payables 8.8.16 438,404 530,001 338,660 438,836 

Other payables 8.8.17 111,465 95,199 77,495 71,320 

Amount owing to Directors 8.8.10 19,000 19,000 19,000 
Hire purchase payables 8.8.13 226,990 191,508 205,528 175,103 
Bank borrowings 8.8.14 1,553,002 1,442,307 1,369,666 954,000 
Tax payable 68,196 

2,329,861 2,278,015 2,078,545 1,658,259 

Total Liabilities 3,632,777 3,209,791 2,632,687 1,942,724 
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,778,441 4,580,289 4,702,881 4,382,335 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.7 Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.7.3 Statements of Changes in Equity 

Distributable 
Share Retained 

Capital Profit Total 

Note RM RM RM 

At 1 September 2009 500,000 1,636,428 2,136,428 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income for the financial 
year 9,236 9,236 

At 31 August 2010 500,000 1,645,664 2,145,664 

At 1 September 2010 500,000 1,645,664 2,145,664 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income for the financial 
year 174,834 174,834 

Dividend 8.8.18 (950,000) (950,000) 

At 31 August 2011 500,000 870,498 1,370,498 

At 1 September 2011 500,000 870,498 1,370,498 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income for the financial 
year 699,696 699,696 

At 31 August 2012 500,000 1,570,194 2,070,194 

At 1 Septem ber 2012 500,000 1,570,194 2,070,194 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income for the financial 
year 369,417 369,417 

At 31 August 2013 500,000 1,939,611 2,439,611 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.7 Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.7.4 Statements of Cash Flows 

<---------------FYE 31 August----------------> 
~W ~ll ~U ~U 

Cash Flows from Operating 
Activities 

Profit before taxation 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment 
Property, plant and equipment written off 

8ad debts written off 

Waiver of debts by Director 

Interest expense 
Gain on disposal of other investment 

Interest income 
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment 

Operatin9 profit before workin9 capital 
changes 

(Increase)/Decrease in working capital 

Inventories 
Trade receivables 

Other receivables 
Trade payables 

Other payables 
Amount owin9 (to )/by Directors 

Cash generated from operations 

Interest paid 

Tax paid 

Tax Refund 

Interest received 

Net cash (used in)/from operating 
activities 

RM 

12,445 

393,527 

1,864 

203,670 

(5,282) 
(9,756) 

596,468 

230,877 

261,786 

(43,078) 
(370,399) 

(7,392) 
(600000' 

(528,206) 

68262 , 

(203,670) 

(94,999) 

-

9,756 

(288,913) 

(220,651) 
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RM RM RM 

215,092 870,902 448,243 

431,210 419,527 483,702 

898 108,818 

12,802 
(930) 

228,440 137,418 

(52,454) 
(5,952) (10,807) (5,859) 

(89,999) (19,716) 

828,208 1,327,939 1,015,188 

(26,146) (115,162) (13,839) 

144,410 (388,723) 125,219 

46,528 2,770 3,167 
91,597 (191,341) 100,176 

(16,266) (17,704) (6,175) 
600000 - -
840,123 (710,160) 208,548 

1668331 , , 617779 1 223 736 , 

(228,440) (137,418) (108,818) 

(89,511) (170,000) (159,422) 

- 36,345 -
5,952 10,807 5,859 

(311,999) (260,266) (262,381) 

1,356,332 357,513 961,355 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.7 Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.7.4 Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

<--------------------FYE 31 August---------------------> 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Purchase of property, plant and 

equipment 

Purchase of investment 
Proceeds from disposal of other 

investment 
Proceeds from disposal of plant and 

equipment 
Net cash from /(used in) investing 
activities 

Cash Flows From Financing 
Activities 

Increased/( decreased) in bankers' 
acceptance and trust receipts 

(Increased)/decreased in fixed deposits 
pledged 

Repayment of bank borrowings 

Dividend paid 

Repayment of hire purchase payabJes 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and 
cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the financial year comprise: 

Fixed deposits with licensed banks 

Cash and bank balances 

Less: Fixed deposits pledged with 
licensed banks 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

(103,152) (46,040) (218,635) (73,503) 

(800,000) (100,000) 

1,305,282 392,454 

90,000 21,600 

402,130 246,414 (128,635) (51,903) 

153,010 (124,301) (89,021) (204,000) 

(9,756) 212,585 (10,807) (5,859) 

(184,543) (183,159) (194,821) (419,474) 

(950,000) 

(182,021) (250,916) (230,353) (328,194) 

(223,310) (1,295,791) (525,002) (957,527) 

(41,831) 306,955 (296,124) (48,075) 

99,812 57,981 364,936 68,812 

57,981 364,936 68,812 20,737 

406,669 194,084 204,891 210,750 

57,981 364,936 68,812 20,737 

464,050 559,020 273,703 231,487 

(406,669) (194,084) (204,891) (210,750) 

57,981 364,936 68,812 20,737 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM 

8.8.1 Revenue 

This represents invoiced value of goods sold less trade discounts and returns. 

8.8.2 Finance Cost 

<-------------------FYE 31 August--------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Interest expenses on: 
8ank overdraft 962 891 719 1,781 
Bankers' acceptance 15,115 47,373 53,897 
Hire purchase 40,039 40,120 32,693 30,085 
Trust receipts 99,323 117,573 15,532 
Term loan 63,346 54,741 41,101 23,055 

203,670 228,440 137,418 108,818 

8.8.3 Profit before Taxation 

Profit before taxation is derived after charging/ (crediting): 

Auditors' remuneration 
-Current year 
-Under provision in prior years 
8ad debts written off 
Depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment 
Loss/(gain) on realised Foreign exchange 
Property, plant and eqUipment written off 
Factory rental 
Rental of premises 
Gain on disposal of other investment 
Fixed deposits interest income 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and 

eqUipment 
Waiver of debts by director 

<-------------------FYE 31 August--------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM 

5,500 

393,527 
808 

1,864 
72,000 
21,600 
(5,282) 
(9,756) 

RM 

6.000 

12,802 

431,210 
3,084 

72,000 
21,300 

(52,454) 
(5,952) 

(930) 

RM 

6,000 

419,527 
(1,994) 

898 
72,000 
18,000 

(10,807) 

(89,999) 

RM 

7,000 
4,800 

483,702 
(3,913) 

72,000 
18,000 

(5,859) 

(19,716) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.4 Taxation 

<-------------------FYE 31 August--------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Current income tax: 
Current year provision 48,969 94,255 238,196 136,200 
Over provision in prior years (1,056) (11,930) (53,274) 

48,969 93,199 226,266 82,926 
Deferred tax: 

Relating to origination and reversal of 
timing differences (45,760) (52,941) (29,305) (17,800) 

(Over)/Under provision in prior year (25,755) 13,700 
Tax expense for the financial year 3,209 40,258 171,206 78,826 

sCHWM being Malaysian resident company with paid-up capital of less than RM 2.5 million 
qualified for the preferential tax rates under Paragraph 2A, Schedule 1 of the Income Tax Act 
1967 as income tax is calculated at the statutory rate of 20% (2010 to 2012: 20%) on the first 
RMsOO,OOO and 25% (2010 to 2012: 25%) on the balance of chargeable income of the estimated 
assessable profit for the financial year. The effective tax rate of 25.8% in FYE 2010 was higher 
than the statutory tax rate due to certain expenses not deductable for tax purposes. The 
effective tax rate of 18.7%, 19.7% and 17.6% in FYE 2011, FYE 2012 and FYE 2013 respectively 
were lower than the effective tax rate due to other income not subjected to tax such as gain 
from disposal of investment. 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of SCHWM is as follows: -

<-------------------FYE 31 August--------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

Profit before taxation 

Taxation at statutory tax rate of 20% 
(2012:20% ;2011: 20%; 2010: 20%) 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 
Income not subject to tax 
Over provision of current taxation in respect 

of prior years 
(Over)/Under provision of deferred tax in 

prior years 
Tax incentive obtained from differential tax 

rate of 20% 
Tax expense for the financial year 

RM 

12,445 

2,489 

2,671 
(1,951) 

3,209 

RM 

215,092 

53,773 

8,973 
(10,677) 

(1,056) 

00,755) 
40,258 

SCHWM has elected to single tier company income tax system on 1 March 2011. 
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RM 

870,902 

217,725 

35,461 
(19,295) 

(11,930) 

(25,755) 

(25,000) 
171,206 

RM 

448,243 

112,100 

36,200 
(4,900) 

(53,274) 

13,700 

(25,000) 
78,826 
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S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.s Property, Plant and Equipment 

2013 
Cost 
At 1 September 2012 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 AU9ust 2013 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2012 
Charge for the financial year 
Disposals 
At 31 AU9ust 2013 

Carrying amount 
At 31 AU9ust 2013 

2012 
Cost 
At 1 September 2011 
Additions 
Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 August 2012 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2011 
Charge for the financial year 
Disposals 
Written off 
At 31 AU9ust 2012 

Carrying amount 
At 31 AU9ust 2012 

Furniture 
and 

Fittings 
RM 

24,620 

Office 
Equipment 

RM 

94,442 
29,023 

Motor Moulds and 
Vehicles Blocks 

RM RM 

773,862 426,940 
56,720 

Plant and 
Machinery 

RM 
Signboard 

RM 
Total 

RM 

2,560,233 2,850 3,882,947 
227,760 313,503 

(113,000) (113,000) 
24,620 123,465.173,862 483,660 2,67.1,993 2,850 4,083,450 

12,311 
1,844 

42,229 
10,697 

422,922 
136,098 

212,836 
63,327 

2,096,119 1,288 2,787,705 
271,576 160 483,702 

(111,116) (111,116) 
14,155 52,926 559,020 276,163 2,256,579 1,448 3,160,291 

10,465 70,539 214,84;1 _____ 2_07,497 418,414 J,4QL _____ 923,159 

24,620 

24,620 

10,375 
1,936 

103,565 
21,170 

924,596 227,555 2,543,783 1,250 3,865,369 
153,030 159,385 16,450 1,600 351,635 

(303,764) (303,764) 
(30,293) (30,293) 
94,442 773,862 426,940 2,560,233 2,850 3,882,947 

63,101 
8,523 

597,311 178,954 1,850,347 1,248 2,701,336 
129,374 33,882 245,772 40 419,527 

(303,763) (303,763) 
(29,395) (29,395) 

12,311 42,229 422,922 212,836 2,096,119 1,288 2,787,705 

12,309 52,213 350,940 214,104 464,114 1,562 1,095,242 
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S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2011 
Cost 
At 1 September 2010 
Additions 
At 31 AU9ust 2011 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2010 
Charge for the financial year 
At 31 AU9ust 2011 

Carrying amount 
At 31 AU9ust 2011 

2010 
Cost 
At 1 September 2009 
Additions 
Written off 
At 31 AU9ust 2010 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2009 
Charge for the financial year 
Written off 
At 31 AU9ust 2010 

Carrying amount 
At 31 AU9ust 2010 

Furniture 
and 

fittings 
RM 

24,620 

24,620 

Office 
equipment 

RM 

Motor 
vehicles 

RM 

Moulds and 
blocks 

RM 

Plant and 
machinery 

RM 
Signboard 

RM 
Total 

RM 

99,265 924,596 226,025 2,449,573 1,250 3,725,329 
4,300 41,530 94,210 140,040 

103,565 924,596 267,555 2,543,783 1,2,50 3,865,369 

8,406 52,650 430,100 160,119 1,617,603 1,248 2,270,126 
1,969 10,451 167,211 18,835 232,744 431,210 

10,375 63,101 597,311 178,954 1,850,347 1,248 2,701,336 

14,245 40,464 327,285 88,601 693,436 2 1,164,033 

24,620 93,535 563,304 169,005 2,449,083 1,250 3,300,797 
14,350 361,292 57,020 490 433,152 
(8,620) (8,620) 

24,620 99,265 924,596 226,025 2,449,573 1,250 3,725,329 

6,045 
2,361 

50,203 291,641 143,060 1,391,203 1,203 1,883,355 
9,203 138,459 17,059 226,400 45 393,527 

(6,756) (6,756) 
8,406 52,650 430,100 160,119 1,617,603 1,248 2,270,126 

16,214 46,615 494,496 §5,906 831,970 2 1,455,203 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

(a) The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase are 
as follows: -

Motor vehicles 
Plant and machinery 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM 

494,496 
240,501 
734,997 

RM 

299,988 
254,233 
554,221 

RM 

340,307 
161,433 
501,740 

RM 

172,800 
212,958 
385,758 

(b) The aggregate additional cost for the property, plant and equipment of SCHWM during 
the financial year are as follows: -

Aggregate costs 
Less: Hire purchase financing 
Cash payments 

8.8.6 Other Investments 

In Malaysia 
At cost 
Unit trusts 

At 1 September 
Addition during the financial year 
Disposal during the financial year 
At 31 August 

At market value 
At 31 August 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

433,152 
(330,000) 
103,152 

140,040 
(94,000) 
46,040 

351,635 
(133,000) 
218,635 

313,503 
(240,000) 

73,503 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

740,000 
800,000 

(1,300,000) 
240,000 

262,449 

240,000 
100,000 

(340,000) 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.7 Inventories 

At cost: 
Raw materials 
Finished goods 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

185,574 
176 

185,750 

211,896 

211,896 

327,058 

327,058 

307,443 
33,454 

340,897 

The cost of inventories of SCHWM recognised as an expense during the year was as follows: -

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Cost of inventories 2,861,335 2,577,690 2,647,539 2,551,303 

S.S.S Trade Receivables 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Trade receivables 
- Related parties 2,458,894 2,323,885 2,726,271 2,601,052 
- Third parties 30,735 13,663 

2,489,629 2,337,548 2,726,271 2,601,052 

Trade receivables turnover (days) 
- Third parties* 43 210 -* -* 

Note: 
* Trade receivables turnover day is computed by dividing average trade receivables (third parties) over 

sales to third parties x 365 days 

Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair value 
on initial recognition. 

SCHWM's normal trade credit terms are 150 to 180 days (2010 to 2012: 150 to 180 days). Other 
credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 

The amount owing by related parties represent unsecured, interest free and repayable on 
demand. 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.8 Trade Receivables (Cont'd) 

Substantial portion of SCHWM's trade receivable were anslng from sales to related parties 
namely, SCH Corporation, SCHME and Italiaworld. Sales to third parties consist only of a few 
customers and the fiuctuation in the turnover days was mainly due to the payment pattern of 
these customers. 

The trade receivables turnover days increased from 43 days in FYE 2010 to 210 days in FYE 2011 
due to higher billing issued in April and May 2011 to a single customer which was still within the 
normal credit terms. 

In FYE 2012 and FYE 2013, there were no third parties trade receivables, all debts have been 
collected within the financial year. 

Analysis of the trade receivables ageing is as follows: 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Neither past due nor impaired 2,015,423 1,717,327 1,839,908 1,609,125 

Past due less than 30 days not impaired 199,581 171,541 159,968 48,120 
Past due for more than 31 to 60 days not 

impaired 106,657 219,003 115,454 122,413 

Past due for more than 60 days not impaired 167,968 229,677 610,941 821,394 
2,489,629 2,337,548 2,726,271 2,601,052 

As at 31 August 2013, trade receivables of RM 991,927(2012:RM886,363; 2011:RM620,221 and 
2010: RM474,206) were past but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 
customers from whom there is no recent history of default. 

SCHWM has not made any impairment on its past due receivables as the amount was mainly due 
from related parties within SCH Group. The Directors are of the view that the receivables are 
recoverable. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.9 Other Receivables 

Other receivables 
Deposits 
Prepayments 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

322,706 
1,200 

11,130 
335,036 

268,455 
5,700 
9,222 

283,377 

267,655 
5,700 
7,252 

280,607 

271,740 
5,700 

277,440 

SCHWM has not recognised any impairment on receivables that are past due at the end of 
financial year, as there has not been significant change in credit quality and these amounts are 
still considered recoverable. 

Other receivables mainly consisted of insurance premium paid to an insurance SCHWM for 
Corporate Guarantee Loan ("CGC Loan") financed by CIMB Bank Berhad. It is recoverable upon 
the withdrawal of the CGC Loan. 

8.8.10 Amount Owing by! (to) Directors 

These represent unsecured, interest free advances and repayment on demand. 

8.8.11 Fixed Deposits with Licensed 8anks 

The fixed deposits are pledged to licensed banks for credit facilities granted to SCHWM as 
disclosed in Note 8.8.14 of this report. 

The interest rate of deposits during the year range from 3.05% (2012: 3.05% 2011: 2.75% to 
3.70%; 2010: 2.75% to 3.70%) per annum and the maturities of deposits are 365 days (2010 to 
2012: 365 days) respectively. 

8.8.12 Share Capital 

Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each 
Authorised 

Issued and fully paid 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by 
SCHWM. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with 
regard to the SCHWM's residual assets. 
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B. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

B.B Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

B.B.13 Hire Purchase Payables 

(a) Minimum hire purchase payments 
Within one year 
8etween one and five years 

Less: Future finance charges 
Present value of hire purchase 
liabilities 

(b) Present value of hire purchase 
liabilities 
Within one year 
8etween one and five years 

Analyse as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Repayable after twelve months 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

263,948 220,620 226,607 193,656 
559,869 416,555 296,062 234,369 
823,817 637,175 522,669 428,025 
(81,905) (52,179) (35,026) (28,576) 

741,912 584,996 487,643 399,449 

226,990 191,508 205,528 175,103 
514,922 393,488 282,115 224,346 
741,912 584,996 487,643 399,449 

226,990 191,508 205,528 175,103 
514,922 393,488 282,115 224,346 
741,912 584,996 487,643 399,449 

The hire purchase liabilities interest is charged at rates ranging from 2.47% to 3.70% (2012: 
2.47% to 3.70%; 2011: 2.22% to 3.52%; 2010: 2.69% to 3.52%) per annum. 

B.B.14 Bank Borrowings 

Secured 
Term loan - floating rate 
Bankers' acceptance 
Trust receipts 

Analysed as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Secured 

Term loan - floating rate 
Bankers' acceptance 
Trust receipts 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM 

797,454 

1,371,322 
2,168,776 

181,680 

1,371,322 
1,553,002 

RM 

614,295 
588,000 
659,021 

1,861,316 

195,286 
588,000 
659,021 

1,442,307 

RM 

419,474 
1,158,000 

1,577,474 

211,666 
1,158,000 

1,369,666 

RM 

954,000 

954,000 

954,000 

954,000 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.14 Bank Borrowings (Cont'd) 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Repayable after twelve months 
Secured 
Term loan 
Total borrowings 

615,774 
2,168,776 

419,009 207,808 
1,861,316 1,577,474 

The above credit facilities obtained from licensed banks are secured on the followings: 

eIMB Bank Berhad (Multi-Option Line) 

(a) Pledged of fixed deposits of SCHWM as disclosed in Note 8.8.11 ofthis report; 

954,000 

(b) Upfront fixed deposits of RM200,OOO from Mr. Lau Mong Ling, Mr. Wong Sin Chin and 
Mr. Yeen Yoon Hin; and 

(c) Joint and several guarantee for RMSSO,OOO by the Directors of SCHWM namely Mr. Lau 
Mong Ling, Mr. Wong Sin Chin and Mr. Yeen Yoon Hin. 

United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Berhad (Bankers' Acceptance) 

(a) Third legal charge for RM1.5 million over industrial land together with factory located @ 
Lot 35 (No PT 23677), Jalan 1/1, Kawasan Perusahaan Cheras Jaya, Balakong; and 

(b) A corporate guarantee for RM1,250,OOO by SCHWM. 

Public Bank Berhad (Multi-Option Line) 

(a) Joint and several guarantee by the Directors of SCHWM namely Mr. Lau Mong Ling, Mr. 
Wong Sin Chin and Mr. Yeen Yoon Hin; and 

(b) Corporate guarantee by SCH Corporation Sdn Bhd 
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UHy _____ _ 
S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.14 Sank Sorrowings (Cont'd) 

Maturity of bank borrowings is as follows: -

<-------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Within one year 1,553,002 1,442,307 1,369,666 954,000 
Between one and two years 198,407 211,705 207,808 
8etween two and three years 212,846 207,304 
Between three and four years 204,521 

2,168,776 1,861,316 1,577,474 954,000 

Range of interest rates per annum during the financial year as follows: -

<-------------------FYE 31 August-------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
0/0 % 

Term loan 7.80 7.80 
5.28 - 5.39 Bankers' acceptance 

Trust receipts 7.55 - 8.30 7.55 - 8.30 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.15 Deferred Tax Liabilities 

<-------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

At 1 5eptem ber 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive 

income 
At 31 August 

217,980 

(45,760) 
172,220 

172,220 

(52,941) 
119,279 

119,279 

(55,060) 
64,219 

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities are as follows: -

Accelerated 
capital 

allowances 
RM 

At 1 September 2012 64,219 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income (4,100) 
At 31 August 2013 60,119 

At 1 September 2011 119,279 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income (55,060) 
At 31 August 2012 64,219 

At 1 September 2010 172,220 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income (52,941) 
At 31 August 2011 119,279 

At 1 September 2009 217,980 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income (45,760) 
At 31 August 2010 172,220 

(The remaining ofthis page is intentionally left blank.) 
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64,219 

(4,100) 
60,119 

Total 
RM 

64,219 
(4,100) 
60,119 

119,279 
(55,060) 
64,219 

172,220 
(52,941) 
119,279 

217,980 
(45,760) 
172,220 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.16 Trade Payables 

Trade payables 
- Related parties 
- Third parties 

Trade payables turnover (days) 
- Third parties 

Note: 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

14,389 
424,015 
438,404 

85 

10,366 
519,635 
530,001 

71 

3,518 
335,142 
338,660 

83 

438,836 
438,836 

58 

* Trade pay abies turnover day is computed by dividing average trade payables (third parties) over 
purchases from third parties x 365 days. 

SCHWM's trade credit terms given by suppliers are ranging from 150 days and 180 days (2010 to 
2012: 150 to 180 days). Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 
The turnover period was lower than the credit terms due to prompt payment made by SCHWM to 
suppliers. 

8.8.17 Other Payables 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Other payables 
- Related party 36,000 
- Third parties 61,079 62,980 63,880 64,320 

97,079 62,980 63,880 64,320 
Accruals 14,386 32,219 13,615 7,000 

111,465 95,199 77,495 71,320 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.18 Dividend 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

A first interim single tier tax exempt 
dividend of Nil (2011:50 sen; 2010: Nil) 
on 500,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 
each in respect of financial year ended 31 
August 2011 

A second interim single tier tax exempt 
dividend of Nil (2011:80 sen; 2010: Nil) 
on 500,000 ordinary shares of RM 1.00 
each in respect of financial year ended 31 
August 2011 

A third interim single tier tax exempt 
dividend of Nil (2011:60 sen; 2010: Nil) 
on 500,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 
each in respect of financial year ended 31 
August 2011 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

250,000 

400,000 

300,000 
950,000 
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8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.19 Staff Costs 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

Staff costs (excluding Directors) 
Administrative expenses 

- Cost of goods sold 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

221,609 
168,624 
390,233 

284,862 
126,203 
411,065 

188,387 
145,615 
334,002 

207,376 
192,563 
399,939 

Included in the total staff costs above are contributions made to the Employees Provident Fund 
under a defined contribution plan for SCHWM amounting to RM 33,048 (2012:RM26,544 ;2011: 
RM32,454; 2010: RM32,750). 

Cost of goods sold mainly consists of direct labour costs such as salaries, bonuses, social 
insurance and other benefits provided to our staff which are directly involved in our 
manufacturing activities. 

8.8.20 Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Identity of related parties 

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to 
the SCHWM if the SCHWM has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or 
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, 
or vice versa, or where the SCHWM and the party are subject to common control or 
common significant inftuence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. 

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directng and controlling the actvities of the 
SCHWM either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all the 
Directors of the SCHWM and certain members of senior management of the SCHWM. 

SCHWM has related party relationship with the Directors' related companies. 

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, SCHWM 
had the following transactions with related parties during the financial years. 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.20 Related Party Disclosures (Cont'd) 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 
Sales: -
SCH Corporation Group* 3,001,46B 3,513,404 4,604,900 4,222,079 
Italiaworld* 619,092 860,233 446,811 664,605 
5peed Volta 8elt 5dn 8hd 534,765 378,462 

4,155,325 4,752,099 5,051,711 4,886,684 
Alteration, hooking and other 
workmanship charged:-

SCH Corporation Group* 180,449 105,164 19,950 45,130 
Speed Volta Belt Sdn Bhd 25,660 9,600 

206,109 114,764 19,950 45,130 
Purchases: -
SCH Corporation Group* 224,131 146,206 763,589 125,563 
5CHME* 450 3,117 
5peed Volta 8elt 5dn 8hd 1,098 

225,229 146,656 763,589 128,680 

Rental paid to: -
5CH Corporation Group* 72,000 72,000 72,000 72,000 
Edisi Kiara 5dn 8hd 11,700 9,900 
Lau Mong Ling 9,900 9,900 

93,600 91,800 72,000 72,000 

(c) Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 
31 August 2013 is disclosed in Notes 8.8.8, 8.8.10 and 8.8.16 of this report. 

(d) SCHWM does not have any key management personnel compensation from FYE 2010 to 
FYE 2013. 
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S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.21 Financial Instruments 

Certain comparative figures have not been presented for 31 August 2010 by virtue of the 
exemption given in paragraph 44AA of FRS 7, which is effective for annual periods beginning on 
and after 1 January 2010. 

Cal Classification of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measure on an ongoing basis either at fair value 
or at amortised cost. The principal accounting policies in Note 6.1 describe how the classes 
of the financial instruments are measured and how income and expenses including fair 
values gain or loss are recognised. 

The analysis of the financial assets and financial liabilities in the statements of financial 
position by the class of financial instruments to which they are assigned and therefore by 
the measurement basis are as follows: -

2013 
Financial Assets 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Fixed deposits with a licensed bank 
Cash and bank balances 
Total financial assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amounts owing to Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Available-
for-sale 

RM 
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Loans and 
receivables 

RM 

2,601,052 
277,440 
210,750 
20,737 

3,109,979 

Financial 
liabilities 

at 
amortised 

cost Total 
RM RM 

2,601,052 
277,440 
210,750 

20,737 
3,109,979 

438,836 438,836 
71,320 71,320 
19,000 19,000 

399,449 399,449 
954.000 954,000 

1,882,605 1,882,605 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(a) Classification of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Financial 
liabilities 

at 
Available- Loans and amortised 

for-sale receivables cost Total 
RM RM RM RM 

2012 
Financial Assets 
Trade receivables 2,726,271 2,726,271 
Other receivables 280,607 280,607 
Fixed deposits with a licensed bank 204,891 204,891 
Cash and bank balances 68,812 68,812 
Total financial assets 3,280,581 3,280,581 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 338,660 338,660 
Other payables 77,495 77,495 
Amount owing to 

Directors 19,000 19,000 
Hire purchase payables 487,643 487,643 
Bank borrowings 1,577,474 1,577,474 
Total financial liabilities 2,500,272 2,500,272 

Financial 
liabilities at 

Available- Loans and amortised 
for-sale receivables cost Total 

RM RM RM RM 
2011 
Financial Assets 
Trade receivables 2,337,548 2,337,548 
Other receivables 283,377 283,377 
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 94,084 94,084 
Cash and bank balances 364,936 364,936 
Total financial assets 3,179,945 3,179,945 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 530,001 530,001 
Other payables 95,199 95,199 
Amount owing to 

Directors 19,000 19,000 
Hire purchase payables 584,996 584,996 
Bank borrowings 1,861,316 1,861,316 
Total financial liabilities 3,090,512 3,090,512 
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8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(a) Classification of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

2010 
Financial Assets 
Other investment 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Amount owing by 

Directors 
Fixed deposits with a licensed bank 
Cash and bank balances 
Total financial assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 
other payables 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Available­
for-sale 

RM 

240,000 

240,000 

Loans and 
receivables 

RM 

2,489,629 
335,036 

580,070 
406,669 

57,981 
3,869,385 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised 
cost 

RM 

438,404 
111,465 
741,912 

2,168,776 
3,460,557 

Total 
RM 

240,000 
2,489,629 

335,036 

580,070 
406,669 

57,981 
4,109,385 

438,404 
111,465 
741,912 

2,168,776 
3,460,557 

SCHWM's financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial resources 
are available for the development of SCHWM's operations whilst managing its financial 
risks, including credit risk, liquidity and market risks. SCHWM operates within clearly 
defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and SCHWM's policy is not to engage 
in speculative transactions. 

The following sections provide details regarding SCHWM's exposure to the 
abovementioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the 
management of these risks. 
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S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cant'd) 

(i) Credit risk 

Financial assets that are primarily exposed to credit risks are receivables, 
deposits and cash and bank balances. 

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to SCHWM if a customer or counterparty 
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. SCHWM's 
exposure to credit risk arises principally from the inability of its customers to 
make payments when due. 

SCHWM has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties 
and deposit with banks and financial institutions with good credit rating. The 
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis via SCHWM's 
management reporting procedures and action will be taken for long outstanding 
debts. 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statement of 
financial position at the end of the reporting period represents SCHWM's 
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No financial 
assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk. 

(ii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that SCHWM will encounter difficulty in meeting its 
financial obligations as they fall due. SCHWM's exposure to liquidity risk arises 
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. 

SCHWM's funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the objective 
of meeting business obligations on a timely basis. SCHWM monitors its cash 
ftows and ensures that sufficient funding is in place to meet the obligations as 
and when they fall due. 

The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity for non­
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash ftows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on 
which SCHWM can be required to pay. 
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S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) 

(ii) Uquidity risk (Cont'd) 

The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been 
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which SCHWM can be 
required to pay. 

2013 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

2012 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Within 1 Total Total 
year or on contractual carrying 

demand 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4to 5 years cashflows amount 
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM 

438,836 438,836 438,836 
71,320 71,320 71,320 

19,000 19,000 19,000 
193,656 162,441 59,508 12,421 428,026 399,449 
954,000 954,000 954,000 

1,676,812 162,441 59,508 12,421 1,911,182 1,882,605 

338,660 
77,495 

338,660 
77,495 

338,660 
77,495 

19,000 19,000 19,000 
226,607 180,192 73,557 29,892 12,421 522,669 487,643 

1,395,900 216,258 1,612,158 _~77,474 

2,057,662 396,450 73,557 ,29,892 12,421 2,569,98L-----.bS00,272 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) 

(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 

2011 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Sank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

2010 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Hire purchase payables 
Sank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Within 1 
year or on 

demand 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years 
RM RM RM RM RM 

530,001 
95,199 

Total 
contractual 

cashflows 
RM 

530,001 
95,199 

Total 
carrying 
amount 

RM 

530,001 
95,199 

19,000 19,000 19,000 
220,620 220,620 152,270 43,665 637,175 584,996 

1,484,921 237,900 216,258 1,939,079 1,861,316 
2,349,741 458,520 368,528 43,665 3,220,454 3,090,512 

438,404 438,404 438,404 
111,465 111,465 111,465 
263,948 195,530 185,808 134,866 43,665 823,817 741,912 

1,609,222 237,900 237,900 216,258 2,301,280 2,168,776 
2,423,039 433,430 423,708 321,124 43,665 3,674,966 3,460,557 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(c) Market risks 

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk 

SCHWM's exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is minimal. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

SCHWM obtains financing through other financial liabilities. SCHWM's policy is to 
obtain the financing with the most favourable interest rates in the market. 

SCHWM constantly monitors its interest rate risk and does not utilise interest 
swap contracts or other derivative instruments for trading or speculative 
purposes. At the end of the reporting period, there were no such arrangements, 
interest rate swap contracts or other derivative instruments outstanding. 

The carrying amounts of SCHWM's financial instruments that are exposed to 
interest rate risk are as follows: 

Financial Assets 
Fixed deposits with licensed 

banks 

Financial Liability 
Sank borrowings 

<--------------------As at 31 August------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

406,669 194,084 204,891 210,750 

2,168,776 1,861,316 1,577,474 954,000 

SCHWM is exposed to interest rate risk arising from its short and long term debts 
obligations, and its fixed deposits. Fixed deposits interest rate is insignificant and 
any fluctuations in the rate would have no material impact on the results of 
SCHWM. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.S Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

S.S.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(c) Market risk (Cont'd) 

(iii) Interest rate risk sensitivity 

As at 31 August 2013, an increase in market interest rates by 1% on financial 
asset and financial liability of SCHWM which have variable interest rates at the 
end of the reporting period would decrease the profit before taxation by RM 
7,433 (2012:RM13,726; 2011:RM13,834;2010:RM17,621). This analysis assumes 
that all other variables remain unchanged. 

As at 31 August 2013, a decrease in market interest rates by 1% on financial 
asset and financial liability of SCHWM which have variable interest rates at the 
end of the reporting period would have had the ecual but opposite effect on the 
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain unchanged. 

(d) Fair values of financial instruments 

Financial instruments at fair value 

As the financial assets and liabilities of the SCHWM are not carried at fair value by any 
valuation method, the fair value hierarchy analysis is not presented. 

Financial instrument other than those carried at fair value 

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value 

The carrying amounts of short term receivables and payables, cash and cash equivalents 
and short term borrowings approximate their fair value due to the relatively short term 
nature of these financial instruments and insignificant impact of discounting. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.21 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(d) Fair values of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Carrying Fair 
amount value 

RM RM 
Financial liabilities 
Hire purchase payables (Non - current) 
2013 224,346 208,762 
2012 282,115 259,232 
2011 393,488 355,880 
2010 514,922 467,570 

Bank Borrowing (Non - current) 
2013 * 
2012 207,808 * 
2011 419,009 * 
2010 615,774 * 

Note: 

* The carrying amount of the non-current term loan are reasonable approximation of fair 
value as they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates 
on or near the reporting date. 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.22 Capital Management 

SCHWM's management manages its capital to ensure that SCHWM is able to continue as a going 
concern and maintains an optimal capital structure, so as to maximise shareholder value. The 
management reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks 
associated with the capital. 

The capital of SCHWM consists of shareholders' equity, cash and cash equivalents and bank 
borrowings. 

The gearing ratio is as follows: 

<----------------As at 31 August----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Total loans and borrowings 2,910,688 2,446,312 2,065,117 1,353,449 
Less: cash and cash equivalents (57,981) (364,936) (68,812) (20,737) 
Net debts 2,852,707 2,081,376 1,996,305 1,332,712 

Total equity 2,145,664 1,370,498 2,070,194 2,439,611 

Debt·to·equity ratio (%) 133% 152% 96% 55% 

There were no changes in SCHWM's approach to capital management during the financial year. 

SCHWM is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.8 Notes to the Financial Statements of SCHWM (Cont'd) 

8.8.23 Comparative Figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified where necessary to conform with the current 
financial year's presentation as follows: 

2010 
Statement of cash flows 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Adjustment for: 

Gain on disposal of other investment 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Proceeds from disposal of other 
investment 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Increased in fixed deposits pledged 

Net increase on cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 
the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the financial year 

Less: Fixed deposits pledged with licensed 
banks 

As previously 
stated 

RM 

1,300,000 

(32,075) 

496,725 
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(5,282) 

5,282 

(9,756) 

(9,756) 

(396,913) 

(406,669) 

As 
restated 

RM 

(5,282) 

1,305,282 

(9,756) 

(41,831) 

99,812 

(406,669) 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.9 Financial Statements of SCHME 

8.9.1 

We set out below the consolidated financial statements of SCHME which includes its statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement for changes in equity and 
statement of cash fiows for the four (4) FYE 2010 to FYE 2013. 

Statements of Comprehensive Income 

<---------------------- FYE 31 August --------------------
----> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
Note RM RM RM RM 

Revenue 8.10.1 15,395,767 10,266,479 15,910,919 13,905,568 
Cost of sales (11,486,089) (7,244,337) (11,645,459) (9,715,728) 
Gross profit 3,909,678 3,022,142 4,265,460 4,189,840 
Other income 25,223 81,092 422,305 48,858 
Administration expenses (1,840,359) (1,597,056) (1,826,676) (2,029,293) 
Finance costs 8.10.2 (90,610) (94,823) (154,320) (110,272) 
Profit before taxation 8.10.3 2,003,932 1,411,355 2,706,769 2,099,133 
Taxation 8.10.4 (500,485) (354,703) (709,924) (544,133) 
Net profit for the financial year, 

representing total 
comprehensive income for the 
financial year 1,503,447 1,056,652 1,996,845 1,555,000 

Key financial ratio: 
Earnings before interest and 

taxation 2,094,542 1,506,178 2,861,089 2,209,405 
Earnings before interest, 

taxation and depreciation 2,182,085 1,759,845 3,347,285 2,882,270 
GP margin (%) (a) 25.39 29.44 26.81 30.13 
P8T margin (%) 13.02 13.75 17.01 15.10 
PAT margin (%) 9.77 10.29 12.55 11.86 
Effective tax rate (%) 24.98 25.13 26.23 25.92 
Gross EP5 (RM) (b) 5.01 3.53 6.77 5.24 
Net EP5 (RM) (c) 3.76 2.64 4.99 3.89 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 

Notes: 

(a) The GP margin is computed by dividing the GP against the revenue earned in the respective 
financial years. 

(b) The gross EPS is computed by dividing the PBT against the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares. 

(c) The net EPS is computed by dividing the PAT against the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHY 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.9 Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.9.2 Statements of Financial Position 

<------------------ As at 31 August -------------------> 
Note 2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 8.10.5 474,317 984,302 1,780,243 1,127,290 
Other investments 8.10.6 1,020,000 
Deferred tax assets 8.10.14 25,480 

1,494,317 984,302 1,805,723 1,127,290 

Current Assets 

Inventories 8.10.7 3,295,331 5,846,983 5,787,233 4,509,837 

Trade receivables 8.10.8 2,981,479 3,570,524 4,585,215 4,763,095 

Other receivables 8.10.9 14,513 300 320,400 414,481 

Tax Recoverable 230,999 276,230 

Amount owing by Directors 8.10.10 290,400 
Fixed depoSits with licensed 

banks 8.10.11 1,025,052 1,053,163 1,081,267 1,114,956 

Cash and bank balances 1,018,337 328,161 56,073 182,657 

8,625,112 10,799,131 12,061,187 11,261,256 

Total Assets 10,119,429 11,783,433 13,866,910 12,388,546 

Equity 
Share capital 8.10.12 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 

Retained profits 3,377,961 3,234,613 5,231,458 6,786,458 

Total Equity 3,777,961 3,634,613 5,631,458 7,186A58 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Hire purchase payables 8.10.13 624,985 602,160 1,007,758 480,387 

Deferred taxation 8.10.14 6,989 14,220 

631,974 602,160 1,007?58 494,607 

Current Liabilities 
Trade payables 8.10.15 3,839,432 4,894,895 3,793,299 1,539,373 
Other payables 8.10.16 655,694 1,955,545 2,229,198 2,470,377 
Amount owing to Directors 30,430 
Finance lease payables 8.10.17 35,122 
Hire purchase payables 8.10.13 853,532 431,704 591,149 412,731 

Sank borrowings 8.10.18 174,252 177,434 614,048 285,000 
Tax payable 151,462 56,652 

5,709,494 7,546,660 7,227,694 4,707,481 

Total Liabilities 6,341,468 8,148,820 8,235,452 5,202,088 

Total Equity and Liabilities 10,119,429 11?83,433 13,866,910 12,388,546 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.9 Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.9.3 Statements of Changes in Equity 

Distributable 
Share Retained 

Capital Profits Total 

Note RM RM RM 

At 1 September 2009 400,000 1,874,514 2,274,514 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income during the 
financial year 1,503,447 1,503,447 

At 31 August 2010 400,000 3,377,961 3,777,961 

At 1 September 2010 400,000 3,377,961 3,777,961 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income during the 
financial year 1,056,652 1,056,652 

Dividends 8.10.19 (1,200,000) (1,200,000) 

At 31 AU9ust 2011 400,000 3,234,613 3,634,613 

At 1 September 2011 400,000 3,234,613 3,634,613 

Net profit for the financial year, representin9 
total comprehensive income during the 
financial year 1,996,845 1,996,845 

At 31 AU9ust 2012 400,000 5,231,458 5,631,458 

At 1 September 2012 400,000 5,231,458 5,631,458 

Net profit for the financial year, representing 
total comprehensive income during the 
financial year 1,555,000 1,555,000 

At 31 August 2013 400,000 6,786,458 7,186,458 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.9 Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.9.4 Statements of Cash Flows 

<---------------- FYE 31 August ------------------> 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Profit before taxation 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment 

Deposit written off 

Interest expense 

Interest income 
Gain on disposal of other investment 

Property, plant and equipment written off 
Reversal of impairment on trade 

receivables 
Operating profit before working capital 

changes 

(Increase)/Decrease in working capital 
Inventories 

Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Trade payables 

Other payables 

Amount owing to/(by) Diredors 

cash generated from operations 
Interest paid 

Interest received 
Tax paid 

Net cash from/(used in) operating 
activities 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

2,003,932 1,411,355 2,706,769 2,099,133 

87,543 253,667 486,196 672,865 
200 

90,610 94,823 154,320 110,272 

(21,707) (28,111) (93,985) (46,842) 

(1,280) (52,558) 

707 660 

(328,000) 

2,159,098 1,680,083 2,925,960 2,835,428 

1,011,452 (2,551,652) 59,750 1,277,396 

431,315 (589,045) (686,691) (177,880) 
(1,989) 14,013 (29,700) (94,081) 

(1,321,456) 1,055,464 (1,101,596) (2,253,926) 

371,193 99,851 1,473,653 241,179 
- 320,830 (320,830 -

490,515 (1,650,539) (605,414) (1,007,312) 
2 649 613 , , 29544 2 320 546 1 828 116 

(90,610) (94,823) (154,320) (110,272) 
21,707 28,111 93,985 46,842 

(425039 (456503 (1 023 055 (549664 

(493,942) (523,215) (1,083,390) (613,094) 

2,155,671 (493,671) 1,237,156 1,215,022 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.9 Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.9.4 Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

<-------------- FYE 31 August ----------------> 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Purchase of property, plant and 
equipment 
Purchase of other investments 
Proceed from disposal of investment 

Net cash (used in)/from investin9 
activities 

Cash Flows 
Activities 

Dividend paid 

From Financing 

Addition/(repayment) of hire purchase 
and finance lease payables 

(Decreased)jincreased in bankers' 
acceptance 

(Increased)/ decreased in fixed deposit 
pled9ed 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the financial year comprise: -

Fixed deposits with licensed banks 

Cash and bank balances 

8ank overdraft 

Less: Fixed deposits pled9ed with a 
licensed bank 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

(52,770) 
(2,880,000) 
1,901,280 

(1,031,490) 

399,100 

(514,000) 

(21,707) 

(136,607) 

987,574 

(25,489) 

962,085 

1,025,052 

1,018,337 

(56,252) 

1,987,137 

(1,025,052) 

962,085 

(80,359) 

1,072,558 

992,199 

(1,163,775) 

28,000 

(28,111) 

(1,163,886) 

(665,358) 

962,085 

296,727 

1,053,163 

328,161 

(31,434) 

1,349,890 

(1,053,163) 

296,727 

(14,538) (19,912) 

(14,538) (19,912) 

(1,200,000) 

(703,216) (705,789) 

211,000 (72,000) 

(28,104) (33,689) 

(1,720,320) (811,478) 

(497,702) 383,632 

296,727 (200,975) 

(200,975) 182,657 

1,081,267 1,114,956 

56,073 182,657 
(257,048) 

880,292 1,297,613 

(1,081,267) (1,114,956) 

(200,975) 182,657 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME 

8.10.1 Revenue 

This represents invoiced value of goods sold less trade discounts and returns. 

8.10.2 Finance Costs 

Interest expenses on: 
Bank overdraft 
Bankers/acceptance 
Finance lease and hire purchase 
Letter of credit 

8.10.3 Profit before Taxation 

Profit is derived after charging/(crediting): 

Auditors' remuneration 
-Current year 
-Under provision in prior year 
Deposit written off 
Depreciation of property, plant and 

eqUipment 
Director's allowances 
Reversal of impairment on trade receivables 

Fixed deposit interest income 
Other interest income 
Gain on disposal of other investment 

Property, plant and eqUipment written off 

Realised gain on foreign exchange 
Rental of premises 

<----------------- FYE 31 August -------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

523 1,857 2,366 2,408 
2,843 3,634 19,114 21,941 

86,540 89,332 130,680 85,813 
704 2,160 110 

90,610 94,823 154,320 110,272 

<------------------ FYE 31 August --------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

4,000 

87,543 
144,000 

(21,707) 

(1,280) 

(2,236) 
96,000 

6,000 

200 

253,667 
144,000 

(28,111) 

(52,558) 

707 
(423) 

108,000 

6,000 

486,196 

(328,000) 
(28,105) 
(65,880) 

660 
(320) 

10,000 
4,800 

672,865 

(33,689) 
(13,153) 

(2,016) 
2,250 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.4 Taxation 

<---------------- FYE 31 August -------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 
~ RM ~ RM 

Current income tax: 
Current year provision 493,796 361,692 739,000 604,300 
Over provision in prior year (3,596) (99,867) 

493,796 361,692 735,404 504,433 
Deferred tax: 

Relating to origination and reversal of 
temporary differences 6,689 (6,989) (17,914) (13,800) 

(Over)/Under provision in prior year (8,286) 53,500 
500,485 354,703 709,924 544,133 

SCHME being Malaysian resident company with paid-up capital of less than RM2.S million 
qualified for the preferential tax rates under Paragraph 2A, Schedule 1 of the Income Tax Act 
1967 as income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 20% (2010 and 2012: 20%) on the 
first RMSOO,OOO and 2S% (2010 and 2012: 25%) on balance of the estimated assessable profit 
for the financial year. 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of SCHME is as follows: -

<---------------- FYE 31 August -------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM ~ ~ 

Profit before taxation 2,003,932 1,411,355 2,706,769 2,099,133 

Taxation at statutory tax rate of 25% 500,984 352,839 676,692 524,800 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 24,821 21,192 70,114 90,700 
Income not subject to tax (320) (13,140) 
Overprovision of taxation in prior year (3,596) (99,867) 
Deferred tax assets not recognised 18,812 
(Over)/Under provision of deferred tax in 

prior years (8,286) 53,500 
Tax incentive obtained from differential tax 

rate of 20% (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 
Tax expense for the financial year 500,485 354,703 709,924 544,133 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.4 Taxation (Cont'd) 

Prior to the year of assessment 2008, Malaysian companies adopted the full imputation system. 
In accordance with the Finance Act 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, companies 
shall not be entitled to deduct tax on dividends paid, credited or distributed to its shareholders, 
and such dividends will be exempted from tax in the hands of the shareholders ("single tier 
system"). However, there is a transitional period of six years, expiring on 31 December 2013, to 
allow companies to pay franked dividends to their shareholders under limited circumstances. 
Companies also have an irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance and opt to pay dividends 
under the single tier system. The change in the tax legislation also provides for the 108 balance 
to be locked-in as at 31 December 2007 in accordance with Section 39 of the Finance Act 2007. 

SCHME did not elect for the irrecoverable option to disregard the 108 balance. Accordingly, 
during the transitional period, SCHME may utilise the credit 108 balance as at 31 August 2013 
and 2012 to distribute cash dividend payments to ordinary shareholdings as defined under 
Finance Act 2007. As at 31 August 2013 and 2012, SCHME has sufficient credit in the 108 
balance to pay franked dividends amounting to RM105,000 (2012: RM105,000) out of its retained 
earnings. If the balance of the retained earnings of RM6,681,500 (2012:RM5,126,500) were to be 
distributed as dividends, SCHME may distribute such dividends under the single tier system. 

8.10.S Property, Plant and Equipment 

Motor Office 
Machinery Vehicles Equipment Total 

RM RM RM RM 
2013 
Cost 
At 1 September 2012 2,028,259 606,443 62,324 2,697,026 
Additions 19,912 19,912 
At 31 August 2013 2,028,259 606,443 82,236 2,716,938 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2012 512,107 381,693 22,983 916,783 
Charge for the year 570,396 93,000 9,469 672,865 
At 31 August 2013 1,082,503 474,693 32,452 1,589,648 

Carrying amount 

At 31 August 2013 945,756 131,750 49,784 1,127,290 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.S Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2012 
Cost 
At 1 September 2011 
Additions 
Written off 
At 31 August 2012 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2011 
Charge for the year 
Written off 
At 31 August 2012 

Carrying amount 

At 31 August 2012 

2011 
Cost 
At 1 September 2010 
Additions 
Written off 
At 31 August 2011 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2010 
Charge for the financial year 
Written off 
At 31 August 2011 

Carrying amount 
At 31 August 2011 

Machinery 
RM 

760,000 
1,268,259 

2,028,259 

126,666 
385,441 

512,107 

1,516,152 

Machinery 
RM 

760,000 

760,000 

126,666 

126,666 

633,334 
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Motor 
Vehicles 

RM 

606,443 

606,443 

287,719 
93,974 

381,693 

224,750 

Motor 
Vehicles 

RM 

606,443 

606,443 

166,431 
121,288 

287,719 

318,724 

Office 
Equipment 

RM 

48,834 
14,538 
(1,048) 

62,324 

16,590 
6,781 
(388) 

22,983 

39,341 

Office 
Equipment 

RM 

45,546 
4,359 

(1,071) 
48,834 

11,241 
5,713 
(364) 

16,590 

32,244 

Total 
RM 

1,415,277 
1,282,797 

(1,048) 
2,697,026 

430,975 
486,196 

(388) 
916,783 

1,780,243 

Total 
RM 

651,989 
764,359 

(1,071) 
1,415,277 

177,672 
253,667 

(364) 
430,975 

984,302 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

2010 
Cost 
At 1 September 2009 
Additions 
At 31 August 2010 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 September 2009 
Charge for the financial year 
At 31 August 2010 

Carrying amount 

At 31 August 2010 

Machinery 
RM 

Motor 
Vehicles 

RM 

141,443 
465,000 
606,443 

83,892 
82,539 

166,431 

440,012 

Office 
Equipment 

RM 

39,776 
5,770 

45,546 

6,237 
5,004 

11,241 

34,305 

Total 
RM 

181,219 
470,770 
651,989 

90,129 
87,543 

177,672 

474,317 

(a) The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment acquired under lease and hire 
purchase arrangement are as follows: 

Machinery 
Motor vehicles 

<-------------------As at 31 August--------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM 

440,012 
440,012 

RM 

633,334 
317,750 
951.084 

RM 

1,516,152 
224,750 

1,740,902 

RM 

945,756 
131,750 

1.077,506 

During FYE 2012, SCHME acquired new quarry machinery (Dyteco DJC-4840 Jaw 
Crusher) under hire purchase which amounted to RM1.28 million. SCHME is leasing this 
machine to Syarikat Gembilang Sdn Bhd for 48 months which generated a monthly rental 
income of RM30,544. 

(b) The aggregate additional cost for the property, plant and equipment of SCHME during the 
financial year under hire purchase arrangement and cash payments are as follows: 

Aggregate costs 
Less: Hire purchase financing 
Cash payments 

<--------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM 

470,770 
(418,000) 

52,770 

RM 

764,359 
(684,000) 

80,359 

RM 

1,282,797 
(10268,259) 

14,538 

RM 

19,912 

19,912 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

S.10.6 Other Investments 

In Malaysia 
Marketable securities 
At cost 

At 1 September 
Addition 
Disposal 
At 31 August 

At market value 
At 31 August 

S.10.7 Inventories 

At cost: 
Finished goods 

+-------------------As at 31 August-----------------7 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

40,000 1,020,000 
2,880,000 

(1,900,000) (1,020,000) 
1,020,000 

1,045,980 

<-------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

3,295,331 5,846,983 5,787,233 4,509,837 

The cost of inventories of SCHME recognised as an expense during the year was as follows: -

<-------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

RM RM RM RM 

Cost of inventories 10,987,971 6,947,759 11,200,581 9,412,616 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
S. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

S.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

S.10.S Trade Receivables 

<-------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 
WW Wll WU W~ 

RM RM RM RM 
Trade receivables 
- Third parties 1,239,561 935,312 801,157 1,325,180 
- Related parties 2,069,918 2,963,212 3,784,058 3,437,915 

3,309,479 3,898,524 4,585,215 4,763,095 
Less: Accumulated impairment (328,000) (328,000) 

2,981,479 3,570,524 4,585,215 4,763,095 

Trade receivables turnover (days) 
- Third parties 43 68 41 75 

Note: 

* Trade receivables turnover day is computed by dividing average trade receivables (third parties) over 
sales to third parties x 365 days 

Trade receivables are remgnised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair value 
on initial recognition. The amounts owing by related parties represent unsecured, interest-free 
and repayable on demand. 

SCHME's normal trade credit terms ranging from 150 days and 180 days (2010 to 2012: 150 to 
180 days). Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 

In FYE2010, the trade receivables turnover days was relatively low which attributable to the 
increase in sales of quarry machinery and quarry equipments where most of their customers 
utilised banking facilities to purchase these quarry machinery and quarry equipments. 

The trade receivables tumover days increased from 43 days in FYE 2010 to 68 days in FYE 2011 
and increased from 41 days in FYE 2012 to 75 days in FYE 2013 was mainly due to higher billing 
issued toward the financial year end for sales of spare parts for quarry machinery, quarry 
equipments and remnditloned quarry machinery. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.8 Trade Receivables (Cont'd) 

Movements in impairment during the financial years are as follows: 

At beginning of the financial year 
Reversal of impairment 
At end of the financial year 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
~ RM ~ RM 

328,000 328,000 

328,000 328,000 

328,000 
(328,000) 

Analysis of the trade receivables ageing is as follows: 

<-------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM ~ 

Neither past due nor impaired 2,540,028 3,000,279 3,547,111 3,050,631 
Past due less than 30 days not impaired 24,294 126,169 404,304 530,557 
Past due for more than 31 to 60 days not 

impaired 90,982 26,130 31,809 143,801 
Past due for more than 60 days not 

impaired 326,175 417,946 601,991 1,038,106 
2,981,479 3,570,524 4,585,215 4,763,095 

Impaired 328,000 328,000 
3,309,479 3,898,524 4,585,215 4,763,095 

As at 31 August 2013, trade receivables of RM1,712,464 (2012: RM1,038,104; 2011: RMS70,245; 
201O:RM441,4S1) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 
customers from whom there is no recent history of default. 

In the previous financial years, the trade receivables of the SCHME was individually assessed to 
be impaired amounted to RM328,000 related to customers that are in financial difficulties, have 
defaulted on payments and/or have disputed on the billings. These balances are expected to be 
recovered through the debts recovery process. 

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good 
payment records with SCHME. None of SCHME's trade receivables that are neither past due nor 
impaired have been renegotiated during the financial year. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.9 Other Receivables 

<------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Other receivables 
-Third parties 3,000 79,524 
-Related parties 290,400 303,875 
Deposits 500 300 27,000 1,000 
Prepayments 14,013 30,081 

14,513 300 320,400 414,481 

Other receivables are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair value 
on initial recognition. 

Related party refers to a company in which certain Directors of 5CHME have substantial financial 
interests. 

8.10.10 Amount Owing by Directors 

These represent unsecured, non-interest bearing advances and repayable on demand. 

8.10.11Fixed Deposit with Licensed Banks 

The fixed deposit amounting to RM 1.114,956 (2012: RM1,081,267; 2011: RM1,053,163; 2010: 
RM1,025,052) have been pledged to a licensed bank as security for credit facilities granted to 
5CHME as disclosed in Note 8.10.18 of this report. 

The interest rate of the fixed deposit during the financial year is 2.85% (2012: 2.85%; 
2011:2.95%; 2010: 2.95%) per annum and the maturity of the deposit is 365 days (2010 to 
2012: 365 days). 

8.10.12Share Capital 

Ordinary share of RMl.OO each 
Authorised 

Issued and fully paid 

<--------------------As at 31 August-----------------­
> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the 
5CHME. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with 
regard to the 5CHME's residual assets. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.13 Hire Purchase Payables 

(al Minimum hire purchase payments 
Within one year 
Between one and five years 

Less: Future finance charges 
Present value of hire purchase 

liabilities 

(bl Present value of hire purchase 
liabilities 
Within one year 
8etween one and five years 

Analyse as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Repayable after twelve months 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

918,416 499,346 679,462 456,276 
668,454 638,053 1,073,105 499,147 

1,586,870 1,137,399 1,752,567 955,423 
(108,353) (103,535) (153,660) (62,305) 

1,478,517 1,033,864 1,598,907 893,118 

853,532 431,704 591,149 412,731 
624,985 602,160 1,007,758 480,387 

1,478,517 1,033,864 1,598,907 893,118 

853,532 431,704 591,149 412,731 
624,985 602,160 1,007,758 480,387 

1,478,517 1,033,864 1,598,907 893,118 

The hire purchase liabilities interest is charged at rates ranging from 2.68% to 3.50% (2012: 
2.68% to 3.70%; 2011: 2.68% to 3.80%; 2010: 5.07% to 7.15%;) per annum. 

8.10.14 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 

<------------------As at 31 August---------------> 

At beginning of the year 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive 

income 
At the end of the year 
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300 6,989 (25,480) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.14 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Cont'd) 

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities are as follows: -

At 1 September 2012 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 
At 31 AU9ust 2013 

At 1 September 2011 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 
Al 31 AU9ust 2012 

At 1 September 2010 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 
A1 31 AU9ust 2011 

At 1 September 2009 
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 
Al 31 August 2010 

8.10.15 Trade Payables 

Accelerated 
capital 

allowances 
RM 

(25,480) 
39,700 
14,220 

(25,480) 
(25,4802 

6,989 
(6,989) 

300 
6,689 
6,989 

Total 
RM 

(25,480) 
39,700 
14,220 

(25,480) 
(25,480) 

6,989 
(6,989) 

300 
6,689 
6,989 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

Trade payables 
- Third parties 
- Related parties 

Trade payable turnover (days) 
- Third parties 

Note: 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

320,064 
3,519,368 
3,839,432 

24 

182,340 
4,712,555 
4,894,895 

43 

215,286 
3,578,013 
3,793,299 

19 

153,785 
1,385,588 
1,539,373 

31 

* Trade payab/es turnover day is computed by dividing average trade payab/es (third parties) over 
purchases from third parties x 365 days. 

SCHME's normal trade credit terms granted ranging from 150 days and 180 days(2010 to 2012: 
150 to 180 days). Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 

The trade payable turnover day was relatively low as most of the quarry machinery and quarry 
equipments are purchased and paid via banking facilities. 

A member of UHY Internationi\l, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

396 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.16 Other Pay abies 

<------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Other payables 
- Third parties 6,867 104,771 929,965 466,140 
- Related parties 614,738 614,738 1,225,900 1,933,154 

621,605 719,509 2,155,865 2,399,294 
Accruals 34,089 36,036 12,248 10,000 
Dividend payable 1,200,000 
Prepayment 61,085 61,083 

655,694 1,955,545 2,229,198 2,470,377 

Related parties refer to companies in which certain Directors have substantial financial interests. 

The amounts owing to related parties represent unsecured interest free and repayable on demand 

8.10.17 Finance Lease Payables 

(a) Minimum finance lease payments 
Within one year 
Between one and five years 
Less: Future finance charges 
Present value of finance lease 

liabilities 

(b) Present value of finance lease 
liabilities 

Within one year 
Between one and five years 

Analyse as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Repayable after twelve months 

<-------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

36,984 

(1,862) 

35,122 

35,122 

35,122 

35,122 

35,122 

The finance lease interest rate is charged at rates of Nil (2012:Nil; 2011: Nil; 2010: 6.18%) per 
annum. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.18 Bank Borrowings 

<--------------------As at 31 August-----------------> 

Secured 
Bank overdraft 
Banker's acceptance 

Analysed as: 
Repayable within twelve months 
Secured 

Bank overdraft 
Bankers' acceptance 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

56,252 
118,000 
174,252 

56,252 
118,000 
174,252 

31,434 
146,000 
177,434 

31,434 
146,000 
177,434 

257,048 
357,000 
614,048 

257,048 
357,000 
614,048 

2B5,000 
2B5,000 

285,000 
285,000 

The above credit facilities obtained from Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad are secured 
on the followings: 

(a) Pledged of fixed deposit of SCHME as disclosed in Note B.10.11 of this report; 

(b) Joint and several guarantee for RM3.5 million by the Directors of SCHME, namely Mr. Lau 
Mong ling, Mr. Wong Sin Chin and Mr. Yeen Yoon Hin; and 

(c) Corporate guarantee for RM3.5 million by SCH Corporation. 

Ranges of interest rates per annum are as follows: 

<--------------------FYE 31 August-------------------> 

Bank overdraft 
Bankers' acceptance 
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2010 2011 2012 2013 
% 

7.80 
4.78 

% 
8.10 

5.00-5.22 

% 
8.10 

5.00-5.22 

Ofo 

5.08-5.19 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.19 Dividends 

A interim dividend of 24.00 sen less 25% 
taxation on 400,000 ordinary shares of 
RM1.00 each in respect of financial year 
ended 31 August 2011 

A second interim single tier tax exempt 
dividend of RM2.76 on 400,000 ordinary 
shares of RMl.OO each in respect of 
financial year ended 31 August 2011 

8.10.20 Staff Costs 

Staff costs (excluding Directors) 

<--------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

96,006 

1,103,994 
1,200,000 

<--------------------As at 31 August------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

299,772 525,062 582,542 721,456 

Included in the total staff costs above are contributions made to the Employees Provident Fund 
under a defined contribution plan for 5CHME amounting to RM71,955 (2012: RM55,911; 2011: 
RM44,272; 2010: RM19,957). 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.21 Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Identity of related parties 

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the 
SCHME if the SCHME has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise 
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice 
versa, or where the SCHME and the party are subject to common control or common 
significant infiuence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. 

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
SCHME either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all the 
Directors of the SCHME and certain members of senior management of the SCHME. 

The SCHME has related party relationship with the Directors' related companies. 

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, SCHME had 
the following transactions with related parties during the financial year. 

<-----------------As at 31 August---------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Sales: -
SCH Corporation Group* 4,223,032 5,300,392 8,530,316 8,143,356 
5CHWM* 450 3,117 
Italiaworld* 729,081 917,921 519,728 296,954 
5peed Volta 8elt 5dn 8hd 395,041 337,125 

5,347,154 6,555,888 9,050,444 8,443,427 

Purchases: -
SCH Corporation Group* 5,665,052 6,599,215 7,410,828 6,021,090 
5peed Volta 8elt 5dn 8hd 1,045 72,469 

5,666,097 6,671,684 7,410,828 6,021,090 

Purchases of PPE: -
5CH Corporation Group* 760,000 1,268,259 

(c) Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 
31 August 2013 is disclosed in Notes 8.10.8, 8.10.9, 8.10.10, 8.10.15 and 8.10.16 of this 
report. 

(d) Information regarding the compensation of key management personnel is as follows: 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.21 Related Party Disclosures (Cont'd) 

<------------------As at 31 August-------------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

Short-term employee benefits 
Director's allowances 

RM 

144,000 

RM RM RM 

144,000 

Key management personnel include personnel having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling activities of entity, including any Director of SCHME. 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments 

(a) Classification of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair 
value or at amortised cost. The principal accounting policies in Note 6 describe how the 
classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expense, including 
fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the financial 
assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position by the class of financial 
instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the measurement basis: 

Other 
Available Loan and financial 

for sale receivables liabilities Total 
RM RM RM RM 

2013 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 4,763,095 4,763,095 
Other receivables 414,481 414,481 
Fixed deposit with a 

licensed bank 1,114,956 1,114,956 
Cash and bank balances 182,657 182,657 
Total financial assets 6,475,189 6,475,189 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 1,539,373 1,539,373 
Other payables 2,470,377 2,470,377 
Hire purchase payabJes 893,118 893,118 
Bank borrowings 285,000 285,000 
Total financial liabilities 5,187,868 5,187,868 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cant'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Classification of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Available Loan and 

2012 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Fixed deposit with a 

licensed bank 
Cash and bank balances 
Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Hire purchase payables 
Sank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

2011 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Fixed deposit with a 

licensed bank 
Cash and bank balances 
Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Sank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 
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for sale receivables 
RM RM 

4,585,215 
320,400 

1,081,267 
56,073 

6,042,955 

3,570,524 
300 

1,053,163 
328,161 

4,952,148 

Other 
financial 
liabilities 

RM 

3,793,299 
2,229,198 
1,598,907 

614,048 
8,235,452 

4,894,895 
1,955,545 

30,430 
1,033,864 

177,434 
8,092,168 

Total 
RM 

4,585,215 
320,400 

1,081,267 
56,073 

6,042,955 

3,793,299 
2,229,198 
1,598,907 

614,048 
8,235,452 

3,570,524 
300 

1,053,163 
328,161 

4,952,148 

4,894,895 
1,955,545 

30,430 
1,033,864 

177,434 
8,092,168 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(a) Classification of financial instruments (Cont'd) 

Available Loan and 

2010 
Financial assets 
Other investment 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Amount owing by 

Directors 
Fixed deposit with 

licensed bank 
Cash and bank balances 
Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Finance lease payables 
Hire purchase payables 
8ank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

for sale receivables 
RM RM 

1,020,000 

1,020,000 

2,981,479 
14,513 

290,400 

1,025,052 
1,018,337 
5,329,781 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Other 
financial 
liabilities 

RM 

3,839,432 
655,694 
35,122 

1,478,517 
174,252 

6,183,017 

Total 
RM 

1,020,000 
2,981,479 

14,513 

290,400 

1,025,052 
1,018,337 
6,349,781 

3,839,432 
655,694 
35,122 

1,478,517 
174,252 

6,183,017 

SCHME's financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial resources 
are available for the development of SCHME's operations whilst managing its financial 
risks, inciuding credit risk, liquidity and market risks. SCHME operates within clearly 
defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and SCHME's policy is not to engage 
in speculative transactions. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financia[ risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) 

(i) Credit risk 

Financia[ assets that are primarily exposed to credit risks are receivables, deposit 
and cash and bank balances. 

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the SCHME if a customer or 
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. 
The SCHME's exposure to credit risk arises principally from the inability of its 
customers to make payments when due. 

The SCHME has adopted a po [icy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties 
and deposit with banks and financial institutions with good credit rating. The 
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis via SCHME's 
management reporting procedures and action will be taken for long outstanding 
debts. 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statement of 
financial position at the end of the reporting period represents the SCHME's 
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No financial 
assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk 

(ii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the SCHME wil[ encounter difficulty in meeting 
its financial obligations as they fall due. The SCHME's exposure to liquidity risk 
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and 
liabilities. 

SCHME's funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the objective 
of meeting business obligations on a timely basis. SCHME monitors its cash flows 
and ensures that sufficient funding is in place to meet the obligations as and 
when they fall due. 
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8, AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) 

(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 

The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables 
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which 
SCHME can be required to pay. 

2013 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

2012 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Within 1 
year or on 

demand 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years Total 
RM RM RM RM RM RM 

Total 
carrying 
amount 

RM 

1,539,373 1,539,373 1,539,373 
2,470,377 2,470,377 2,470,377 

456,276 408,822 90,325 955,423 893,118 
285,000 285,000 285,000 

4,751,026 408,822 90,325 5,250,173 5,187,868 

3,793,299 3,793,299 3,793,299 
2,229,199 2,229,199 2,229,199 

679,462 604,039 408,822 60,244 1,752,567 1,598,907 
614,048 614,048 _~048 

7,316,008 604,039 408,822 60,244 8,389,113 8,235,452 
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8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) 

(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 

2011 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Amount owing to 

Directors 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

2010 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Finance lease payables 
Hire purchase payables 
Bank borrowings 
Total financial liabilities 

Within 1 
year or on 

demand 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years 
RM RM RM RM RM 

4,894,895 
1,955,545 

Total 
RM 

4,894,895 
1,955,545 

Total 
carrying 
amount 

RM 

4,894,895 
1,955,545 

30,430 30,430 30,430 
499,346 348.120 242,575 47,358 1,137,399 1,033,864 
177,434, _ ,_ 177,434 177,434 

7,557,650 348,120 242,575 47,358 8,195,703 __ ,mJl1092,168 

3,839,432 3,839,432 3,839,432 
655,694 655,694 655,694 
35,122 35,122 35,122 

918,414 347,330 178,957 94,812 47,357 1,586,870 1,478,517 
174,252 174,252 174,252 

5,622,914 347,330 178,957 94,812 ____ '1I,357 6,291,370 6,183,017 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(c) Market risks 

(i) Foreign currency risk 

SCHME's exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is minimal. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

SCHME is exposed to interest rate risk arising primarily from financing 
through interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities. SCHME's 
policy is to obtain the financing with the most favourable interest rates in the 
market. 

SCHME constantly monitors its interest rate risk and does not utilise interest 
swap contracts or other derivative instruments for trading or speculative 
purposes. At the end of the reporting period, there were no such 
arrangements, interest rate swap contracts or other derivative instruments 
outstanding. 

The carrying amounts of SCHME's financial instruments that are exposed to 
interest rate risk are as follows: 

<---------------As at 31 August---------------> 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
RM RM RM RM 

Financial Asset 
Fixed deposits with licensed 

banks 1,025,052 1,053,163 1,081,267 1,114,956 

Financial Liability 
Bank borrowings 174,252 177,434 614,048 285,000 

SCHME are exposed to interest rate risk arising from its short and long term 
debts obligations and its fixed deposits. Fixed deposits interest rate is 
inSignificant and any fiuctuations in the rate would have no material impact on 
the results of SCHME. 

(iii) Interest rate risk sensitivity 

As at 31 August 2013, an increase in market interest rates by 1% on financial 
asset and financial liability of SCHME which have variable interest rates at the 
end of the reporting period would increase the profit before taxabon by RM 
8,300 (2012:RM4,672; 2011:RM8,757; 201O:RM8,508). This analysis assumes 
that all other variables remain unchanged. 

As at 31 August 2013, a decrease in market interest rates by 1% on financial 
asset and financial liability of SCHME which have variable interest rates at the 
end of the reporting period would have. had the equal but opposite effect on 
the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain 
unchanged. 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.22 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) 

(d) Fair value of financial instrument 

Financial instruments at fair value 

As the financial assets and liabilities of the SCHME are not carried at fair value by any 
valuation method, the fair value hierarchy analysis is not presented. 

Financial instrument other than those carried at fair value 

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts 
are reasonable approximation of fair value 

The carrying amounts of short term receivables and payables, cash and cash 
equivalents and short term borrowings approximate their fair value due to the 
relatively short term nature of these financial instruments and insignificant impact of 
discounting. 

Financial Liabilities 
Hire purchase payables (Non-current) 
FYE 2013 
FYE 2012 
FYE 2011 
FYE 2010 

(The remaining of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
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Carrying Fair 
amount value 

RM RM 

480,387 
1,007,758 

602,160 
624,985 

446,322 
948,699 
588,170 
613,896 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
8. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

8.10 Notes to Financial Statements of SCHME (Cont'd) 

8.10.23 Comparative Figure 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified where necessary to conform with the 
current financial year's presentation as follows: 

2010 

Statement of cash flows 
Cash flows from financing 

activities 

Addition of finance lease payables 

Decreased in bankers' acceptance 

Net proceeds for bank borrowings 
and hire purchase financing 

Increased in fixed deposits 
pledged 

Net increase in cash and cash 
equivalents 

cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of the financial 
year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of the financial year 

Less: Fixed deposits pledged 
with licensed banks 

As previously 
stated 

RM 

3,436 

(118,336) 

1,009,281 

977,856 

1,987,137 
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Reclassification 
RM 

395,664 

(514,000) 

118,336 

(21,707) 

(21,707) 

(1,003,345) 

(1,025,052) 

(1,025,052) 

As 
restated 

RM 

399,100 

(514,000) 

(21,707) 

987,574 

(25,489) 

962,085 

(1,025,052) 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHy _____ _ 
9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There were no significant subsequent events between the date of the latest financial 
statements used in the preparation of this report and the date of this report which will affect 
materially the contents of this report except for the Acquisitions and listing scheme mentioned 
in Section 2. 

Yours faithfully, 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

KUALA LUMPUR, MALAYSIA 

.2 0 DEC 2013 

STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07/1S(J) 
Chartered Accountant 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH GROUP BERHAD 
(Company No.: 972700-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF\411J 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11,05, Levell t 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +603 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH GROUP BERHAD, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 28. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so 
as to give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors 
determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors 'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
materi al misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whethcr due to fi'aud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 972700-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial perfonnance and cash flows for the 
financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia. 

Emphasis o/Matter 

Without qUalifYing our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(a) to the financial statements. 
The Company incurred a net loss of RM4,516 during the financial year ended 31 August 
2013. As at 31 August 2013, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by 
RM14,651 and it had deficit in its shareholder's equity of RM14,651. These conditions, 
indicate the existence of an uncertainty which may cast siguificant doubt about the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The validity of the going concern 
assumption depends on the continuing financial support from its shareholders and payables. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to 
be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

Other Matters 

I. As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SCH GROUP BERHAD adopted 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a transition date 
of I September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by Directors to the 
comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of 
financial position as at 31 August 2012 and I September 2011, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not 
engaged to report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our 
responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at I September 2012 
do not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 31 
August 2013 and financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then 
ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

412 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHI I Appendix I (Cont'd) 

~.------
-9-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH GROUP BERHAD 
(Company No.: 972700-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance 
with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. 
We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

4-----
STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07115(J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

25 NOV 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH GROUP BERHAD 
(Company No.: 972700·P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY W141\) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11,05, LeVf'1 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed PutroJ 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykJ@uhy_com.my 
Web W'o/'N'J,uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH Group Berhad, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial period 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
infurmation, as set out on pages 9 to 27. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors detetmine 
are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free Ii-om material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfurming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of matet'ial misstatetnent of the financial statements, 
whether due to fi'aud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's prcparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 972700-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its 
financial performance and cash flows for the financial period then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatol")' Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements ofthe Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to 
be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
UHY 
Firm Number: AF 141 I 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 3016/1 I/]4 (1) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF14t 1) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Ungkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +603 2279 3088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD., which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Group and of the Company, and 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of 
the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 66. 

Directors' Responsibility Jor the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The 
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmancial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Group and of the Company as of31 August 2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows 
for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the 
followings: 

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been 
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

(b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the 
Company's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the 
purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received 
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes. 

(c) Our audit reports On the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or 
any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act. 

Other Matters 

1. As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. 
adopted Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on 1 September 2012 with a transition 
date of 1 September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by Directors to the 
comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of fmancial 
position as at 3 I August 2012 and 1 September 2011, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows fur the financial year 
ended 31 August 20 I 2 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the 
restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as part of our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 August 
2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
that the opening balances as at I September 2012 do not contain misstatements that 
materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 and financial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 
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INDEPENDENf AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. (CONf'D) 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content ofthis report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07115 (l) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

2 5 NOV 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: l06431-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web VVW\rV.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SIN CHEE HENG SDN BHD., which comprise 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 60. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 106431-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

1. As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD. 
adopted Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a transition 
date of 1 September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by Directors to 
the comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of 
financial position as at 31 August 2012 and 1 September 2011, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 
the financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to 
report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as 
part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
31 August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence that the opening balances as at I September 2012 do not contain 
misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 and 
financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

420 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHI I Appendix III (Cont'd) 

~.------
- 9 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: J06431-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

2. This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do 
not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~--
STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07/15 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

25 November 2013 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 228955-T) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of 
the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 46. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine 
are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors 'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as we!1 as evaluating the overa!1 presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 228955-T) 
(IncOlporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremeuts 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, tbe accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

1. As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. 
BHD. adopted Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a 
transition date of 1 September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by 
Directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012 and 1 September 2011, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not 
engaged to report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our 
responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at I September 2012 do 
not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of31 August 2013 
and financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 228955-T) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (cont' d) 

2. This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other pnrpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07/15 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SARA WAK) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 430948-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Chartered Accountants 
SUite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web WWIAI.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 47. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the re uirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such atemal control as the Directors determine 
are necessary to enable the preparation of financi, statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors 'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these f lancial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved , andards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requil ments and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fin ncial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtail audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The proceC Ires selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SARA W AK) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 430948-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

(i) As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, Sin Chee Heng (Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd. 
adopted Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a transition date 
of I September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by Directors to the 
comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of financial 
position as at 31 August 2012 and I September 2011, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year 
ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the 
restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as part of our audit 
of the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 August 2013 
have, in these circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence that 
the opening balances as at I September 2012 do not contain misstatements that materially 
affect the financial position as of31 August 2013 and financial performance and cash flows 
for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SARA WAK) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 430948-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

(ii) This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

4--
STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07115 (J/PH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Butterworth) Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 52. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia The 
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opiuion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

(i) As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, Sin Chee Heng (Butterworth) Sdn. Bhd. 
adopted Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a transition 
date of I September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by Directors to 
the comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of 
financial position as at 31 August 2012 and I September 2011, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to 
report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as 
part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 
August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence that the opening balances as at I September 2012 do not contain misstatements 
that materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 and financial 
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

(ii) This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07115 (JIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 282295-D) 
(IncOlporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411l 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11 .OS, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid VaHey City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web WNW.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BHD., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 50. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The 
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of fmancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 282295-D) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

(i) As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. 
BHD. adopted Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards on 1 September 2012 with a 
transition date of 1 September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by 
Directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012 and 1 September 2011, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not 
engaged to report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our 
responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1 September 2012 do 
not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 
and financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 282295-D) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

(ii) This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963107115 (JIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 252825·U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +603 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhyk!@uhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SIN CHEE HENO (JOHORE) SDN. BHD., which 
comprise statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the fmancial year then ended, and a sununary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory infonnation, as set out on pages 10 to 48. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The 
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors detennine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfonn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 252825-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, Intemational 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

(i) As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN. 
BHD. adopted Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards on 1 September 2012 with a 
transition date of 1 September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by 
Directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012 and 1 September 2011, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not 
engaged to report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our 
responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1 September 2012 do 
not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 
and financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 252825-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

(ii) This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

4--
STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07/15 (J/PH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11,05. level 11 
The Gardl:f1.s. South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Ungkaran Syed Putr8 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

PhonE' +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web W'IfoIIN.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the [mancial statements of SCH Corporation Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statements of financial position as at 31 August 2012 of the Group and of the Company, and the 
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows 
of the Group and of the Company for the fmancial year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 59. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible fur the preparation of financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Financial RepO!1ing Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia, and fur such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfurm the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free fi'om rnate!ial misstatement. 

An audit involves perfurming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe (l>.at the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the. Group and of the Company as 001 August 2012 and oftheir financial 
performance and cash flows fur the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the 
followings: 

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been 
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

(b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated witb the 
Company's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the 
purposes ofthe preparation of the financial statements ofthe Group and we have received 
satisfactory information and explanations required by us fur those purposes. 

(c) Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or 
any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) ofthe Act. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCU CORPORATION SDN. BUD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content oftbis report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 141 I 
Chartered Accountants 

LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 3016/11114 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC ZOll 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: l06431-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 KuaJa lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the 
[mancial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 52. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: I06431-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its fmaneial 
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content ofthis report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 3016/11/14 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 7.012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 228955-T) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 1 t .05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kual(l Lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhyk!@uhy.com.my 
Web W\NW.uhy_com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the financial year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infurmation, as 
set out on pages 9 to 44. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors ofthe Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfurm the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including 
the assessment of risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internation<ll, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 228955-T) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the member ofthe Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 
ofthe Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility 
to any other person for the content ofthis report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF l4! 1 
Chartered Accountants 

LO KUAN CHE 
Approved Number: 3016/ll/l4 (1) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 2012 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SARA W AK) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 430948-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 1 t .05, level 11 
ThE' Gardens SOllth Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web WNW.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 39. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, Whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on aUditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider intl'mal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of fmancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internation<ll, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CREE HENG (SARA W AK) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 430948-P) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fuir view of 
the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements ofthe Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made so lely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and fur no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

W, 
UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 3016111114 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 201/ 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

445 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

'-'1lf~ _____________________________________ A_p_p_c_n_dl_'X_I_V_(_C_o_n_t' __ d) 

UHY (AF1411) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11 ,as, level 11 
The Gardens ~outh Tower 
Mid VaJley City 
lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhykJ®Uhy.com.my 
Web \r\W'N.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Butterworth) Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of fmancial position as at 31 Augnst 2012, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity aod statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 42. 

Directors' Re,ponsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors ofthe Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors detennine arc necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmaneial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable asSurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation 0 f financial statements that give a true and fair view' in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe fmancial statements. 

We believe that thc audit evidcnce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internation<ll, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER O}<' 

SIN CHEE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position ofthe Company as of31 August 2012 and of its fmancial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 3016/11114 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 282295-D) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF14111 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
lingkaran Syed Putra-
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +6032279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web W\N'N_uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Kuantan) Sdn. Bhd., which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the 
fmancial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting poliCies and other explanatory 
information, as set out on pages 9 to 44. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors ofthe Company are responsible for the preparation offinancial statements that give 
a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 
J 965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfurm the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion_ 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Cmnpany No.: 282295-D) 
(Incorporated in-Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as of31 August 2012 and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements ofthe Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with thc provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

Tills report is made solely to the member ofthe Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and fur no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content ofthis report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 3016111114 (1) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 1012 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SON. BHD. 
(Company No.: 252825-U) 
(Incorporated in"Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY(Af1ll11) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City' ' 
lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web WoNW.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Johore) Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the financial year 
then ended, and a sunnnary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as 
set out on pages 9 to 44. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors ofthe Company are responsible for the preparation offinancial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine arc ncccssary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on aUditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfurm the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perforining procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including 
the assessment of risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estiniates made by the Directors, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 

450 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHI I Appendix IV (Cont'd) 

~.------

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 252825-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content ofthis report. 

UHY 
Finm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

LO KUAN CHE 
Approved Number: 301611 1114 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 2011 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
sea CORPORATION SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(lncorpcrated in Malays!&) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHYw'4~n 
chartered Ac<OUtmllts 
Suite 'I.oS.loYeIll 
The Garde", South Tower 
Mid Valley C;,y . 
Ungka"" syod rw. 
59200 Kuala l.umput 

Phone +60 3 22193088 
Fox +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhyklOvhy.tom.my 
Wtl> -.w.uhy.com.mj' 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH Corporation Sdn. BM., which comprise the 
statements of financial position as at 31 AUgust 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the 
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows 
of the Group and of the Company fur the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set oUt on pages 10 to 65. 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by 
another auditors whose report dated 10 December 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion on the 
financial statements. 

DirectoT3' RespollSibility for the Financtal Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of fmancial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are.necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements thet are free from material Illisstatement. whether due to fraud or 
error. 

A.uilltors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements bilsed on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material rmsstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain alldit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of fmancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circutnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity'S internal controL An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have l'btained is sufficient and apPlopriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
sca CORPORATION SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 256212-K) 
(Intotpcrated in Mala}'!lia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting St1mderds and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of31 August 2011 and of their financial 
perfurmance and cash flows fur the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the 
fullowings: 

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company and its subsidiary companies of whlch we have acted as auditors 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

(b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated 
with the Company's fmancial statements are in fonn and content appropriate and proper 
fur the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have 
received satisfactory information and explanations required by us fur those purposes. 

(c) Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiary companies did not contain any 
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174{3) of the Act. 

It. mtmbf( 01 t./I'tath Hack .. Young .,.,Nltlortal Li'!Jle;1 
WI !ntttro1't}onel ~ of indtpftIdInl ~ng &nil ~fimrS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. (CONT'») 
(Company No.: 2S6212-K) 
(Jncorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the =bers of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
Finn Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~P~N 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (JIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

I(UALA LUMPUR 
o 1 NOV 2011 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. Bm>. 
(Company No.: 1 0643 I-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHYwWll 
Charteted AccounWlt5 
Suft.lt.OS, t..Ye1 II 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Lingkaran Syed Putta 
S9200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +60 3 22793088 
Fa. +603 2279;099 
E"",U uh)*IOUhy.com.my 
Web ~.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin (lIee Heng Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 20 II, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the 
fmancial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 55. 

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
whose report dated 10 December 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Directors' Respcnsibllity for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fhlr view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are tree from material nrisstatement, whether 
due to fraud 0 r error. 

Auditors' Respo1lsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materia! 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfurnring procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment ofrisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and tair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemenl,. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a 
hasis tor our audit opinion. 

A mtm~ 01 uotoch H';~' y~ trte'Mticnlll~tA!d. 
J/' ~lbnatfl.ttWO~ 01 ~trt ICCDI.nir'J9.aM mtISIJItlng flrm~ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REpORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CBEE BENG SDN. BBD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 106431-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opini01l 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accotdance with 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2011 and of its financial 
performance and cash flows fur the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other LegalllJld Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other rccotds and the registe!ll required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matten 

This report is made solely to the member of the Company. as a body. in accordance with Section 
\74 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the cantent of this report. 

~h 
Finn Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
TEE GUAN PIAN 
Approved Number: 1886105112 (J/PH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 
01 NOV 7nll 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHElt BENG (SABAH) SDN. BBl). 
(Company No.: 228955-T) 
(Incorporated ill Malaysia) 

:Report on the Financial Statements 

UHYWUII) 
Charterecl A«ountants 
SuIte 11.0S, t.ev.r 11 
Tho Go!d<n> South 1_ 
MId V.n.y City 
llngkJran Syed Mro 
59200 Kuala lumpu, 

/ho ... +601122793088 
fa>< ,60 , 2279 3099 
Email uhy\dOuhy.com.my 
Web 'iIIW'N.uhy.Cf)m.my 

We have audited the fimmc:ial statemmts of Sin Chee Heng (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statement oflinancial position as at 31 August 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement ofchanga in equity and statement ofcasb flows of the Company for tile nnancial year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policia and other explanatory information, as 
set out on paga 9 to 43. 

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
whose report dated 3 December 20 I 0, expressed an unqualified opinion on the linanci4l statements. 

Directo1"!l' Responsibility for thll Fi1UmCial StatemenJS 

The Directors of tho Company are respoosib1e fur the preparation offinancial statements that give a 
true and tiIir view in acc:ordanoe with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Aot, 1965 
in Malaysh!, and for such internal control as the Directors dctennine are neoeasary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are ftee ftom material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in acc:ordanee with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Tho~e 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance lIbout whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including 
the assessment ofrisks of material misstatement of tile financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation oftinancia1 statements that give a true and filii" view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing an opinion au the 

. effectiveness of the entity's internal controL An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, 
as well as evaluating the overall preseotation oflhe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is slIfficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO TIlE MEMBER OF 
SIN CBEE RENG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 228955· T) 
(Inoorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinwn 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as of31 August 2011 and of its financial perfonnancc and 
cash 1Iows for the financial year then ended. 

Report 011 Other Legalalld Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
OW' opinion, the accounting and other recoros and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matten 

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as II body, in accordance with Section 114 
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility 
to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
Finn Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
TEE GUAN PlAN 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (J/PH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

o I NOV 11111 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (SARA WAK) SON. BHD. 
(Comp~ny No.: 430948-P) 
(Incorponte<l in M.!aYSia) 

Report <)u the Finandal Statements 

UHY~1."111 
Chartered Accountants 
SUi1f 11.05. I.evoIll 
The Gardens SOUth T."..,. 
MId V*Y City 
lingI< ... n Sl"'d Putt. 
59200 K\JOIa lumpur 

_ +60 3<279)0.8 
f.. +60322793099 
fmal uhykJOu"r.wm.my 
Web www",",,-"""-"W 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Sarawak) Sdn. ShO., which 
comprise the statement. of financial position as at 31 AUgust 2011 of the Company, and the 
.tatemcnt of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
of the Company ror the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
pOlicies and other explanatory intbnnation, as set out on pages 9 to 42. 

The 1Inancia1 statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
wholQ rcp<>rt dated 3 Dc<:eniber 2010, expressed an unqualified opIDion on the financial 
statements; 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true-and filir view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for such internal control as the Directors deter;roine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opiniou on these financial statetIlents based on our audit. We 
condu~ our audit in accordam:e with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfunn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
r.nisstat~. 

An audit involves perfonning pro~ures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatllment of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider intcpml control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements· that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not ror the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entily's internal control An audit also includes evaluating 
the aPpropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis ror our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CBEE RENG (SARA WAK) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 430948-P) 
{In<X>lpOl'8lod in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In QUI' opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in acoordance with Financial 
Reporting Stand1mls and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and firir view of 
the tlnancial position of the Company as of 31 August 20 II and of its financial performance and 
cash flow. in- the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqnlrements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
OUI' opinion, the aecounting and other rooords and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matten 

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and fur no other purpose. We do not assume 
re&pOoo'bility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
Firm NUIIlber: AF 1411 
Chart~ Accountants 

TEE GUAN PIAN 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (IIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

o I NOV 2011 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SON.BHO. 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporattd in Malaysia) 

Report on the F'mancial Statements 

UHYWI.,1) 
Chartered Accountants 
Suite ll.05.l<v<Il1 
lht Gardens South Tower 
Mid Volley CIty 
Ungkaran SjOd Putra 
59200 """fa Lumpur 

Phono +sO 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Ema"i1 uhy\:JDuhy.com.my 
We'o WNW.utty._.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Hcng (Butterworth) Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2011, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company lOr the financial year then ended. and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory in1brmation, as set out on pages 9 to 49. 

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
whose report dated 3 December 20 10, expressed an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statel1U!nfs 

The Directors of the Company are responsible lOr the preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and tair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia, and lOr such inteIDal control as the Directors delennine are necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based On our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment ofrisles of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we collSider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements 1hat give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A rotmbtt of lJ<tl,ch Hiocb:rY<l1IA9 We~~ Lim/ttJ • 
.njl\lWlottiOl'lIll r.etY.i1)1i; of ;n~r;t lK.C""IIr.tlng lrod ,~4!ing firm!. 
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~-nEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CREE HENG (BUTTERWORTH) SDN. BUD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 104593-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as of31 August 2011 and of its financial perfurmance and 
cash flows fur the financial year then ended. 

Report on ()(her Legal and Regulatory ReqUirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers reqnired by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body. in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person fur the content of this report. 

~ 
Firm Number:.AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
TEE GUAN PIAN 
Approved Number: 1886105f12 (J/PH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 
o 1 NOV lOll 

462 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHI I Appendix V (Cont'd) 

~.------

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CREE BENG (KUANTAN) SDN. BDD. 
(Company No.! 28229S·D) 
(Incorporated in Mala~ia) 

Report oD the Ffnandal Statements 

UHYWltl1) 
Chartered Accountants 
S\I~.11.0S,leVtIll 
Thl! Gardens South Tower 
Mid Volley el1)' 
l.ingl<mn Syed Mr. 
59200 KWIIa lump", 

Phone +60 3 2279 3088 
Fox +GO 3 2279 3099· 
Em.il uhj!dOuhy.com.my 
Web www.uhy.<om.my 

We have audittld the financial statements of Sin Cbee Heng (Kuantan) Soo. 8hd., which comprise 
the statement of financial position aa at 31 August 2011, and the staterru:m of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of caah flows of the Company for the 
financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
infurmation, as set out on pages 9 to 47. 

The financial statements of the Company aa at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
whose report dated 3 December 20 I 0, expressed an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financ4l1 Statements 

The Directors of the Company are r~nsible fur the preparation offinancial statements that give 
a true and filir view in accordance ·with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies ~ 
1965 i.Q..Malaysia, and fur such internal control aa the Dir:ectors detennine are necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial stateJnents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our r~nsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfonn the audit to 
obtain reaaonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free ftom material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfurming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The prOcedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement oflbe financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and filir view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofth.e financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is suftlcient and appropriate to provide a 
basis fur our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 
SIN CREE HENG (IWANTAN) SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(CompanyNo.! 282295-D) 
(Inoorporatcd in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as of31 August 2011 and ofits financial performance and 
cash flows fur the financial year then ended_ 

Report on Other Lecal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies~, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers R>qUired by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act_ 

Other Matters 

'Ibis report is made solely to the member ofllie Company. as a body, in accordance with Section 
114 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and foT DO other purpose. We do not assume:: 
responsibility to any other pezwn ror the:: content of this :port. 

Firm N\Ullber: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

TE~IAN 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (JIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 
01 NOV ZC11 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SIN CHEE BENG (JOBORE) SDN. BBD. 
(Company No.: 252825-1.1) 
(lncozporat¢d in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (Afloltl) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, L,eveJ 1\ 
The Gardens Sout" TOW'er 
Mid Valley City 
Unglol .. n 5yed Putt. 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phon< +603 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhjl<10ully.tom.my 
Web WWN.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of Sin Chee Heng (Johore) Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 20 II, and tha statement 0 f comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company fur the finaneia1 year 
then ended, and a summary of significant ac<:Qunting policies and other explanatory information, as 
set out on pages 9 to 45. 

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
whose report dated 3 December 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion on the finaneia1 statements. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responSIble fur the preparation offinancial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Fioaneia1 Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the 
preparation of financn;1 statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Mall1.~ia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfunn the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether tha financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
discloSlires in tha financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our jndgement, including 
the assessment of risks 0 fmaterial misstatement 0 f tha financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk asseSSlUet1ts, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation of financial statements that give a truo and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and thc reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is ~ufficient and appropri<~fe to provide a basi 51 

for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SIN CREE HENG (JOHORE) SDN_ BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 252825-U) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and filir view of 
the financial position of the Company as of31 August 2011 and of its financial perfunnance and 
cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in 
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and fur no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
<-'bartered Accountants 

TEE~AN 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (JIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

o 1 NOV 2011 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH CORPORATION SDN. BHD. 

Report Ill) the Fluanclal Statements 

AppcndixVI 

AF1490 

We have audited the financial statements of SCR CORPORATION SDN SHO, wbich comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31 AUgust 2010 oftbe Group and the Company. and the income statement, statement of changes 
in equity and cash flow statement fur the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other exp1anatOIy notes, as set out on pages 7 to 33. 

Directors' Responsibility jor the FllUlncial Statem8n13 

The directors of the Compaay are responsible fOr the preparation and mit presentation of these fiDancial 
statements in accordance with Private Entity Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fu.ir presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Resp<msibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 0111 audit We conducted 
our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we 
comply with etbical requirements and plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance wbether the 
fiDancial statements are free from material misstatement. 

AIl audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
flnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assess.'llOnt of risks of 
material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation oftb. 
fInancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the putpo5e of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. AIl audit also 
includes evaluating the estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fmaneiaI statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have heen properly drawn up in accordance witb Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act J 965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair ,iew of the 
flnal~dal position Qfthc Company as of31 Aug-ust 2010 and of its financial performancr: and cash flo\vs for 
the year ended. 

9-3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 26/4, Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Pataling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3659 Fax: 03-7805 3871 E-maa: richard@rwwilliam.com.my Website: www.rwwilliam.com.my 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

AF 1490 

Independent Auditors Repart to the Members ojSCH Corporation SM. Ehd. (Conl'd) 

Report Oil Other Leplud Regulatory Requirem_ 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report tbe following: 

a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
company and its subsidiaries l\ave been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated witb the Company', 
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper fur the purpose. of the preparation of the 
financial statements of the Group and we have n:ccived satisfactory infonn.li"" and explanations required 
by us for those purposes. 

c} Our audit reports on the accounts of tbe subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse 
comment made under Section 174 (3) of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia III1d. for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content ofth" report. 

Aww..u... 
RW WlLLIAN[ 
No. A F.1490 
Cbartered Acco\lntants 

LkJ. 
RICHARD WILLIAM AlL WILFRED 
No. 2413/04111 (1) 

Chllrtered Ac.cQuntant 

Dated:- 1 0 DEC 2010 

Petaling Jay. 

9.3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 26/4, Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petanng Jaya, Selangor DaTUI Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03·7805 3871 E·mall: richard@rwwilliam.com.my Website: www.rwwIlHam.com.my 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AliDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SIN CHEE HENG SDN. BHD_ 

Report on the FiJIan.isl Statements 

We have audited the financial statements of SIN CREE HENG SDN BHO, which comprise the balance 
.heet as at 31 August 2010 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of 
changes in equity and cash flow statements of the Group and of the Company for the year ended, and a 
summary of significant 8&COuntingpolicies and otherexplanatotynotes, as set out on pages 6 to 35. 

Directors' Responsibility for the FiJu:ncial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Private Entity Reponing Standards and the Companies Af:.t 1965 in Malaysia. 
This responsibility includes: designi!l8. implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statementa that are ftee from material mi.statemen~ whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and msking accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finaucial statements based on our andit. We conducted 
our audit in accordsnce with approved standards on auditing in MalaY'ia. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perl'orm the audit to obtain reasonable assUTaIlce whether the 
fmancial statements are free from material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
flnlmcial statements. The procedures selected depend 011 our judgement, including the assessment of risks of 
material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparotion and fair presentation of the 
finaucial statements in order (0 design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
tbe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the estimates made by the directors. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fmancinl statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have heen properly drawn up in accordance with Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a hue and fair view of the 
flnanclal p('l~il\()n ('If the Group and cfthe Company 'to:; of 31 Augusl 2010 aDd of its financial perform2nce 

and cash flows for the year then ended. 

9-3A. Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 26/4. Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya. Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03·7805 3871 E-mail: rjchard@rwwllllam.com.my Web.~e: www.rwwRllam.com.my 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditors Report to th4 Members olSin Chee Heng Sdn. 8hd. (Conl'd) 

Report OD Other Ltga) and Regulatory Re'lninmentJ 

In accordance with the requirements of the CompaDies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following: 

.) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
company and its subsidiaries ha'" been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Companys 
financial statements _ in fllIm and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of 
the fmancial statements of the Group and we have reeeived satisfactoty infunnation and explanations 
required by us for those purposes. 

c) Our audit repcrts On the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any advene 
comment made under Section 174 (3) oftbe Act. 

Other Matters 

This reporti. made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Seetion 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other PUlJ>ose. We do not assume respollSibility to any other 
person for the content of this report. 

iwWdt... 
RWWlLLIAM 
No. A F.1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD WILLIAM AIL WlLFRED 
No. 2413/04/11 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated :. 1 0 DEC 2016 

Potaling Jaya 

9-3A. Mayang Plaza, Jaian SS 26/4, Tama~ "'!ayang Jaya, ~7301 Petallng Jaya,. Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03·7805 3871 E-mail: nchard@rwwlltiam.com.my Website: www.rwwilllam.com.my 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF SIN CHEE HEIliG (SABAH) SDN. BHD. 

Report on the FInancial Statement. 

Appendix VI (Cont'd) 

AF 1490 

w~ bav~ audited the financial stattmeDIs of SIN CREE HENG (SABAH) SDN BHD, which comprise the 
~e sheel as at 31 Angust 2010, and the income statement, statement of changes in equ.ityand cash flow 
statement for the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other c:xplauatory notes, as 
set out on pages 8-23. 

Directo,.,/ Responsibilily for the Financial SUztements 

~ directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair prcsenlatioll. of these fmancial 
statements in accordsnce with Private Entity Rc:porting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
ThiS responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair pr~tion of fmancial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies. and making accounting estimates that 
are reasonable in the cirCUlllStances. 

AudiWrs' Responsibilily 

Our responsibility is to ""press an opinion on these fmancial mtements based 00 our audit. We conducted out 
audit in accordance with approved standards 00 auditing in Malays ... Those standards require that we comply 
with dhical requirements and plan and perform the audit (0 oblain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perl'onning procedures to obtain audit evidence about !be amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statement •. The procedure, selected depend on our.judgement, including the assessment of risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the 
IiMncial stattments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the eirCUll1Slancea, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal cootroL An audit also 
includes eValuating tbe estimates made by the diI<ctors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fmancial statements. 

We beIi~ that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial "'alements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and tbe Companies Act 1965 in Malay~ia so as to give a true and fair view of the 
1inancial position of the. Company as: of 31 AL:guS: 2010 and of its financi.:;l perfNruance and cash flows for lhe 

year ended. 

9-3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan S5 26/4, Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, 5e1angor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03-7805 3871 E-mail: richard@twwjlliam.com.my Webs~e: www.rwwilliam.com.my 
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• RVV VVILLIAM 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

M'1490 

Independ<l1ll Auditor's Report To The Members Of Sin ek .. Heng (Saban) &in EM (Com'd) 

Report 011 Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in our opinion 
the accouuting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be !rept by the Company have been 
properly kept in a=dance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for DO other purpose. We do D()l assume responsibility to any alb<:< 
person for the conteot ofthis report. 

Lw~ 
RWwn.L1AM 
No. A. F. 1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD Wll.LlAM AIL Wll.FRED 
No. 24131 04111 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated:- D 3 DEC 2010 

PetaUng laya 

9-3A, Mayang Plaza. Jalan SS 26/4, Taman Mayang Jaya. 47301 P"taling Jaya,. Salango, Da.,ul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7905 3859 Fax: 03·7805 3871 E·mrul: richard@rwwilliam.com.my Websne: www.rwvolllam.com.my 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE ftfEMBERS OF 
SIN CREE HENG (SARA W AK) SDN. BIID. 

Report on the FlBan.tal Statement. 

W" have audited the financial statements of SlN CHEE HENO (SARA W AK) SDN BHD, whieb comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31 August 2010, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash 
flow statement for the year ended, and a summary of significant aceounliIlg policies and otber explanatory 
notes, as set out on pages 8 to 22. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Filltmcial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Private Entity Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
This responsibility includes; designing, implementing and maintaining intema! control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of fmancia.l statements that are free from matorl.al misstateme:ol, whether 
dne to fraud or elTOr; selecling and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounliIlg 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors'Respon.sjbility 

Our responsibility is to express an opini()n on these financia.l statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our ilUdit in accordance with awroved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standssds require that we 
comply with ethical reqnircments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether !be 
fmancial statemeri!s are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboUl the amoonts and disclosures in the 
fmaneial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment C!frisks of 
material misstatement of tho financial statements, wbethor due to fraud or error. Tn making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of !be 
financial statements in order to design audit procednres that are appropriate in !be circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveooss of the Company's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation oflhe 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

Tn our opinion, the fInancial state:ments have been properly drawn up in accordance wIth Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the 
fimmcia! position of~he Company as of3l August 20IC and afits fmancial perfonnance and cash Hews for 
the year ended. 

9.3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 2614, Taman Mayang Jaya. 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03·7805 3859 Fa.: 03-7131l5 3871 E·mail: richard@rwwilllam.com.my Webstte: www.lWWilllam.com.rny 
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• RVV VVILLIAM AF1490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's &port To The Members Of Sin ehee Heng (Sarawak) Sdn Bhd 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement. 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malay.ia, we also report that in our 
opinion the accounting and "ther records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for DO other pUIpOSe. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the C()Dtent of this report. 

lw.JJ... 
RWWILLIAM 
No. A. F. 1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD WILLIAM AIL WILFRED 
No.2413104II1 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated:- 0 3 DEC 2010 

Petaling Jaya 

9-3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 2614, Taman Mayang Jaya. 47301 Potaling Joya, Selangor Da;ul Ehsan. 
Tal: 03·7605 3859 F",,: 03·7605 3871 E-m8Jl: richard@rwwilliam.com.my Webstte: WMY.rwv.lllam.com.my 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF SIN CREE RENG (BUTrERWORTH) SDN. BHD. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Appendix VI (Cont'd) 

AF 1490 

We have audited the financial statem<l1!S of SIN CHEE HENO (BUITBRWORTH) SDN BIID. which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 August 2010. and the income statement, statement of chenge. in equity 
and cash flCYW statement for the year ended and a S1lIIlllllIl}' of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 6 -22. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible. for \be preparation and fair presentation of the •• financial 
statements in accordallce with Private Entity Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 inMalaysia. 
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair pteSentation of financial statements that are free from materiaL misstatement, whether 
dn. to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the ciIeumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibi#ty 

Our responsibility is to expr ... an opinion on these fiDancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
out audit in accordallce with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require the! we 
comply with ethical requirements and plao and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuraoce whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procednres to obtain audit evidence abnut the amounts and disclosures in the 
fmancial statements. The procedures selooted depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of 
maleria! misstatement of the financial statements, whether dne \0 fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of lile 
financial statements in order \0 design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstance., but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit alsc 
includes evaluating the estimates made by the directors, :!IS well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial.tatemeots. 

We believe the! the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate \0 provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordsnce with Private Enti\J 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a tme alld fafr view of the 
!ba:}ci:::I positiot~ of the Company as of 31 August :1010 and of its f:nmcial perfonnaHC'c rUld c;j~h f1(N.tS for 
the year ended. 

9oM, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 2614. Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03-7805 3871 E-mail: rfchard@rww!lIIam.com.my Website: www.rwwllllam.oom_my 
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• RVV VVILLIAM AFI490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditors II£port /(! the Members 01 Sin Che. Heng (Butterworth) Sdn. BM. (Cont'd) 

Report on Other Legal and ReeuJatory Requirements 

In =n!mtce with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in. <l\1t 

opinion the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

Other Matters . 

This report is made solely to the members ofth. Company, as a body, in. accordance with Section 174 oflbe 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content of this report. 

4.wL 
RWWILLIAM 
No. A. F. 1490 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
RICHARD Wll..LIAM AlL .Wll..FR.ED 

No. 2413/04/11 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated:- n 3 DEC 2010 

Petaling Jays 

9-3A. MByang Plna, Jalan SS 26/4, Taman Mayang Jaya. 47301 Pelaling Jaya. Salangor Dar~1 Ehsan. 
Tel: 03·7805 3859 Fax: 03-78OS 3871 E-mail: rlchard@rwwilllam.com.my Webs~e: www.!WWilham.com.my 
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Company No: 282295 D Appendix VI (Cont'd) 

• RVV VVILLIAM AF1490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT' AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
sm CBEE HENG (KUANT AN) SDN. BDD. 

Report on the Financial Statement. 

We have audited the financial stattments of SIN CREE HENG (KUANTAN) SDN BlID, which ccmprise 
the balance sheet as at 31 AUgust 2010, aod the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash 
!low statement for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes, as set out on pages 6 - 21. 

Directors 'Responsibility for the FiTWIc1a1 Statementy 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordaoce with Private Entity Reporting Staodards and the Companies Act 1965 in MaIaysis. 
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal cantrol ~levant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors'Resp<>lulbility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statementa based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with approved standard. on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statement. rue free from material misstamnent. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The pr<lCedures seleeted depend on our judgement, including the .. sessment of risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the 
fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circu:ms\ancos, but not for 
the prupose of expressing an opinion on the effeeth'enos. of the Company's internal control. AD audit also 
includes evaluating the estimates made by the directors, as well a. evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance wHh Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company as (1f 3] A.ugu:;t 2010 and of its iinallfial performance and ca:'lh flows for 

the year ended. 

9.3A. Ma~ang Plaza, Jalan SS 26/4, Taman Meyang Jaya, 47301 Petailng Jeya,. Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03·7805 3859 Fax: 03-78053871 E·meii: richard@rwwilliam.eom.my WebSIte: www.lWWllllam.com.my 

477 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

Company No: 282295 D Appendix VI (Cont'd) 

• RVV VVILLIAM t>;F 1490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent AuditorS Report /J) the Members of Sin Chee Heng (KJJantan) Sdn. Bhd. (Cont'd) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report thet in our 
opinion the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Ccmpany 
have been proper1)' kept in accordance with the prnvisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

This report ismado solcJy to the members of the Ccmpany, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility 10 any other 
person for the content oftbis report. 

l~ 
RWW1LLJA.M 
No. A. F. 1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD VI1ILLIAM AIL WILFRED 
No. 2413104111 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated:- 0 3 DEC 2010 

Peta1ing Jays 

9-3A. Mayang Plaza. Jalan 66 26{4, Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petallng Jaya, S.langor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03·7805 3859 Fax: 03·7805 3871 E·mall: rlchard@rwwilliam.com.my Webstte: www.rwwllllam.com.my 
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Company No. : 252825 U Appendix VI (Cont'd) 

• RVV VVI LLIAM AF1490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOIl'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN. BHD. 

Report OD the Financial Statements 

We have audited the fmancial statements of SIN CHEE HENG (JOHORE) SDN BlID, which comprise the 
balance sheet as at 31 August 2010, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow 
statement for the Y""r ended, and a SUIllIIl2l)' of significant accOUDling policies 8Ild other explanatory notes, as 
set out on pages 7 to 22. 

Directors' RI1Sp01l3ibility for the F/Mnciai Sl4Iements 

The directors of the Company are responsIble for the pteparation and fair presentation of these fmancial 
statements in accordance with Private Entity Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements !bat are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to mud or error; selecting and applying appropriate 1ICCOlIllt1ng policies; and maJcing accounting estimates that 
arc reasonable in the cln:umstances. 

Auditors' ResponJibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on !bese financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those sI8Ildsrds require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable asswance whether the financial 
statement. are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about u'e amounts and disclosures in the 
fin8llcial statements. The procedures selected depeud an our judgement, including the assessment of risks of 
material misstatement of the financial stat=nts. whether due to fraud or error. In making these risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair pteSClltation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating (he estimates made by the director., as well as evaluating the overall presentation ~f the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oor 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements bave been properly drawn up in accordance with Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and tlle Companies: Act J 965 in Malaysia so 3S to give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2010 and of it~ financial perfonnallce and cash flow~ for 
the year ended. 

9.3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 26/4, Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03·7805 3671 E-man: rlChard@rwwllllam.com.my Website; www.lWWilllam.com.my 
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• RVV VVILLIAM AF1490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditors Report to the Members of SIn Chee Heng (Johore) Sdn. Bhd. (Canl'd) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement. 

In accordance witli the requirements of the Companies Act 196~ in Malaysia. we also report that in our 
opinion the accounting and other recorda and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company have 
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other MatQn 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body. in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content oflhi. report. 

Aw~ 
RWWILLIAM 
No. A. F. 1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD WlLLlAM AIL Wll.FRED 
No. 2413/04 (11 (1) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated:- 0 3 DEC 20 to 

Petaling Jaya 

9-3A, Mayang Plaza, JaJan 88 26/4, raman Mayang Jaya. 47301 PataJlng Jays, Se!angor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03-7805 3871 E-mail: richard@rwwilliam.com.my Websije: www.rwwilllam.com.my 
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Appendix VII 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ITALlAWORLD PTE LTD 
(Company registration no. 200003725H) 

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore) 

We have audited the accom panying financial statements of ITALlAWORLD PTE L TO set out 
on pages 6 to 23, which comprise the balance sheet as at August 31, 2013, the income 
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 
(the "Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 

(a) devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide 
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised 
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are 
recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair income statement 
and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets; 

(b) selecling and applying appropriate accounting pOlicies; and 

(c) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility towards cr accept liability to any other p",rson for the contents of the 
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

C :\Audit\ltaJiaWorld13 -4-

60 Robinson Road, # 12-0 1 BEA Buflding. Singapore 068892. Tel: 065· 6235 1633 Fax: 065-6333 1633 
Emali;dtp@uh\.dlong.com.sg Website: www.uhydlong.com 
Associated Offices: Kuala Lumpur & Johor Bchru, Malaysia 
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I Company No.: 972700-P I 

13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

Appendix VII (Cont'd) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D) 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessments of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, Whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting pOlicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, 

(a) the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at August 31, 2013 and the results, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
and 

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

UHYDIONG 

Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants 
Singapore 

o 5 NOV 2013 

c: \Audit\ltaliaWorld 13 -5-
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ITALIAWORLD PTE LTD 
(Company registration no. 200003725H) 

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapone) 

Appendix VIII 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ITALlAWORLD PTE LTD set out 
on pages 6 to 24, which comprise the balance sheet as at August 31, 2012. the income 
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 
(the "Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 

(a) devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide 
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised 
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are 
recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair income statement 
and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets; 

(b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 

(c) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. This report is made solely to YOLl, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the 
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

C:\AucltlltallaWor.ld12 -4-

60 Robinson Reod. #12 .. 01 BEA Building, Singoportal 068892. Tel: 065-6235 1633 Fax: 065<>333 1633 
Emoll: dtp@uhydlong.com.sg Website: www.uhydlong.com 

Assodatad Ortlces: Kuala Lumpur. Johor Bahru & Penong, Malaysia 
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13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

Appendix VIII (Cont'd) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D) 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financ'ial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessments of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 01 
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting poliCies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, 

(a) the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at August 31, 2012 and the results, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
and 

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

UHYDIONG 
Public Accountants and 
Certified Public Accountants 
Singapore 

DATE: 1 2 NOV 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ITALIAWORLD prE L TO 
(Company registration no. 200003725H) 

(Incorporal<ld in the Republic of Singapore) 

AppcndixIX 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ITAlIAWORLD PTE L TO'sat out 
on pages 6 to 24, which comprise the balance sheet as at August 31,2011, the income 
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for th9 Financial statemenls 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the prollisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 
(the 'Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 

(a) devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide 
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised 
use or disposition; and transactions are property authorised and that they are 
recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair income statement 
and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets; 

(b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 

(c) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
aud~. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the 
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. CERTiFIED TRUE COpy 

C:\Audit\llaliaWorld11 

60 Robfmon Rood. #12·01 6fA ~uldlng. Sing_", 068892. lei: 06S~2J5 1633 ~.~~.~~i3::::=----
E-moij, dtp@uhydlong.c,,","Il _He; www.uhydlong.com n9 ,Pew FCPA. 2 0 FED., .00 n 

~soclafed Offie9$; Kuola lumpur, Johot8ohru &:. Penaog. Maklympro.., CompanyAudltor ""11~!i~U 1-
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Appendix IX (Cont'd) 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D) 

An eudlt Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ebout the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessments of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk essessments, the 
auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are eppropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We belteve that the audit evidence we heve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, 

(a) the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the prOVisions of 
the Act and Singepore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at August 31, 2011 and the results, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on thet date; 
and 

(b) the eccountlng and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

UHYDIONG 
Public Accountants and 
Certified Public Accountants 
Singapore 

DATE: November 10, 2011 

C;\Audit\Ualiawor!d11 
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i 

AppcndixX 

PATRICK KAN & CO o Certlfled Public Accountants, Singapore 

80 Marine Parede Road #16-09, 
Parkway Parade, Sil1llapore 449269 

Email: patkan@oatkan.CQm.sg 
Telephone: (65) 6345-2333 Fax: (65) 6345-4554 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE. MEMBERS OF 

Report on the Flnanc/al statements 

ITALIAWORLO PTE L TO 
(Incorporated in SingaDore) 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ilellaworld pte Lid set out on pages 6 to 25, 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 August 2010, and the statament 01 comprehensive income, 
statement of changee In equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, end a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financlel stetements 

II 

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial slstements that giva a true and fair view in 
accordance w~h the provisions of the Singapore Companies N:;t. Cap. 50 (the "Act") and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal aocounting controls 
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance thai assets afa safeguerded against las from unauthorised 
use or disposition; and trensactions are properly authorised end that they ere recorded es necessary 10 
permit the preparation of true and fair statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet and 10 
maintain accountability of essets. 

Auditors' Responsibmty 

Our responsibility is to express en opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordence with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and ptan and perform the aud~ to obtain reesonable assurance ebout whether the 
financial statements are tree from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures 10 obtain audit evidence abcut the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgemen~ includ'lng the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
Ihase risk assessments, the aud~or considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are apprcpriata in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entily's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of aocounting estimetes made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe thet the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basiS for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standerds SO as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company as at 31 August 20ta and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the 
year ended on that date . 

• "'IS 
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Appendix X (Cont'd) 

PATRICK KAN & CO o Certified Public Accountants, SIngapore 

60 Marine Parade Reed #16-09. 
Parkway Parade, Singapore 449269 

Erne": patkan@patkan.com.sg 
Telephone: (65) 6345·2333 Fax: (65) 6345-4554 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ITAllAWORLO PTE L TO 
(Incorporated In SIngapore) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In our opinion, the accounting and other recorda required by the Mt to be kept bV the company have been 
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Mt 

Singapore, 31 December 201 0 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AFI411) 

Chartered A<countants 
Suite 11.05, Level 11 
The Gard(;,n5 South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
lingkaran Syed Putra 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +603 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web VoNv'W.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH Wire-Mesh Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of 
the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of siguificant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 53. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors detennine 
are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or elTor. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfOiming procedures to obtain audit evidence about thc amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or elTor. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting and consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial perfurmance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqnirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properJykept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

1. As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SCH Wire-Mesh Manufacturing Sdn. 
Bhd. adopted Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a 
transition date of I September 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by the 
Directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the 
statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012 and 1 September 20 II, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the financial year ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not 
engaged to report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our 
responsibilities as paJi of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at I September 2012 do 
not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 
and financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

~ 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07/15 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

25 NOV 2013 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY {AF141 Il 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.0S.levet 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Ungkaran Syed Putril 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

PhonE' +60 3 2279 3088 
Fax +60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhyk!@uhy.com.my 
Web WI/'MI.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH Wire-Mesh Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2012, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 45. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors detennine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors 'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfurm the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit invo lves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effecliveness ofthe entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions oflhe Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Finn Number: AF 141 I 
Chartered Accountants 

LOKUANCHE 
Approved Number: 30l6lllll4 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 2D12 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
seH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report OD the Financial Statements 

UHY lAHCST) 
Chart@redAccountants 
Suite 11.05, l.e\!el 11 
The Gorden> South Tower 
~d Valley City 
liIlgIwa<' SjOd Putt, 
59200 X".~ wmpur 

Phone .60 32279 3088 
fIX -4-60 3 2279 3099 
Email uhyklCuhy.com.rny 
Web 'N"MY_uhy.com,my 

We have audited the financial statements of sen Wire-Mesh Manufacturing Sdn. BM., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2011. and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company fur the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting pclicies 
and other explanatury information, as set out on pages 9 to SO. 

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited hy another auditors 
whose report dated 3 Derember 20 I 0, expressed an unqUalified opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible fur the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and filir view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and fur such internal control as the Directors detern1ine are necessary to 
enable tire preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

OUr respcnsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform tire audit to 
obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ahout the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including tire assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statement$, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making toose risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpcse of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
hasis for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
seH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 478312-X) 
(IncOlpOrated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements havo been properly drawn up in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2011 and of its financial 
perfonnance and cash flows fur the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matten 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and fur no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person fur the content oftros report. 

~ 
UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

A-
TEE GUAN PIAN 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (J/PH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

01 NOV 2011 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF SCB WlRE-MESH MANUFACTURING SDN. BHD. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Appendix XIV 

AF 1490 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH WIRE-MESH MANUFACTURlNG SDN BlID, which 
comprise the blliance sheet as at 31 Angust 20 I 0, and the income statement, stalement of changes in equity 
and cash flow statement for the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanalory notes, as set out on pages 6 to 23. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financwl Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financiaJ 
statements in accordance with Private Entity Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
This responsibility includes: designing, impletne!lting and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material nUs.tatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, •• lecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and rnBking accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion On these fmancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
out audit in· accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial.tatemcnts are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amount."i and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risk. of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in tbe circumstances, but not for 
the pUJpOse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'S internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluatiug the estimates made by the directors, as well a. evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fmane;a! statement •. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro.priate to provide a bll.i. for Our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the fmancia! statement. have been properly drawn up in accordance with Private Entity 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malay:;ia so as to give a true and fair view of the 
financial pos.ition of !h~ Company as of 3l August 2010 and of its fmaTlcial pr:rlOnUJnce and c;:!.;\h f10\v5 t~-)( 

the year ended. 

9-3A, M.yang Plaza. Jalen SS 26/4. Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7805 3859 Fax: 03-7805 3871 E-mail: riohard@rwwilllam.com.my Website: www.rwwilliam.com.my 
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• R'W' 'W'ILLIAM AF 1490 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor. Report to the Members of SCH Wire-Mesh Milnufacturing Sdn. Ehd. (Conl'd) 

Report 011 Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Compacies Act 1965 in Malays;a, We also report that in our 
opinion the accounting and otber records and the registers teqUired by the Act to be kept by the Company 
bave been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matter. 

This report;s made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 oftb. 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the conlent of this report. 

RWWILLlAM 
No. A. F. 1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD WILLIAM AIL WILFRED 
No. 24131 04111 (J) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated :- 3 December 2010 

Pet.ling Jay. 

9-3A, Mayang Plaza, Jalan SS 2614, Taman Mayang Jaya, 47301 Petallng Jaya, Selangar Darlil Ehsan. 
Tel: 03-7605 3659 Fax: 03-7805 3871 E·mail: richard@rwwilllam.com.my Web.tie: www.rwwilliam.com.my 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 744568-H) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (NIAll) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite' , .05, Levell 1 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Ungkaran $yed Putra 
59200 Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +603 2279 3088 
Fax +60322793099 
Email uhykl@uhy.com.my 
Web wv.ow.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH Machinery & Equipment Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2013 of the Company, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of 
the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 52. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine 
are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors , Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY Internationill. a network of Independent accounting and consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 744568-H) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 August 2013 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory ReqUirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that 
in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

I. As stated in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, SCH Machinery & Equipment Sdn. Bhd. 
adopted Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on I September 2012 with a transition 
date of I September 20 11. These standards were applied retrospectively by the Directors to 
the comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of 
financial position as at 31 August 2012 and I September 2011, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
financial ycar ended 31 August 2012 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to 
report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as 
part of our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 
August 2013 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence that the opening balances as at I September 2012 do not contain misstatements 
that materially affect the financial position as of 31 August 2013 and fmancial performance 
and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 744S68-H) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Other Matters (Cont'd) 

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~-
STEPHEN WAN YENG LEONG 
Approved Number: 2963/07/15 eJ) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 
Z 5 NOV 2013 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD. 
(Company No.: 744568-H) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

UHY (AF1411) 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 11.05, level 11 
The Gardens South Tower 
Mid Valley City 
Ungkaran Syed Putra 
592QO Kuala Lumpur 

Phone +60322793088 
Fax +603 2279 3099 
Email uhykl@uhy.(om.my 
Web WVIMI'.uhy.com.my 

We have audited the fmancial statements of SCH Machinery & Equipment Sdn. Bhd., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as.at 31 August 2012, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the fmancial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 46. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and fur such internal control as the Directors detennine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fi-aud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

A member of UHY International, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 744568-H) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2012 and of its [mancial 
perfurmance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqnirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

Other Matters 

This rep01t is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content ofthis report. 

UHY 
Firm Number: AI' 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

LOKUAN CHE 
Approved Number: 301611 1114 (J) 
Chaliered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

1 3 DEC 2012 

A member of UHY Internationill, a network of Independent accounting <lnd consulting firms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BDD. 
(Company No.: 744S68-H) 
(lnCOIpOraied in Malaysia) 

Report 011 th.e Financial Statements 

UHY (AnoiltU 
Chartered A«oununts 
SUit. II.OS, t.1M111 
The Gardens SOuth T ........ 
Mid Vollty CiIy 
Ungi<mI\ Syed pw. 
59200 Kuala lumpur 

Phone .ro 3 22193088 
Fax .,;0 322)9 309~· 
EmalI uh)<klOuhy.<om.my 
Wett WNNxi'1f..com.my 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH Machinery & Equipment Sdn. BM., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2011, and the statement of 
comprehensive income. statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the 
Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant acoolDlting policies 
and other explanato1)' infonnation, as aet out on pages 9 to 50. 

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 August 2010 were audited by another auditors 
whose report dated 3 December 2010. expressed an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements. 

DirecuJrS' Responsiblfity for the FinancialStatemen/$ 

The Directors of the Company are responsible fut the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fitir view in accordaDce with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and fur such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to frlNd or mor. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfuttn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including the assessment of risks o.f material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in. the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluirting 
.the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i" sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opiltion. 

503 



I Company No.: 972700-P I 
13. ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT (Cont'd) 

UHI I Appendix XVII (Cont'd) 

~.------

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD. (CONT'D) 
(Company No.: 744568-H) 
(Inccrporated in Malaysia) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn Up in accordance with 
Financial Reportitig Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company as of 31 August 2011 and of its financial 
perfurmance and cash flows fur the financial year then ended. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report 
that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the proviSions ofthe Act. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company. as a body. in accordance with 
Section 174 0 f the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no otber purpose. We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person fur the content of this report. 

~'rt 
Finn Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
TEE GUAN PIAN 
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (JIPH) 
Chartered Accountant 

KUALA LUMPUR 

2 n JAN 2012 
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• RVV VVILLIAM 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SCH MACHINERY & EQUIl'MENT SDN BHD 

Report 011 the Fmancial Statements 

Appendix XVIII 

AF 1490 

We have audited the financial statements of SCH MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT SDN BlID, which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 August 2010, and the income statement, statement of changes in equi1)' 
and cash flow statement for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 6 to 20. 

Directors'Responsibility for th. FilUlnciai Statements 

The ditectors of the Company ate responsihle for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Private Entity· Reporting Standatds and the. Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
This responsibility includeS: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to mud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
esthna!es that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with approved standatds on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan aud perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements aIe free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the atnounts and disclosures in the 
financi.1 statements. The procedures selected depend on Olll" judgement. including !he assessment of risks of 
material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to mud or error. in making those risk 
asses.ments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparstion and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appIl'pria1c in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Au audit also 
includes evaluating the estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financiai statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we bave obtained is sufficient and appropria1c to provide a basis for OUt 

audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Private Entity 
Reporting Standards aIld the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair yjew of the 
financial ?osition of the Company as of 11 Augw;t 2010 and Qfits financi<'li performance End (3:'>b flow!; fer 

tbe year ended. 
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Independent Auditors Report to the Members ofSCH Machinery & Equipment &in. Bhd. (Cent'd) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. we also report that in our 
opinion the accounting and other records and the Iq!IstOIS required by tho Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Other Matter. 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of tho 
Companies Aet 1965 in Malaysia and for DO other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the conteut of this report 

i.wwL 
RWWILLlAM 
No.AF.1490 
Chartered Accountants 

RICHARD Wll.LIAM AIL WILFRED 
No. 2413 / 04/11 (1) 
Chartered Accountant 

Dated :- 0 3 DEC 2G10 

Petaling Jays 
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